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Letter from the Chairmen
of the Board of Directors

Dear Shareholders:

We are very pleased, as always, to report to you on
the progress and performance of Alba and its investee
companies during 2011.

In 2011 the economic crisis entered a new phase in Europe,
with the serious deterioration in the sovereign debt markets
of the “peripheral” economies of the euro zone, which has
called the very foundations of the European Union and the
single currency itself into question.

The initial problems in Greece, Ireland and Portugal -
countries already “rescued” in 2010 - spread to the debt
markets of Spain and Italy, whose economies are much
larger and, in the event of actual or threatened default,
could become a systemic risk for the European economy
and the international markets. The apparent incapacity of the
European Union to find a definitive economic and political
solution to these problems allowed the crisis to reach
alarming proportions in the second half of the year. The
most obvious example is Greece, which was recued for the
first time in April 2010 but which two years later has still not
found a fully satisfactory solution to the unsustainability of
its public finances.

It was only through decisive action by the European Central
Bank, starting in the last few months of 2011, that the
pressure on sovereign debt markets was relieved and financial
institutions were able to obtain the necessary funding and

Letter from the Chairmen of the Board of Directors

capital to ensure that credit once again starts to flow in the
economy in the medium term.

It should be noted that in the case of Spain, and to a lesser
extent Italy, a great deal of the problem lies not so much in
the level of public debt as in investors’ lack of confidence in
these countries’ ability to significantly reduce their currently
high government deficits in an environment of very weak
economic growth, with high levels of private sector debt,
high rates of unemployment and uncertainty regarding the
still significant exposure of their financial institutions to

the real estate industry.

Both the previous Spanish government and the current

one have taken important steps to reduce the public sector
deficit - by cutting current expenditure and investments and
raising taxes — and have also undertaken structural reforms
in key areas such as the labour market, the pension system
and the financial system. These measures are aimed at
restoring public finances in the short to medium term and
giving the economy the necessary flexibility to return to a
path of sustainable growth in the medium to long term, while
at the same time regaining the confidence of the markets.

For all these reasons we believe that, unfortunately, the
Spanish economy, which already has one of the highest
unemployment rates among developed countries,

will continue to suffer in 2012, especially in terms of

YL VER
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Letter from the Chairmen
of the Board of Directors

unemployment. Nevertheless, we expect that the reforms
that have been passed, or that may be passed over the
coming months, will lay the foundations for economic
recovery in the years ahead.

It should be stressed, however, that the tough austerity
measures adopted in Spain and other countries, though
necessary, must be accompanied by other measures aimed

at stimulating economic growth. Without such measures, the
economic crisis will be prolonged unduly and could eventually
affect countries that have already started a tentative

recovery, such as the United States, or that have succeeded
in maintaining a more or less stable rate of growth in recent
years, such as Germany and the emerging economies.

The tensions related to the sovereign debt crisis were
reflected in the behaviour of the main stock indices. In

2011 the Ibex 35 fell 13.1% to 8,566 points, the year’s

lows coinciding with the moments of greatest pressure on
sovereign spreads in July, August and November. For obvious
reasons the indices of the stock markets of Greece (-51.9%),
Portugal (-27.6%) and Italy (-25.2%) were among the worst in
Europe in 2011.

It should be pointed out, however, that even Europe’s biggest
indices were affected by these uncertainties, registering
significant, though less hefty, losses. For instance, the
Eurostoxx 50 fell 17.1%, the CAC 40 17.0% and the DAX
14.7% during the year. The decline in the FTSE 100, the main
index of the UK stock exchange, was more moderate (-5.6%)
due to its lower exposure to the problems of the euro zone.

At the global level, the US indices were flat — S&P500 (+0.0%)
and NASDAQ (-1.8%) - while the Nikkei 225 index of the
Tokyo Stock Exchange shed 17.3% and the Hang Seng index
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange dropped 20.0%. Although
these declines are partly explained by local factors - including
the earthquake and subsequent nuclear disaster in Japan and
the doubts about economic growth in China - these markets
have also been affected by the fear that the debt crisis in
Europe could lead to a global economic recession.

The performance of the Spanish stock market in 2012 will
probably be marked by the deficit-cutting measures and
their impact on the risk premium, as well as the outcome

of the ongoing reform of the financial sector. Despite the
adverse macroeconomic outlook just described, 2012 may
not necessarily be a bad year for the equity markets in Spain
if they see an improvement in the prospects of recovery in
the future.

Letter from the Chairmen of the Board of Directors

Turning to Alba, the Net Asset Value (NAV) decreased 28.2%
in 2011 to 2,937 million euros at the end of the year. This fall
is attributable mainly to the 37.2% decline in the value of our
listed equity portfolio - due largely to the fall in the prices

of the shares of our investees but also to the disposal of
shares of ACS - and the dividends paid during the year, most
notably the extraordinary gross dividend of 3.00 euros per
share paid in April.

NAV per share at 31 December 2011, after deducting
treasury shares, was 50.44 euros, down 27.6% compared to
the end of the previous year. The better performance of NAV
per share than total NAV is due to the purchase of own shares
during the year.

The Alba share price at year-end was 30.23 euros, at a
discount of 40.1% to NAV per share before taxes. The Alba
share fell 21.4% over the year, underperforming the Ibex 35
(-13.1%) and the Eurostoxx 50 (-17.1%). If we consider the
extraordinary dividend mentioned previously, however, the
fall in the market price would be 13.6%.

Consolidated net profit for 2011 was 406.2 million euros,
down 3.1% compared to the previous year. Net profit before
taxes rose 21.5% in 2011 to 461.3 million euros.
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Letter from the Chairmen
of the Board of Directors

Net earnings per share reached 6.96 euros, down 1.7%
compared to 2010. As a result of the purchase and
cancellation of own shares, earnings per share decreased
by a smaller percentage than total earnings.

Further on in this report you will find a more detailed analysis
of the various items on Alba’s income statement and balance
sheet and details of the progress and performance of our
equity investments during 2011.

What follows is a summary of the main corporate transactions
that took place in the year under review.

During 2011 Alba made investments in the total amount of
158.7 million euros, including the acquisitions of additional
interests in Ebro Foods and Indra, the purchase of own
shares, and new growth capital investments through Dey3
Capital; it also reduced its stake in ACS:

» During 2011 Alba acquired an additional 2.42% interest
in Ebro Foods for 61.7 million euros. At the end of the
year, Alba’s interest in Ebro Foods stood at 8.12% and
was the fifth largest holding in Alba’s investee portfolio
by market value.

Alba also increased its interest in the share capital of
Indra Sistemas with the purchase of an additional 1.30%
for 24.5 million euros, bringing its shareholding at year-
end to 11.32%.

During the year Alba purchased 509,194 own shares for
a total of 21.3 million euros, representing 0.86% of its
share capital. At the General Meeting held in May 2011
the shareholders agreed to cancel 1,030,000 shares,
equivalent to 1.74% of the share capital. At 31 December
2011 treasury shares totalled 73,872, equivalent to 0.13%
of Alba’s capital.

The growth capital vehicles managed by Arts Capital (Deyd
Capital SCR, fully owned by Alba; Deyé Capital 1l SCR and
Deya Capital Ill FCR, the latter two partly owned by third
parties) made two investments in 2011:

At the end of February, under an agreement
announced in December 2010, these entities acquired
a joint interest of 35.68% in the share capital of
Panaderias de Navarra (Panasa) for 43.5 million euros.
Alba’s indirect shareholding in Panasa is thus 26.76%,
with an investment of 32.6 million euros. Panasa

is one of the leaders in Spain in the manufacture,
marketing and distribution of fresh and frozen bread,
pastry and cake products.

Letter from the Chairmen of the Board of Directors

In March they acquired a 26.33% stake in Flex, the
European leader in sleep systems, via a capital increase.
Alba’s indirect shareholding in Flex is 19.75%.

« On the other hand, in February 2011 Alba sold shares
representing 5.01% of the share capital of ACS for
535.2 million euros, at a price of 34.00 euros per share.
Alba obtained gains before taxes of 187.5 million euros
on this transaction and a return on its investment of
18.1% per year for 17 years. At 31 December Alba’s
stake in ACS stood at 18.30%, representing 44.7%
of the NAV at year-end.

Looking to 2012, we have moderately positive

expectations for our investees, thanks to their good market
positioning, competitive strengths and, in particular, the
internationalisation efforts of recent years, which have
enabled them to substantially lessen their dependence on the
crisis-hit Spanish market. In 2011, 72.9% of the aggregate
consolidated sales of our listed investees was generated
outside Spain, compared to 51.1% the previous year. We
believe that international activities will continue to gain in
importance in all these companies over the next few years.
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Letter from the Chairmen
of the Board of Directors

Before we conclude, we would like to mention the
celebration, in 2011, of the 25th anniversary of Corporacion
Financiera Alba’s investment activity and place the results
obtained in the context of the development of the Spanish
economy and Spanish society in this period.

Despite the profound crisis we are experiencing, it is
important to emphasise the major qualitative and quantitative
leap the Spanish economy has taken in these years.
According to data from the International Monetary Fund, for
example, real GDP has doubled, with cumulative average
growth of 2.8% per year, placing Spain among the leading
economies of the euro zone. GDP per capita at current prices
has increased 6.9% per year, from 6,347 dollars in 1986

to 33,298 dollars in 2011, climbing several places in the
world ranking. The dramatic improvement is apparent in the
fact that in 1986 the nominal Spanish GDP per capita was
scarcely 52.9% of the German equivalent, while in 2011,
despite the current grave crisis, the figure is 74.7%.

In this last quarter century Spain has undergone major social
changes, in particular the entry of women into the labour
market on a large scale (the female activity rate has gone from
29.6% to 52.9%); the gradual ageing of the population (the
median age has risen from 32 to 40 and the proportion of

over-64s from 12.2% in 1986 to 17.1% in 2011); and also,
especially in the last 10 years, the large influx of immigrants,
nearly 5 million people, raising the foreign population as

a percentage of the total to 12.2% at the end of 2011,
compared to less than 1% in 1986. Immigration increased
the rate of growth of the population, which went from 38.5
million in 1986 to 47.1 million in 2011.

At the same time, Spain’s relative importance in the world
increased considerably. 1986 was, in a way, the year in
which our country started to once again play a significant
role on the international scene, following admission to
the European Economic Community and NATO. Spain is
currently an active and important member of the main
international forums and bodies.

Turning back to Alba, we shall now briefly review our
company’s key performance indicators over the last 25 years:

« The NAV of Alba has gone from 271 million euros at the
end of 1986 to 2,936 million euros in 2011, representing
cumulative growth of 10.0% per year. It is worth pointing
out, moreover, that Alba has allocated more than 1,500
million euros to the purchase of own shares, dividends and
other shareholder distributions.

Letter from the Chairmen of the Board of Directors

« The NAV per share, taking capital increases and
reductions into account, increased by 8.9% per year
over the same period.

« The Alba share has appreciated by 5.4% per year since the
end of 1986, on a par with the 5.6% annual increase in the
Ibex 35 and outperforming the Eurostoxx 50, with its 3.9%
per year. If we take only the last 10 or 20 years, the Alba
share beats the abovementioned indices by a wide margin.

« The return to the Alba shareholder, including dividends
and other forms of remuneration, amounts to 7.2% per
year. A shareholder who invested 1,000 euros in shares
of Alba in December 1986 and reinvested all the net
dividends received between then and the end of 2011 in
acquiring additional shares would at the end of last year
have Alba shares valued at more than 5,700 euros.

This strong past performance is the result of clear, prudent
investment criteria, with a long-term view of value generation
and profitable growth and a reasonable policy of risk
diversification and low debt. We believe that these criteria are
still valid after all these years, and they will continue to guide
our investment policy in the future.
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Letter from the Chairmen
of the Board of Directors

Alba has consistently shown concern for compliance with
corporate governance standards and best practices and has
followed current recommendations, notably those contained
in the Unified Code approved by the CNMV.

The most important actions taken in this respect are the
amendment of the Articles of Association and General
Meeting Regulations to adapt them to the latest changes

in the law, the approval of a Code of Ethics and Conduct
applicable to all Group employees and the approval of new
Rules of Conduct in matters relating to the Securities Market,
incorporating the latest legislative changes in this matter.

The Annual Corporate Governance Report, which gives details
of ownership structure and governance, risk control systems
and monitoring of good governance recommendations, the
Supplementary Report with the information requested by the
CNMYV, and the Directors’ Remuneration Report have all been
approved and are available to shareholders and investors,
along with other additional reports by the Board committees.

As regards the allocation of profit for the year, the Board of
Directors proposes to the General Shareholders” Meeting

a full-year ordinary dividend of 1.00 euro per share out of
2011 earnings. Accordingly, a final dividend of 0.50 euros
per share, complementary to the interim dividend of the same
amount paid in October last year, will be paid in the near

future. In addition, in mid-April 2011 the Board of Directors
approved an extraordinary dividend of 3.00 euros per share.

Other resolutions relating to the election, re-election or
ratification of directors, the amendment of the Articles

of Association, the amendment of the General Meeting
Regulations, and the renewal of the authority to purchase own
shares will be laid before the General Meeting.

Lastly, we would like to thank the employees of our Group
and of our Investees for their professionalism, enthusiasm
and commitment, and all you, our shareholders, for your
confidence and support.

Yours sincerely,
Juan March Delgado
Carlos March Delgado

Letter from the Chairmen of the Board of Directors
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Financial Highlights

Rey Financial Data

In millions of euros unless otherwise indicated 2011 2010 2009 2008
Share capital at YEar-eNd c.eveeeeeierniieieiniieieiiiiieiniieieieieieeeiecaeneeecacnenes 58.3 ceeereen 59.3 veeninnn 60.8 ceueenn 62.4
Shareholders’ equity at Year-end «..c.eeeveieiieieiniiiieiniiiieiineieeiiecaieiecacnenee 2,863 ceeeenen 2,949 ........ 2,788 cueuenn 2,599
Ordinary shares in issue (thousands), average for the year ......ccceeeevenvenienienennee 58,363 ........ 59,271 ........ 60,293 ........ 61,937
NEEINCOME «enuintitininiieiiititeiitiitieiteeetetteeeraeneeeeneneeeraeneesoncncanenes 406 ........ 419 cenenen 391 ...l 361
DIVIBENGAS +evneniniuruiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieieeteratararaeataeaeneasaeasaaeeenenss 234 .a.eeeee 59 vevennns 60 ceuenens 46
EArnings Per Share (BUMOS) +uueueereneureninrueeniurentnreienraeeraceruseensesensacensans 6.96 ceuieeen 7.08 ........ 6.48 ........ 5.83
Dividends per Share (BUr0S) «.ceueeereniunruniuiuiuiuieieuieieereieeeeeeneeneancens 4.00 eveuee. 1.00 ceveeeen 1.00 ..e.eee 0.75

© 5 69060 6000000609090 006006090900006000060006000000060000600000600000060 00060060 00006000600600006006000060000060 0600000

Note: Per share data calculated using the average number of shares outstanding during the year.
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Share Price Performance

Rey Financial Data

201 2010 2009 2008

Closing share price (in euros per share)

=3 44.40 ........ 38.99 ..eee. 40.50 ........ 46.06
0 2743 ........ 29.28 ........ 23.49 ........ 20.54
0T N 30.23 ..eeneee 38.46 ........ 36.55 ..oenen 27.25
Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (Million €Uros)  e.ceveuiuveiinieieninreninrenennnnes 1,762 eurenns 2,282 ........ 2,221 ceuenee. 1,700

Volume traded

Number of securities (tNOUSANGAS) «evuverrerrenrenrenrenrererireirerererenreneennes 12,989 ceueenns 19,365 .eveeene 23,004 ........ 33,483
IN MillioNS Of BUFOS +evvverneiieiniiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieiaieieiaeneiecaraenenes 505 eeeenee 675 weunen. 745 ieeens 1,182
Daily average (Millions Of €UFOS) «.uveueuruneniureniureiiriiiiiaieriaienireeeeeneanes 2.0 ceenenns 2.6 ceuennen 2.9 vevennen 4.7
Dividend yield (on closing price for the year) «.....ceverieienieienienieienieieeennens 13.2% vevenees 2.6% cueenenn 2.7% eueene. 2.8%
P/E ratio (on closing price fOr the YEAr) .....ceerereeereeerueenrueerareeerneensacennnes 4.34 oneuen. 543 ........ 5.64 ........ 4.67

LR R I R A I N R R I I N R N R R N R I I I I R N R I R I I R R R A N N R I A N N A N R I A A A AP SN A Y
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The Alba share fell 21.4% in 2011, underperforming the Ibex
35, which declined 13.1% in the year. However, if we take into
account the extraordinary dividend of 3.00 euros per share paid
in April, the Alba share declined 13.6% over the year, on a par
with the fall in the Ibex 35.

Rey Financial Data

Alba share price performance in 2011

35.00
30.00

25.00

Dec. 2010 Mar. 201 Jun. 201 Sep. 20n Dec. 20n

=== Price per share (€)

=== |bex 35 (indexed to Alba)
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Alba’s strong share price performance over the last ten years Alba share price performance over the last

shows the significant value creation achieved by our company 10 years compared to Ibex 35 and Eurostoxx 50

in the long term. Since December 20071 the Alba share price

has increased by 27.0%, while the Ibex 35 has risen 2.0% and

the Eurostoxx 50 has fallen 39.1%. The graph shows the depth s Source: Bloomberg.
of the stock market plunge of 2007 and 2008, the significant 250

recovery from the low point in March 2009 and the subsequent 555

relapse in 2011, caused mainly by the sovereign debt crisis in
the euro zone.
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Net Asset Value

Rey Financial Data

o O O e D e e e 200200020,
Data at 31/12

NEt ASSEE VAIUE () +evenernnrnnrunrnrarnrnreernrernreernereerneresneresnesesnnnens 2,937 veerenns 4,089 ........ 4,030 ........ 3,614
Net Asset Value in euros per share () ..e..eeueeeniiuiiniiiniiiiiiiinnniniineineenees 50.44 .eeuenes 69.63 ..uvueen 6718 .uu.nee. 58.64
Share price in Uros PersShare ..v.eeeeeeeeuiuiuiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieneneneneneneneaens 30.23 ..eeeee 38.46 ........ 36.55 .....ee 27.25
Discount t0 NEt ASSET VBIUE w.vreriririiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieaieeeeeneneenenes 40.1% aeuenene 44.8% ........ 45.6% ........ 53.5%

© 5 60060 0000 E0E0000O0EI00O0E000O0CCV000O0E000C0000CI0000C000E0OC00P0C0000C000E00000C000000CEIODLODN

() Before taxes.
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The changes in Net Asset Value since the end of 2001 can
be seen below.

Rey Financial Data

Historical Net Asset Value
before taxes (31 Dec.)

Millions of euros

LR R R A N I R R I I I I R I I I I I R R R R R R N AN
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The following chart shows the changes in Net Asset Value per
share, before taxes, over the same period, measured at 31
December each year.

Rey Financial Data

Net Asset Value per share,
before taxes (31 Dec.)

Euros per share

90.00
80.00 75.82

000 71.68 cr1g 6963
£0.00 58.64
£0.00 1838 50.44
4000 o 3290 3474
30.00 29.11
20.00
10.00
0.00

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201
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Alba’s NAV per share increased by 31.1% over the period NAV before taxes per share
considered. The growth in NAV per share is attributable to the ~ compared to share price
value creation by our investees during the period, the success

of the investment and divestment decisions made during the

period, and the positive effect for our shareholders of the e 0 00 ettt ereeeneneeenannneeananesareeneneeeneneseneneess, Source:Bloomberg for share price
purchase and subsequent cancellation of own shares. The 250
difference in the behaviour of the share price and the NAV 295
per share over time is due to the change in the discount at 200

which the Alba share trades in the market compared to the

value of its assets. 175
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The following chart shows the changes in the industry
composition of Alba’s portfolio over the last ten years.

Rey Financial Data

Breakdown of Alba’s Gross Asset Value by industry
at year-end (31 Dec.) ()

* Gross Asset Ualue before deducting net debt and taxes.

LR R R A I R R O I I R I R I I I N R R I R A R N I R N N NN

1% 3% 1%
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3% 204
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o 204 2% 20 3% 4%
b 0
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The composition of Alba’s portfolio has changed substantially in In 2011 the “Other” category includes the investments in Clinica
the last decade as a result of the investments and divestments Baviera and Antevenio and the investments made through

made and the investees’ varying stock market performance. Deya Capital (Mecalux, Pepe Jeans, Panasa, Ros Roca, Flex and
The Retail (Pryca - Carrefour) and Telecommunications (Airtel Ocibar). The scale of the investments made by Deyd Capital is

- Vodafone) sectors, for example, which together accounted reflected in the significant growth of the “Other” category as a
for 59% of Alba’s portfolio at the end of 2002, have not been proportion of Alba’s Gross Asset Value in recent years.

present in the portfolio since 2006, the most important sectors
at the end of the last year being Construction and Services (ACS,
45% of the portfolio) and Industrial (Acerinox, 20%). In 2009
and 2010 two new sectors, Technology (Indra, 6%) and Food
(Ebro Foods, 6%), were added to the portfolio.
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Investment Portfolio

Structure of the main investees in Alba’s portfolio
at 31 December 2011 (1):

Corporacion | v
Financiera
Alba (2)

Antevenio Clinica
Baviera

Acerinox ACS Prosegur Indra

Deya
Capital S.CR.

100.00%

24.24% 18.30% 10.01% 11.32%

20.54% 20.00%

Abertis Iberdrola Hochtief Mecalux Flex Panasa Ros Roca Pepe Jeans il Ocibar
10.28% J18.83% 49.20% 9.00% 19.75% 26,76% §19.04% 12.28% 21.66%
(1) Other investees: Arta Capital S.G.E.C.R., S.A. (62.5%) and Corporacion Empresarial de Extremadura, S.A. (0.94%).
(2) Interests held through the companies Alba Participaciones, S.A. and Balboa Participaciones, S.A., both fully owned by Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A.

YL VAR
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Portfolio value at 31 December 2011: M“"het "“'“e") Main stock
Shareholding Millions Euros per exchange
Listed Companies with a Quoted Market Price . ......%..... Ofewos .. . Share  whichiraded
ACS (2) tueneneneneneneneneneneneneeeeeeeeaeasesesasnsnsnsnencnsnsnsnsnenananns 18.30 ......... 1,319.0 cevveennne 2290 ....... Madrid
ACETINOX (2) wuvenrenrenrenrenrenrenrenrenrererererereseresensesssens 2424 ......... 598.9 tevirninnenn 9.91 uenne Madrid
PrOSEZUE (2) wevuennenruererurnernrnernrneenrneeernsnesnsnerssasessnsnasnsnns 10.01 .eveenenn 208.7 ceeeneenennn 33.79 ....... Madrid
010 T ) 11.32 ceeenens 182.8 cevineenennn 9.84 ....... Madrid
0T o Yo e /) RN 812 veinnnne 1794 covueenenne. 14.35....... Madrid
CliNiCa BAVIETa (2) eeveerueniureninreninrnireienraienrneeenseensancnsnnns 20.00 ......... 21.2 eeienennen 6.50 ....... Madrid
ANEVENIO (2) trvueniureninreenrnienrueeraeereeeensneernesnsasesnsansns 20.54 .ceenen. 4.8 ceevenenene. 5.56 ceuune Alternext Paris
Total Market Value ...covvevniiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiicieiiieee eeeeeaes 2,514.8
Total DOOK VAlUE vuvvvvniiiininiiiiniiiiiininiiiiiiiiiiineieiaieienecenecaene ceeveeees 2,439.8
Unrealised capital 83iNS «..c.ovvviieiniiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieienee vececaens 75.0
Unlisted COMPANIES .uvvvnininiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieiees cvenenens 206.9
Real Estate assets (appraisal value at 31-Dec-20T1) cevuerrureninreeeeneeaes eeenenens 229.2

60560600 00606000 0e0 et s en et oL eNeeterses et o0 crbenetsseN et b eb ettt e0sebetsbebeNObObesbevOb o0t
(1) Prices at the closing exchange rate in December.
(2) Investments accounted using the equity method.
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Data

Details of changes in stakes in participated companies over the
last financial years are given below:

Rey Financial Data

Shareholding (%)

31-12-201 201 31-12-2010 31-12-2009

LI R I R A A R I B N I I I N R R O O I I I I N I R I R R N R I R I A I R A A I I R N RO )

Listed Companies

N 18.30 vevenrnnn (5.01) vevervunnns 2331 ceeeniininenns 23.48
ACEFINOX +euveneeneensenernresenssesensensensenssnsensencensscsssascsssnsense 2424 civviiens 7 eerereeenen. 2424 coviiiiininnnn 24.24
PrOSEEUN evnrrnerneineineiniineintineineiateneiacesenasscnesnsenssnsenscnces T10.0T vevveeees - eevereeenen. 10.07 cevevininnnnnen 10.01
3T N 11.32 ceeneeee 1.30 ceereinnnens 10.02 cevniniinnnenns 10.02
EDrO FOOS «euvininiinininiininiiiiniiiiiniiiiinieiaineeieeneneeasacennes 812 evrennnn 242 vevieennnnns 570 ceveieiniinnnns

CliNICa BAVIETa wuvvveueruiniieininiiniuineieenieearucnecesneneensaceeensacncs 20.00 seeeveees 7 eieeeeneee. 20.00 ceeeveiniennnnn 18.15
ANEVENMIO tuvnnenenntenerarereneeaseneenseneeneenceneoncensencnssscnssnsence 20.54 cieiiiees 5 eieiieenen. 20.54 ciiiiiiiiiinnn 20.54

Unlisted Companies

1T 1 N 1423 cvevieens 5 eeieeceenee. 1423 ceviiiniinnnnnn
PEPE JEANS tueintiniiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei it et eeaaes 1228 tevvveees 5 eiieeieenen. 12.28 ceviviininnnnnn
TR T 26.76 veveenns 26.76 veverininies T eeeereceseneens
RO 0o 19.04 cevvveees - eeierieenen. 19.04 ceviiiniinnnnnn 16.74
FIBX tvuiniiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiecatneieceeneiecacacnaaes 19.75 ceenenee. 1975 cvveveieens teerececnenenees
L0710 N 21.66 ceveeveee - eerereceens 21,66 cvniniinininnn 21.66

In 2011 Alba acquired 26.76% of Panasa and 19.75% of Flex
and increased its investment in Ebro Foods by 2.42% and its
investment in Indra by 1.30%. At the same time, it sold 5.01%
of ACS, leaving its shareholding at year-end at 18.30%.

YL VAR
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Industry Diversification

If the equity investments are combined with the rest of Alba’s
assets, all valued at market prices, the distribution of the
Company’s investments by industry, based on year-end portfolio
composition and share prices (in %), is as follows:

Rey Financial Data

Percent of total Gross Asset Dalue

CoNStruction 3Nd SEMVICES wevvvireerrniieieeniiernrneieceeniiecaraeiecacnenes 45 cieveeens 58 tiiiiiininns 61 tieviiininens 68

T[T | 20 eeeenenns 18 vevevninenns 2 I 18

2T 8 veenennnn 5 veviiiiennns 6 tiieeinienens 7

SECUMEY tetneentintiniitiiitieiteiteiateteiaeenenaeesenesseneensensensenee 7 eeeeennnn 6 cevninnennns 5 ciiiiiiniinn 4

=T 1T T o N 6 ceerenne 5 ciiiiiiennns 6 teeiiiininns

0T T e 6 eeeenrnnn K T T T TR

L0131 RN 8 veeninne 4 viviiiinnnn 2 eveieienenns 3
100 ......... 100 ..ovvnennnn 100 ..ooennnnnns 100

(In millions of euros)
GrOSS ASSEE VBIUE «vvervrrnneeineerneeaneesnncsnnconacosncosasosnssnnsonnsonns 2,957 teeeennes 4,398 ceiiininnns 4,248 ceiiiniinnnn 3,727
Net Asset Value DEfOre taXES vuveeueeenreeneeenreenreeneeensecnsccnscanscannes 2,937 ivenrens 4,089 ciiinnnnnn. 4,030 ceeiiiniinann 3,614

LR R I R R R I B R N I I I I N R R I I I R I I I R R R R A N N RN NN RN
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The relative weight of the Construction and Services sector
diminished significantly last year due to the relatively poorer
performance of the ACS share price and the decrease in
ownership interest during the year.

The figure of 45% for the Construction and Services sector
includes the investment in ACS. However, the activities of ACS
are so highly diversified that the concentration in Construction
and Services is not as high as that figure might suggest. For a
more detailed picture of the diversification of Alba’s portfolio,
the 45% figure would have to be subdivided among the various
sectors in which ACS operates. The following table gives a
rough indication of that subdivision, based on estimates of
each subsector’s contribution to ACS’s consolidated net
profitin 2011:

5 609006060000 0006000006006009000060000000000000GLDOLES

INQUSHial SErVICES «evvrnrniiaruineieiniiieinieieeneeiesnenenenns 22%
Construction and CONCESSIONS tuvveerrurneieenrneierueeeecaenees 16%
ENVIFONMENT cuvveriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiieiiieiiieiieecnnecnnees 6%
Listed iNVESIMENTS +vvvereenrnrneiaeneieraeneeieeneeiacnenennns 1%

45%

95 60006060000 0000000600600000060000000600000D0DGELOIDLES

Rey Financial Data




Review of
Consolidated Financial
Performance

The consolidated financial information has been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

More detailed information can be found in the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto, audited by Ernst & Young, S.L., in the final section of this report.

EVCTIE VER
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Balance Sheet

The changes in Alba’s key balance sheet items during 2011 are
detailed below:

Investment property, consisting of leased properties, reached
213.3 million euros, compared to 221.9 million in 2010. The
decrease compared to the previous year is due mainly to 3 9.1
million euro charge against the book value of the properties,
based on appraisals carried out by independent experts, which
is recognised in the income statement under Change in the fair
value of investment property.

Property, plant and equipment declined from 12.0 to 11.3 million
euros, due mainly to the depreciation charge for the year.

Investments in associates decreased by 427.9 million euros. This
decline is due to the sale during the year of 5.01% of the interest
in ACS, the changes in the equity reserves of investees and the
dividends received from investees. Together, these three items
exceed the additions to Investments in associates resulting from
the income from Share of profit of associates and the increases
in ownership in Ebro Foods and Indra.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets increased 51.1
million euros as a result of the acquisition of interests of 26.76%
in Panasa and 19.75% in Flex.

Other investments increased by 9.9 million euros, due partly
to the recovery in value of financial assets, carried at 56.3
million euros, which had been written down in 2009, and partly
to the use of tax losses and other tax assets recognised in
previous years.

Financial assets held for trading decreased in 2011 from
25.4 to 1.8 million euros due to sales of short-term liquid
financial assets. These investments are valued at market
prices at year-end.

Other current assets increased from 278.9 to 445.6 million
euros. This total includes 325.2 million euros of positive cash
balances and 120.4 million euros of receivables, consisting
mainly of dividends approved but not yet paid and prepayments
of corporate income taxes.

Share capital stood at 58.3 million euros at 31 December 2011,
down 1.03 million euros on the previous year. The decrease is
due to the cancellation of 1,030,000 shares, as approved by the
shareholders at the General Meeting held on 25 May 2011.

Review of Consolidated Financial Performance
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Review of Consolidated
Financial Performance

Reserves increased from 2,520.1 to 2,605.5 million euros, due
mainly to the allocation of profit for the previous year, partly offset
by changes in the reserves of investees (basically attributable

to purchases of own shares, valuation adjustments for financial
instruments and exchange differences), dividend payments and
the capital reduction mentioned earlier.

Interim dividend shows a balance of 204.7 million, which includes
the two interim dividends paid out of 2011 profit during the

year: 175.5 million euros for an extraordinary gross dividend of
3.00 euros per share paid in April and 29.2 million euros for the
ordinary interim gross dividend of 0.50 euros per share, paid at
the end of October.

Treasury shares includes the cost of own shares held at 31
December 2011, amounting to 3.0 million euros and representing
0.13% of the company’s share capital (73,872 shares).

Profit for the year reached 406.2 million euros, 3.1% less than
the 419.4 million euros obtained the previous year.

For all the reasons given above, Shareholders’ equity at year-end
stood at 2,863.0 million euros, up 2.9% on the previous year.

Provisions stood at 2.8 million euros at year-end. This figure
includes the provisions recorded to cover probable or known
expenses, losses or liabilities arising from litigation in progress
relating to the company’s business.

Long-term payables relate to bank borrowings with a term of
more than one year and, to a lesser extent, guarantees received
for leases. Borrowings amounted to 250.0 million euros, relating
to financial contracts similar to a loan maturing in June 2014.

Short-term payables, which includes bank loans and other
payables, decreased from 621.6 million euros to 308.2 million
euros as a result of the maturity of a loan in the amount of 250
million euros in June and the lower level of bank borrowings, due
to asset sales during the year.

Review of Consolidated Financial Performance
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Consolidated Balance Assets

. At 31 Atz Atz

Sheet befo re PrOflt December December  December

. . . In millions of euros de 20n 2010 2009
Dlstrlbutlon T S

INVESTMENT PrOPEITY tuveenneeineeineeineeinetineeineeineeieeeeneesaeeesseesesesscssssensssssssssssnasanasans 213.3 cevenenn 2219 ......en 229.2

Property, plant and €QUIPMENT .uvuvuininineninininiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieieieieieneecencacacacncacnes 13 eeeenen 12.0 ...eeeee 129

Tangible fixed aSSEts, NEL c.vuvuiuiriiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieetieeateteieeneiecacaennnns 224.6 ........ 2339 ...eeee 2421

INVESTMENTS N 3SSOCIBLES wevvrereeeeeerennnannsessceseosessesssnsassssscscossssssssasnssssscsssssssssnnnnnes 2,439.8 cevenens 2,867.7 euuuens 2,723.7

Non-current available-for-sale financial 8SSEtS «..euveuerereueeeeieeeeereeeeeneeerenrensenrencensencancencens 206.9 .eeennes 155.8 ceeeenne 38.9

Other INVESIMENTS vvieueieneeeneeeneeeneeenseenseonseonssonssonssonssonssonssosssossssnssssssonnsonnssnssss 146.0 vevenens 1361 cevennn 81.8

TOtal INVESTMENTS . .ueenneeneeineeineeineerneeeneeeneeeneeeneeenceancennseanseansesnsesnsesnsennsennsennsennee 2,792.7 .eueeenn 3,159.6 ........ 2,844.4

TOtal fiXEd @SSELS  .ueeuueiniiineeineeineeineenneeeneerneeenseonsennscnnsconscsnsennsonnscsnsosnscsnsennsannse 3,017.3 ........ 3,393.5 ........ 3,086.5

Financial assets held for trading ........ccocveiuiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiineiereeeiecaseees 1.8 ceverens 254 ........ 22.5

Other CUMTENT 3SSES .evuereneroeronnroeronnronesonesonnsonnsonsosnsosnsosnsosssosnsosssossssssssnsonnsos 445.6 cevveenn 2789 ........ 361.9

TOtAl ASSELS «euuneinneiineeinieineeineeeneeeneeeneenncennccanseansennscnnscsnscsnsesnscnnsesnscsnsesnscnnsennse 3,464.7 cuuuene 3,697.8 ........ 3,470.9

YL VER
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Equity and Liabilities

At 31 At 31 At 31

December December December

In millions of euros de 20n 2010 2009
Share CaPItal weveueieiniiiieiniieiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiaiereietetetarettaeneeearaeseeasaeneeasaes 58.3 teeurnen 59.3 .....e. 60.8
RESEIVES +etitieereennnnnnneeeeeeeososssnssnnsssscescosossssssnsnsssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssnnnnnes 2,605.5 ceeenens 2,520.1 ....... 2,397.0
TrEASUNY SNATES +eueuenenenininininininieierararaeneaenseteseaeeeeeeesnsnsssssssnsssssasasnsssssssssns (3.0) ceeennn (20.8) ...... (31.4)
INEFIM AIVIAENG PBIA +evvueenrnrnntnrneenrnerreeeerarneernerrneesneeesasnesssnesssnssssnenssasnssssnesnns (204.7) veveees (29.4) ...... (30.1)
Profit fOr the YEaI vueueeeiueiiiuiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieiitneieeaeneieeaestiecasacecacncnces 406.2 weuenens 4194 ....... 390.6
MiNOFItY INTETESES vvveuernerarererarerenerneeneeaeineeneraeeneenssasesssssssssssssssssnssssenssnsenssnssnsans 0.7 eevenns 0.7 weueene 0.7
Shareholders’ €qUILY «..c.cveveiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiieieieentieeatneietaeneiecnsaes 2,863.0 ........ 2,949.3 ....... 2,787.6
PrOVISIONS +etiunutieennieeenneeeeeneseoennssosnssosennssooensscsesnssossnssssssnsssssnsscsssassossnsssssnns 2.8 vereeens 4.4 ....... 6.8
Other non-current liabilities .......cocvvieiiieiiieiiieiiieiiiiiiiiieiiiniiieieieioeeionetonsonsonnsonnes 38.7 cevenene 456 ....... 30.7
T aolF: | e [l o | A PPN 250.0 .eeeeene 75.0 .eueen 325.0
Other Iong-terM debt uiuuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiietiteitteretententontensensessnssesces 2.0 cevenns 1.9 ceeeens 1.9
LoNg-term Payables .....ccueuiieiuiniieiniiiiiiuiiiieiniieiiineieieiniieiieneeeesatiecacsctecasacecacncnees 252.0 ........ 76.9 ....... 326.9
T E Ta ot e =10 N 294.6 veverens 612.3 ....... 313.0
Other ShOMt-terM D uviueiineiiniiieiineieeiieeeneteeeoneeonseonssonssonssoessonssosssonnsonnsonnsss 13.6 teeerens 9.3 ceeuene 59
Short-term Payables ......ceeeiniieiuiiiieieiiieiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieieiiiiieieieietaiieeasaciececnenecasaes 308.2 ........ 621.6 ....... 318.9
Total Equity and Liabilities ....c.ouvueieiniiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieieieeneiecacnenans 3,464.7 ........ 3,697.8 ....... 3,470.9

LR R I R R R I B R I I I I S R R I I I I I I S R R R R I A R R A N R N RN
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Income Statement

In 2011 Alba obtained a Net profit of 406.2 million euros, down
3.1% from 419.4 million euros the previous year. Even so, profit
before taxes increased 21.5% to 461.3 million euros.

Net earnings per share decreased 1.7% in the year, from 7.08
to 6.96 euros.

Income from Share of profit of associates fell 35.5% to

241.9 million euros, mainly due to the decline (-42.6%) in the
profit contributed by ACS, partly because of the reduction of
ownership from 23.31% to 18.30% and partly because of the
relative decline (-26.7%) in ACS’s profit for the year following the
substantial extraordinary gains recorded in 2010.

Lease income from investment property was 15.5 million euros,
down 1.2% on the previous year. The occupancy rate at 31
December 2011 was 90.7%.

According to appraisals by independent experts, the value of
Alba’s investment property decreased by 9.1 million euros in
2011. This amount has been charged to Change in the fair value
of investment property. For properties held for the full year,

this represents a decrease of 4.1% in appraised value at the
reporting date compared to the end of the previous year. At 31
December 2011 the fair value of leased investment property was
213.3 million euros.

The decline in Interest income, which went from 34.2 to 19.0
million euros, is attributable mainly to the non-recurring income
obtained the previous year from liquid assets, such as the fees
received in the stock lending agreements with ACS for the
Exchange Offer on Hochtief AG.

Impairment of assets includes a 56.5 million euros income

to adjust the book value of long-term investments to the best
estimate of their current fair value, which results in a partial
recovery of the impairment losses recognised in previous years.

Profit/(loss) on assets includes gross capital gains of 185.3
million euros, mainly obtained in the sale of the stake in ACS
already mentioned.

Review of Consolidated Financial Performance

Operating expenses were held steady over the year at
17.1 million euros. At 31 December 2011 these expenses
represented 0.58% of NAV before taxes.

The increase in Interest expenses, which went from 23.4 to
28.1 million euros, was due mainly to the valuation of various
interest rate hedging instruments.

Corporate income tax, totalling 55.1 million euros in
2011, includes mainly the tax impact of the gains on asset
disposals obtained in the year. The income of 39.6 million
euros from 2010 came largely from the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses, based
on the likelihood of their recovery.
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Consolidated Income
Statements (1)

Review of Consolidated Financial Performance

e U S0
Share of profit/(10SS) Of 8SSOCIBIES «+vvvuvereurarenrueniureninreiriierateraretreienraeerasesasensnnes 2419 .ieeenes 3751 eeues 4441
Lease income and Other tEMS vuvueuinininininininiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieieieieieneeeneacacncncacaes 155 veveeene 15.7 w.ee.e. 16.3
Change in the fair value of INVEStMENt PrOPETtY «..vvevrerererururerererererereneieneenenrnrarasasasasasaes (CA) P (8.4) ...... (18.4)
INEErESTINCOME weuuinneinenniinenaenteneeiteneeeintineineenteneeneenennsesenssnsensenssnsensensensonsansans 19.0 ceneene 342 ....... 20.8
IMPAIMMENT Of BSSELS +euvunenrnreninreenrutentureturetraeenraeentaeeeareetesaeensasensasesasecnsasenss 56.5 seevunne ©eeeeees (100.1)
Profit/(I0SS) ON SSELS «uvuvenrurenenrenenrureniuienturetraeenrarenraeeeaseeensesensasensasesasaensancnss 185.3 veeranes 6.3 ceuenee 70.9
T 509.1 ........ 4229 ....... 433.6
OPETatiNg EXPENSES «evvvrtnrrntnrurentueerutueeneuereseeeesseerueseeesseessmeessserssssesessrsessassnses (7.1) verrens (17.1) ...... (16.9)
INEETEST EXPENSES «evuenenenenenensnensnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssasasasasasnsnsnss (28.1) evrene (23.4) ...... (20.9)
AMOTtiSation aNd dEPreCiBtON ..v.eueeeeerueeerurerreeerneeerneeerneeesornerasnsessnseesasnesosnesssasens (1.0) ceveeen (1.0) ...... (1.0)
Provisions for liabilities and ChargEs «.euevveiniieieiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieceieneceenenees TR < eeeees 0.4
COPPOTALE INCOME 18X «evuenrunenrnrenturenensanenrusensusenenseensasensassnsasessnssssnssssnssssnsasensnses (55.1) veureee 39.6 .eu.ue. (2.8)
MINOTILY INEEMESES evvvueurrneurunrneuieneureneuieeenrteeseuereueeeuereencmeesesersesseessaeessassnesssnes (1.6) werenne (1.6) ...... (1.8)
T (102.9) ....... 3.5) ...... (43.0)

T80 {1 406.2 ........ 4194 ....... 390.6

Net €arnings Per SHAre (EUN0S) ....cuueuuruniuiuniuiuiutiutneraineraeneraeneratnerasnesasenesasennss 6.96 ceeenee. 7.08 ....... 6.48

(1) Items are grouped in these income statements according to management criteria and so do not necessarily coincide with the figures in the financial statements.
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ACS

Company description

ACS is the largest construction and services company in Spain, with a very significant presence in other industries that are key to the
economy, such as energy and infrastructure.

In recent years ACS has taken decisive steps to expand its traditional businesses internationally, especially construction. This
effort culminated last year with the acquisition of a controlling interest in Hochtief, which consequently is consolidated by the full

consolidation method since 1 June 2011.

This acquisition makes ACS one of the world’s largest construction and infrastructure concession groups in terms of sales and
backlog, with a very strong presence in Europe, North America, Australia, Asia and the Middle East.

[=] 371 [m]

[=]%
www.grupoacs.com n
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Key financial data ACS’s activities are divided into three large business areas:

Construction, Industrial Services and Environment.

In millions of euros unless otherwise indicated 20m 2010 2009
e et e s s te ettt atassan st e s asta s et enes L The Construction area encompasses the civil engineering,
S 2T 28,472 ........ 15,380 ....... 15,387 residential and non-residential construction, bOth thOSC
EBITDA t1ueitintiiteieiietitinieneinteneineenteneiareneacasssssassssssssssensesssnsenssnsssssnsnsssssnssnse 2,318 .everene 1,505 ....... 1,429 of ACS, through Dragados, and those of Hochtief and its
5 R 1,333 eeuenee 1,099 ....... 1,074 subsidiaries, the most important of which are Leighton
NEEPIOMIL +vvveeerreeensreeesseeeesseesesseeeesseeeasseeeasseeesseeenseeeansseeasseeennssesnsssesnnseesnsneens 962 vereenn 1,313 ..uee. 1,946 Holdings in Australia and Turner and Flatiron in the United
States. It is worth pointing out the large weight of civil works
Net €arnings PEr SNAME (BUOS) +vveeeneerrsnnreersnneeeersnneeeesssnereessnneseessnneseesssneseessssesessnnnes 3.24 vevennn. 438 ....... 6.26 in the Group’s total turnover.
Gross dividend paid Per ShAre (BUMDS) «eveeeeereeererernrnrnrnrnenenenenenenceereesraessassssesesesasasnsnsns 2.05 ........ 2.05 ....... 2.05
In civil engineering, the Construction division also participates
TOUAl BSSELS weuvenrenreneeneenteneenteneeneistieeiessseseseseneensessensestessessestesssssssssssessssscssenses 47,988 .eeeeens 34,185 ....... 31,361 in the design, tender, financing and execution of concessions.
N T T T ot e o 9,334 ceenene 8,003 ....... 9,271 The ACS Group is 3 world leader in the development,
NE TECOUNSE TEDE uvvnneieneientreienntonetonetonerosesonnsosnsosnsosnsosnsosnsosnsosnsosnsosnsssnsosnsons 3,369 ceeeenes 957 ceeenn. 302 flnancmg,.constructlon, management and OPeratlon of new
transport infrastructures.
NON-reCOUrse fINANCING +euvrrueirieiniieiniiiiiieiniiiinieieieeeieiateteeeeseiecsracsececsesecasacacans 5965 ........ 7,046 ....... 8,969
OWN FUNDS (1) 4uetniiiiiiiii e e e e e aaes 3,319 eeennne 4,178 ....... 4,220 Through Iridium, ACS has interests in several toll road
SHArENOIIErS’ EQUILY +evererenrrnrenrenrenrerenrerenreerenreereeseeseesereeseeosessesseseesessnssesnssenses 6,191 ceveueee 4,442 ....... 4,508 concessionaires in Spain, the United States, Chile, Greece,
DEDE / EQUITY (%) +evvverreeeseeenseeenseeseeeseeenseeesseeseeeseeesseensseesssenssessseenssessseenssesneens 150.8 vevvee 180.2 e 205.7 Ireland, Portugal and the United Kingdom, among other

Note: The data for 2009 and 2010 are presented on a comparable basis, applying IAS 31 and IFRIC 12. The data for 2010 have not been adjusted for the changes in the
consolidation perimeter in 2011. ACS has accounted for Hochtief by the full consolidation method since 1 June 2011.
(1) Shareholders’ equity less adjustments for changes in value. Does not include minority interests.

countries; and in railway and public facility concessionaires
in Spain. On the other hand, Hochtief has an active presence
in the development and operation of motorway concessions
and airports and the management of mining operations,
among others.
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*ACS has extensive experience throughout the Industrial Sales by activity Net profit by activity
Services value chain, from development, applied engineering
and new project construction to industrial infrastructure

maintenance in industries such as energy, communications 0®®0 o ® ®o,
and control systems. Industrial Services are classified in two ° .. e®°%°, .’ ° o 0 e, ® PY
broad areas: o ° L ®o o° ‘e o
o ° ° ® °
[ ] .. ® [ © e O
- Facilities and Industrial Maintenance, which includes : : Total 2011: : : ° . Total 2011: '. [
Networks, Specialized Facilities and Control Systems. o ° 0
p y o €28472m ] e° €9%62m .,
[ ] [ ) °
- Integrated Projects, which includes turnkey projects of, P R ... .. ° % ° ..
among others, wind and solar thermal power and the o %, AN ) PR N o® ¢ PY
investments made in concession-based transmission line ®e .' ¢ °. o® ®_ %ecee’® o
projects in Latin America. e o0
« Lastly, the Environment area includes the collection, e Construction 69.4% © Construction 36.1%
management, treatment and recycling of urban and industrial ® Industrial Services 24.7% ® Industrial Services 48.0%
waste, which are carried out through the subsidiary Urbaser. ® Environment 5.9% © Environment 12.5%

These activities are generally performed under concessions e Listed Investments 3.4%

or long-term contracts. Urbaser is one of the main urban
services companies in Spain, with a growing presence in

France, the United Kingdom and North America, especially

through waste processing plants. Note: Chart based on the contribution of the different businesses to sales and net profit, excluding consolidation adjustments. Net profit by activity in-
cludes extraordinary results in some activities, such as the gains made on the sales of renewable assets in Industrial Services or of Iridium concessions
in Construction.

In Net profit by activity, “Listed Investments” includes the contribution of Abertis and Iberdrola to net profit, after deducting associated finance costs,
taxes and the adjustment to the carrying amount of the interest in Iberdrola.

YL VER
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Review of the company’s operations
during 2011

Although the first-time consolidation of Hochtief in 2011
makes comparisons with previous years difficult, the
operational performance of ACS’ different businesses has
been good, considering the prevailing deep economic crisis.
Thanks to the industry and geographical diversification
strategy pursued in recent years, the Group has been able
to compensate for the weakness of Spanish residential and
civil construction with a greater contribution from businesses
outside Spain (72.5% of 2011 sales and 80.9% of the total
backlog at year-end) and non-construction activities (63.9%
of consolidated net profit for 2011).

ACS achieved consolidated sales of 28,472 million euros,
practically doubling the comparable sales of the previous year,
thanks to the consolidation of Hochtief since 1 June 2011, and
increased its ordinary net profit from continuing operations by
8.8% to 951 million euros.

Total net profit in 2011 was 962 million euros, down 26.7% on
2010 due to reduced extraordinary profit.

The total backlog of the Group reached 66,152 million euros at
the end of 2011, up 139.7% on the previous year on account of
the consolidation of Hochtief (-7.0% excluding this effect).

Information about Equity Investments

Key performance indicators by business segment

Change
In miillions of euros 201 2010 /10
Construction
LT 19,802 ........ 5,703 ....... 247.2%
T o Y 370 eeunenns 187 weueee 97.5%
L0 a7 0T o1 o - 50,336 ceeeenne 11,088 ....... 354.0%
Industrial Services
TUIMIOVET tenntenieineeineeinteineeiaeeiaeeiaeetasesasesaseessesssesssesssesssssnsssssssssesssssnssnnsssnssnnss 7,045 ........ 7,158 ....... -1.6%
T 0o Y 492 ........ 400 ....... 23.0%
L0 a7 o7 o1 o - 6,875 veverens 6,846 ....... 0.4%
Environment
TUMMIOVET tenutennieineeineeinteineeineeiaeeiaeeiaserasesasesssesssesssesssssssssssssnsssnsssssssnssnnssnnssnnss 1,686 weveneen 1,51 ....... 11.6%
NEEPrOfIt veuenenenenenineniniuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieieieieieteiteeentaeaenessaeacasscaseessessssneseenenens 128 ........ 152 ....... -15.8%
L0 a7 o7 o1 o - 8,941 cevurene 9,669 ...eu.e -7.5%
Number of employees (average WOTKfOrCE) w.vuvuveriureniniureniuieniureireieraieiaeeeareneranensaens 164,923 ........ 90,887 ....... 81.5%

Note: Net profit of the activities includes extraordinary income and the income from discontinued operations and available-for-sale assets.
Construction includes Hochtief on a fully consolidated basis since June 2011. In addition, Construction includes the concessions business of Iridium in both years.
Environment does not include Clece in either year, as Clece is classified as a discontinued operation held for sale.
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The figures for Construction were very strongly affected by the
consolidation of Hochtief from June. Construction sales reached
19,802 million euros, 247.2% more than in 2010. Excluding
Hochtief, sales would have been down 13.7% due to the decline
in domestic activity (-22.1%) as a result of the contraction

of public investment in infrastructure and the slowdown in
construction activity, both residential and non-residential.
Consolidated sales include 16,859 million euros relating to
international sales, which account for 85.1% of the total.

The net profit of Construction was 370 million euros in 2011, an
increase of 97.5% in the year, including the gains on the sale of
various concessions belonging to Iridium, once their launching
phase has been completed.

The order backlog at year-end stood at 50,336 million euros,
40,486 million of which are attributable to the consolidation of
Hochtief. Excluding Hochtief, the Construction backlog would
have decreased by 11.2%, under the impact of the 24.5% fall in
the domestic backlog. The international order backlog represents
91.4% of the total backlog at the end of 2011.

In 2011 Iridium, ACS’s concessions subsidiary, headed

for the fifth consecutive year the list of the world’s top
infrastructure concession groups published by Public Works
Financing Newsletter.

Industrial Services maintained the strong performance of
previous years, albeit at a slower pace: sales reached 7,045
million euros, down 1.6% on 2010, while net profit climbed to
492 million, up 23.0% on the previous year, including the gains
on renewable energies asset sales.

Around 48.0% of 2011 sales were international. The order
backlog increased by 0.4% to 6,875 million euros at the end of
the year, of which 4,170 million (60.7% of the total) related to
international projects.

Environment achieved sales of 1,686 million euros in 2011,
24.2% from outside Spain, representing an increase of 11.6%
compared to the previous year.

The domestic business increased its sales by 4.1% and the
international business, by 43.7%. Net profit was down 15.8%
compared to the previous year at 128 million euros, as a
consequence of the contribution, in 2010, of the profit of
Dragados SPL as a discontinued operation.

The order backlog grew 7.5% in 2011 to 8,941 million euros, of
which 37.0 million related to international markets.

Information about Equity Investments

Among the Listed Investments, the gross contribution of
Abertis to ACS’s 2011 result was 74 million euros using the
equity method, 49.7% less than the previous year because
of the decrease in ownership interest in August 2010. The
contribution of the investment in Iberdrola was 373 million
euros, up 50.0% on 2010, via accrued dividends accounted
for as financial income.

If the financial costs, net of taxes, associated with these
interests and the adjustment of 180 million euros in

the interest in Iberdrola are taken into account, the net
contribution of the interest in Abertis to the ACS result was
36 million euros (-70.1% compared to the previous year) and
zero in the case of Iberdrola.

YL VER
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As detailed in the following table, in 2011 ACS made
investments totalling 4,755 million euros and asset disposals of
1,854 million euros.

Investments in 2011

In miillions of euros

Information about Equity Investments

CONSLIUCTION +vvivnnnrieiinnieeennreoennseosenssosennsccsensscosnnssssnsssos

Industrial Services

L 010 ) 11 T=T L

COMPOration ...ceieeiiniiineiineeierieeieeeineieeincenacenacenncenncnns

Gross Net
investment Disposals investment
..... 2,320 ceeriiiinininnnns 944 civiiiiininns 1,376
..... 1,236 ceeniiiinininnnns 680 teeviiiinininns 556
..... 93 i 229 ieeviiiinininns (137)
..... 1,906 cevniiiinininnnns [0 N 1,106
..... 4,755 ciiiiininininns (1,854) evevenvennens 2,902

LR R R R A R R B R R N R I R R I I I R I I N R R R R R R R R A N N A R N N N R I I WA I AP )

The operating investments in the Construction area relate
basically to purchases of machinery for Leighton mining
contracts (800 million euros) and Iridium and Hochtief
concession projects (1,121 million euros), while the divestments
relate to Iridium motorway concessions and the sale of Leighton
mining contracts.

In Industrial Services, most of the investments were for
renewable energy projects such as solar thermal plants

(482 million euros) and wind farms (135 million euros),
transmission lines (407 million euros) and gas storage
facilities (68 million euros). The divestments include
renewable energy assets (400 million euros) and transmission
lines in Brazil (223 million euros).

In Environment, 93 million euros were invested in waste
treatment facility maintenance and equipment renewal.

Additionally, ACS invested 1,106 million euros at corporate
level, of which 1,080 million euros relate to the acquisition of
an additional 21.9% in the share capital of Hochtief, of which
3.6% was acquired through the share exchange offered in the
voluntary tender offer completed in February 2011. As already
mentioned, ACS has consolidated its interest in Hochtief using
the full consolidation method since 1 June 2011, having reached
a majority position in the General Meeting held in May.




3 8 Annual Report 2on Corporacion Financiera Alba

Equity Investments

At the same time, it should be pointed out that ACS distributed
614 million euros in dividends to its shareholders.

As a result of these investments and divestitures, ACS’s net debt
at the end of 2011 stood at 9,334 million euros, 5,965 of which
was financing without recourse to the shareholders. 83.2% of
this non-recourse debt was linked to the acquisition of shares of
Iberdrola and the rest to concession projects and the acquisition
of the initial stake in Hochtief.

Shareholder structure

In 2011 Alba sold 5.01% of ACS for 535.2 million euros,
reducing its stake to 18.30% at 31 December 2011. Alba is
ACS’s largest shareholder and has three representatives on the
company’s Board of Directors: Pablo Vallbona Vadell (Vice-
Chairman), Juan March de la Lastra and Santos Martinez-Conde
Gutiérrez-Barquin.

Information about Equity Investments

Shareholder structure
of ACS at 31 December 2011

o Alba 18.3%
Imvernelin, Alcor and Other 13.0%
e Inv. Vesan 12.5%
o Southeastern Asset Mgmt. 7.5%
® |berostar 5.6%
o Free-float 43.1%

Source: Corporate Governance Report for 2011.
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ACS share price performance

During 2011 the ACS share price fell 34.7% to 22.90 euros per
share, compared to the fall of 13.1% in the Ibex 35.

Information about Equity Investments

ACS share price performance
since 31 December 2010

Price per share Source: Bloomberg.

45.00
40.00
35.00
30.00
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Dec. 2010 Mar. 2011 Jun. 2on Sep. 2011 Dec. 2011

=== Price per share (€)

=== |bex 35 (indexed to ACS)
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Historical stock market data
201 2010 2009

Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (million euros)

=0 3794 ........ 38.80 ....... 38.75
LOW tttttiiinnteeiinteeeiateeiineeteieeececsnseeessnsesesnsescsnnstscsssssssssstscsnstscsnnstssnsssssnssascnns 21.75 eeeeenns 28.59 ....... 27.67
ClOSE weueenerneenenneeneoneensonssssonssssonsonsonsssssssnssnssnsossonsonsonsonsonsnssssssssnsssssssnssnsonsos 22.90 ........ 35.08 ....... 34.81
Share price in euros per Share (ClOSING PriCES)  «eveeeererereruerrarernreernsneensaererasesnsnosnsnsansnns 7,206 .oeeeens 11,037 ....... 10,953
Dividend yield (gross, on closing price for the Year) .....cceevervenienienieniiieiiinienienienieeeneeneenees 9.0% .eeueen. 5.8% ....... 5.9%
P/E ratio (0n closing price fOr the YEar) ceeueeeueniereniureirueiraieireerneeraeeerasesnsnsensncensans 71X veeneens 80X vevennn 5.5x

© 0 600 6060000606000 0E0C000OC0 00000 CCO000OC0EI00000C0C009000E00006060000E0000E000E00000E000006000OCDGET
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Through its shareholding in ACS, Alba has an indirect interest

in three listed companies: Abertis, Hochtief and Iberdrola. The
market value of ACS’s shareholdings in these companies totalled
8,038 million euros at year-end, or 6,344 million euros if only
Abertis and Iberdrola are considered.

Information about Equity Investments

o B st ST o.v.o oSN ot
A Infrastructure .e..oeeeenenns CoNStruction .c.eeeeeeecneens Utilities
concessions
Market capitalisation (31/12) vevueeerureereeerneerneeerneeeenneeensnnns 9,576 tererneinnnnn 3442 iiiniiiinannans 28,465
ACS shareholding (31/12) euueuiureinieiiiniiiiieniieiriceraeneaes 10.28% evenvenennnne 49.20% weeninieninienens 18.83%
Market value of ACS shareholding (31/12) veueuvereninieninieninnenennnes 984 ieviinieninns 1,693 ciiiiiiiinenns 5,360
ST [y 3,915 ceiiiiinnnnn 23,282 iiiiiiiniinnnnns 31,648
EBITDA 20T 1euniiiniiiniiiiiiiiniiineiiaeiineeiaccnaccnccnccnnccnncnns 2,454 ..iiiiininnns 1,409 ceviviiniinnnnn. 7,651
Net profit 2011 .eueeiuiniuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieieieieneneneeenenens 720 ceiiiiiiininns (Q10) I 2,805
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Acerinox

Company description
Acerinox is one of the main stainless steel producers worldwide.

The company has four flat product plants (in Spain, the United States, South Africa and Malaysia); three long product plants (Roldén
and Inoxfil in Spain and NAS Long Products in the United States); and an extensive sales network, with warehouses and service
centres in more than 25 countries.

It should be noted that the construction of the first phase of the new stainless steel plant in Johor Bahru (Malaysia) was completed in
December 2011 and the plant is now fully operational. The second phase is currently under construction and is expected to come into
operation in 2013. The budget of this second phase amounts to 310 million dollars.

wwuw.acerinox.es
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Sales by region
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® Americas 46.6%
Europe 37.8%

® Asia 8.8%

o Africa 6.3%

® Qceania 0.5%

Sales by company
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Total 2011:

€4,672 m

® NAS 47.1%

Acerinox Europa 30.3%
e Columbus 17.2%
e Other 5.5%

Information about Equity Investments
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Key operating data
2011 2010 2009

Annual output in thousands of tonnes

MEItNG SNOP +uvtneineintiniitiniintinientietintieteateeeesesonesnssnroncsnsonsonsonsssssessnssassnssnssnse 2,021 ceveeens 2,060 ....... 1,806
HOE-TOllEd PrOUCES evvirineiueniieinineieieiniieinieiiineneieeneeieeneneiesacneeesacseessacnesesasneeasaces 1,779 cevnenes 1,783 ....... 1,628
(00 B oG I T T o1 1,270 ceeeenes 1,291 ....... 1,071
Long products (NOt-TOMNG) +eevevrenrenrenienieniiniiiiiiierirerirerererereeeeeseneensanseneenee 195 weeneens 210 ..oe.e. 141
NUMDET Of EMPIOYEES wevvueurninerniniieiniiieiurtieeuetierutetieenteteesasessssasssssasessssnsssssases 7,358 ceveenns 7,386 ....... 7,328

L R R I R R I R I I R R R R R R N I R R R A R R A A R N R NI N )

Key financial data

In miillions of euros unless otherwise indicated 201 2010 2009
0T (T 4,672 eeueenns 4,500 ....... 2,993
EBITDA «1uettiinnntiiiintiiiinttiieasteeeentesssseeesnsseceenssossnssssssssssssssssssenssssssssssssssssssnnns K7 I 381 ....... (165)
B BT eetiiiiiiintiiiinetiiineeeeenseeoennseosenssossnnscoeennsosennsssssnssosennssssensscssnnsssssnsssssnnss 192 ........ 232 ...eee. (319)
INEE PIOTIE eveeeenererneenrneneeneneerneneraseesnsnernsneansnenssasnssssnesssnsessnsssnsnssssnesnsnsssnensnns 74 verenen. 123 .eeeees (229)
Net €arnings PEr SNAE (BUMOS) +eveurunenrureniureninruenrueenrueetseeenraeensusesnsassnsaesnsasssnssnsns 0.30 cevreeen 0.49 ....... (0.92)
Gross dividend and share premium per Share (BUM0S) «.e.veuveurenrenrenrenrenrenrenreneereeenseneeneenses 0.45 .oueeee. 0.45 ....... 0.45
L0 LR 111 £ 4,071 ceneees 4,240 ....... 3,618
Net financial debt ...evuieiiiieiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it e e aeae 887 teereenn 1,084 ....... 1,075
Shareholders’ EQUILY «eueeeiniieiuiniiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitreeiteaeeeataeeteeneneeasacncenes 1,881 weeneeen 1,924 ....... 1,753
DEDL / EQUILY (%) +evvvveeeurreeesseeeenseeeesseeeesseeeasseeesseeenseeeensseennseeennseesnsseesssseesnsneens 472 vereenns 563 ... 61.3

© 5 600 6060000060600 006006000060C000000CC000000C09000000C000090006000 0600600 00E000060000006000GE600C600G6000LOCIDLEET
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Review of the company’s operations
during 2011

The world stainless steel production rose 3.3% in 2011. The
strong recovery of world production in 2010 (+24.9%) offset
the falls in the three previous years and brought production back
into line with its historical trend, with a compound growth rate
close to 6.0% per year for the last 60 years.

Among the various markets, the strong growth of production in
Asia, especially China, stands out. Chinese production increased
11.9% in the year and already accounted for 39.2% of world
production. Already in 2010 China became a net exporter of
stainless steel, although it continues to import high value-added
products. The clear shift of production towards Asia is leading to
overcapacity problems in other markets, especially in Europe.

The difficult economic environment and the turbulence in the
financial markets seriously affected the stainless steel market in
general which, after a good first quarter, gradually deteriorated
with falls in nickel and stainless steel prices and in demand,

both from distributors and end-consumers. The situation was
particularly negative in the last quarter of the year, exacerbated
by a widespread inventory run-down with a view to the year-end,
especially in Europe.

YL VAR
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Reflecting the trend in demand and the financial turbulence, the
nickel price fell 26.8% in 2011, from 24,960 to 18,280 dollars
per tonne, reversing the sharp price rise seen in 2010. The
nickel price started the year with strong rises, reaching a high
of 29,030 dollars per tonne at the end of February. After that,
however, there was a marked downward trend, until a low of
16,935 dollars was reached at the end of November, followed
by a slight recovery at the end of the year.

All these circumstances made it especially difficult for the
industry to continuously maintain operating profit. Acerinox
has shown remarkable competitive strength, being the only
European manufacturer to post a net profit in 2011.

The announced takeover of Inoxum, the stainless steel business
of ThyssenKrupp, by Outokumpu may be good news for
Acerinox and the rest of the European producers in the medium
term insofar as it translates into capacity cutbacks that help
reduce the excess of installed capacity in Europe.

In this market context, Acerinox’s production levels were slightly
down on the previous year. Production of raw steel reached 2.0
million tonnes, down 1.9% on 2010, while hot-rolled production
was 1.8 million tonnes, down scarcely 0.2%. Higher value added
cold-rolled production decreased 1.6% to 1.3 million tonnes.
Production of long products totalled 195 thousand tonnes for
the year, down 6.9% compared to 2010.

In 2011 Acerinox posted sales of 4,672 million euros (+3.8%),
EBITDA of 341 million euros (-10.6%) and net profit of 74
million euros (-39.9%).

The Company’s operational strength was to a significant extent
attributable to the 2009-2010 Excellence Plan, which yielded
recurring savings of 97 million euros per year. In February 2011
the Company approved the 2011-2012 Excellence Plan, with

the aim of obtaining further savings of 90 million euros per year
from 2013. This plan includes the targets that were not fully
achieved in the first plan as well as other new objectives ones,
with special emphasis on improving plants efficiency, purchasing
management and excellence management of the supply chain.

Information about Equity Investments

At the end of 2011 Acerinox had shareholders’ equity of 1,881
million euros and net debt of 887 million euros, of which 80%
was long-term. The net debt was reduced substantially compared
to December the previous year, despite the investments

made, thanks to the generation of cash from operations and,

in particular, good working capital management. Furthermore,

in 2011 Acerinox diversified its funding sources, increasing its
long-term debt.

Acerinox has the financial strength to undertake the investments
included in the Strategic Plan and consolidate shareholder
remuneration, while keeping its debt at moderate levels.

In 2011 Acerinox invested 177 million euros, 20.9% less than in
2010, due to the slower pace of investment in Bahru Stainless
(104 million euros, compared to 154 million the previous year),
the first phase of which has been fully operational since the
end of 2011. The second phase of investments in Bahru, in a
total amount of 310 million dollars, is currently under way and
the new cold rolling stand is expected to be in operation by the
beginning of 2013.
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Shareholder structure Shareholder )
structure of Acerinox
Alba kept its stake in Acerinox stable during 2011 and at 31 December 2011

remains the largest shareholder, with 24.24% of the
company’s share capital at 31 December 2011. Alba has three

representatives on the company’s Board of Directors: Santos °® e®o
Martinez-Conde Gutiérrez-Barquin, Luis Lobén Gayoso and @ ,0°°°% ..' PY
Pedro Ballesteros Quintana. ® ° ° o
® o .. ([
° e ®
® o e ®
o °
[ ]
L [
® o .
.. %0 ,0 @
®sc00°®

o Alba 24.2%
Nishin Steel 15.3%
e Omega Capital 11.8%
e Casa Grande de Cartagena 5.0%
® Metal One 3.8%
® IDC3.1%
® Free-float 36.8%

Source: Corporate Governance Report for 2011.
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Acerinox share price performance

The Acerinox share fell 23.6% in 2011, ending the year at 9.91
euros per share, underperforming the Ibex 35 (-13.1%).

Information about Equity Investments

Acerinox share price performance
since 31 December 2010

Price per share Source: Bloomberg.
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Historical stock market data

201 2010 2009

Share price in euros per share (closing prices)

3 13.91 ........ 15.38 ....... 15.55
0 Y 8.08 ........ 10.95 ....... 8.00
ClOSE teutineintentintintitintenttetententeatesetasesessesensoesensonsontonsensonsessssessnssessnssnscnsonses 997 wevuneen 1313 ....... 14.53
Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (MillioN EUMOS)  weveurenrenieniiniiniiiiiiiiiiiireeeeeeeeeneenees 2,471 wevueens 3,272 ....... 3,622
Dividend yield and share premium (gross, on closing price for the year) .......cceeevevenrenrereneennenees 4.5% cevenens 34% ....... 31%
P/E ratio (0n CloSing PriCe fOr the YEAr) .eeeveureerenrenrenrenrenrerenrerenreereseerensesesesesesenses 33.0X ceureeen 26.8X ceuennn n.m.




4 9 Annual Report 2on Corporacion Financiera Alba Information about Equity Investments

Equity Investments

Prosegur

Company description

With almost 40 years’ experience, Prosegur is the leader in Spain in private security services. It also has a significant presence in other
countries in Europe and Latin America and recently entered the Asian market.

Prosegur currently has more than 400 offices in 13 countries and nearly 150,000 employees.
The company offers a wide range of services to corporate and retail customers, including active security, access control, telecontrol

and telesurveillance, intrusion protection and alarms, cash management, ATM management, secure transport, security consulting and
training, fire protection and residential security and for small and medium businesses.

Of%::0

[=]
Www.prosegur.es n
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Key financial data

In millions of euros unless otherwise indicated 2011 2010 2009
SBIES teuttiti it ettt a e et ettt a et th et e ea st e et eeasaeaans 2,809 ..eennne 2,560 ....... 2,187
EBITDA «nneiiniiiniiiiiiiiiieittittinetinteineteseteseessceesssessessssessssssssssssssssssosssssnssnnsns 364 ..ueen.. 347 ....... 295
] N 284 cueuenen 263 ...u.el 231
NEE PIOFIt «euenernenrerneeriernetierntreeeatreesusessesaseseasasesssonsessssnsessssnssssssasessssnsessnsases 167 weereees 161 oueeee 148
Net earnings Per Sare (BUMDS)  «evuveureurenrenienrunrinienienrirerieerereeeeeresesesesensensenee 2.85 ceveneen 2,69 coueens 2.46
Gross dividend paid Per ShAre (BUMOS) eveuenreurenrenrenrenrenrenrenrererererensereeesesesensenes 0.98 ........ 0.88 ....... 0.79
L0 LR 111 2192 weeneens 1,976 ....... 1,603
Net financial debt ...evuieiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s ae e 360 ........ 174 ....... 234
Shareholders’ EQUILY «eueeeererurueuiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeentaeteieteieieetiieeeeeeeencncncasans 671 weeenees 667 ....... 525
DEDE / EQUILY (%6) v vvveeeennnreeeeenneeeseenseeeeeensseeeeaansseeeeenseeesenssseessannsesesennnseessnnnnees 53.7 veveeenn 261 cerune 44.6
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Review of the company’s operations
during 2011

In 2011 Prosegur posted sales of 2,809 million euros, up 9.7%
on the previous year, achieved mainly through organic growth,
based on the strength of its activities in Latin America. EBIT
reached 284 million euros, up 8.2% compared to 2010.

Consolidated net profit rose 4.1% to 167 million euros. The
lower growth of net profit compared to sales and EBIT is
attributable mainly to a higher tax rate in 2011.

Sales by activity

o Total 2011:
o: €2309m
® o

® Guarding 48.3%
® CIT 39.1%
e Technology 12.6%

Information about Equity Investments

Sales by geography
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® Latin America 54.0%
® Spain 33.9%
e Other European countries and Asia 12.0%
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All business lines increased their revenues in the year:
Cash In Transit (CIT) by 13.5%, Technology by 11.6% and
Guarding by 6.3%.

By geography, sales growth was especially strong in Latin
America, where the increase was 20.3%, compared to declines
of 2.3% in Spain and 0.6% in Europe and Asia as a whole.
Latin America, with total sales of 1,518 million euros in 2011,
accounted for 54.0% of the group total, while the domestic
business represented only 33.9% of Prosegur’s sales.

Again at the level of results, a diverging trend can be seen
between the two geographic areas into which Prosegur divides
its activities. The growth of 8.2% in consolidated EBIT breaks
down into growth of 28.6% in Latin America and a fall of

29.3% in Europe and Asia. It is important to note the high
operating margin of the Latin American activities (14.4%), which
explains why their contribution to consolidated EBIT is 77.1%,
considerably higher than their contribution to sales.

Operating investments amounted to 120 million euros in
2011, 48.1% more than in 2010. In addition, Prosegur
continued with its policy of selective acquisitions in key
markets, having completed 12 acquisitions for a combined
total of 125 million euros during the year. Most of these
acquisitions were in Latin America, although there were also
acquisitions in Germany, France, Spain and Singapore, this

being Prosegur’s first incursion into Asia. A joint venture with
a local operator was established to provide Secure Transport
and Cash Management services in India.

These investments increased the net debt of Prosegur to 360
million euros at the end of 2011, slightly less than the EBITDA
for the year.

In March 2012 Prosegur announced the acquisition of the
Brazilian group Nordeste for 359 million euros, reinforcing
its leadership in the country. Founded in 1970, Nordeste has
a presence in 13 Brazilian states and estimated sales of 345
million euros in 2011, 56% from Secure Transport and Cash
Management, 40% from Security and the remaining 4% from
other activities.

Shareholder structure

At 31 December 2011 Alba had a 10.01% interest in
Prosegur, unchanged with respect to the previous year. Alba
is represented on Prosegur’s Board of Directors by Isidro
Fernandez Barreiro, who has been Vice-Chairman of Prosegur
since December 2007.

Information about Equity Investments

Shareholder structure
of Prosegur at
31 December 2011

0o®%0,
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e Gubel 50.1%

Alba 10.0%
e AS Inversiones 5.3%
o Free-float 34.6%

Source: Corporate Governance Report for 2011.
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Prosegur share price performance

During 2011 the Prosegur share fell 19.8% to 33.79 euros per
share, contrasting with the fall of 13.1% in the Ibex 35. Since
the end of 2008 Prosegur has gained nearly 45%, one of the
biggest gains largest increases on the Spanish stock market over
that period. This excellent performance is due to the continuous
improvements in the Company’s results and its exposure to
growth markets such as Latin America.

Information about Equity Investments

Prosegur share price performance
since 31 December 2010

Price per share Source: Bloomberg.
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Historical stock market data

201 2010 2009

Share price in euros per share (closing prices)

3 46.32 ........ 47.07 ....... 34.80
0 Y 27.25 .eeenen. 28.01 ....... 18.15
LN 33.79 weenenns 4213 ....... 34.22
Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (MillioN EUMOS)  weveurenrenieniiniiniiiiiiiiiiiireeeeeeeeeneenees 2,085 .eveeees 2,600 ....... 2,112
Dividend yield (gross, on closing price fOr the YEar) ...e.veeveuveerenrerenrerererenrerenrerensesenses 2.9% cevennee 2% cuenee 2.3%
P/E ratio (0n CloSing PriCe fOr the YEAr) .eeeveureerenrenrenrenrenrerenrerenreereseerensesesesesesenses 119X vevraees 16.2X ceuenen 14.3x
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Indra

Company description

Indra is the leading company in information technologies and systems for security and defence in Spain and one of the largest in
Europe and Latin America. It offers high value added solutions and services for the Security and Defence, Transport and Traffic,
Energy and Industry, Financial Services, Health Care and Public Services, and Telecom and Media industries. It ranks second in Europe
in R&D investment, with nearly 500 million euros invested in the last three years.

The company operates in more than 110 countries and employs nearly 36,000 professionals. Indra continues to expand its international
presence, with sales abroad already accounting for 43.3% of the total in 2011, with relevant figures in Europe and Latin America.

Indra offers end-to-end management of customer needs, from the design, development and implementation of a solution, to its
operational management. Indra divides its service offering in two main segments: Solutions and Services.

+ Solutions: The Solutions segment includes a wide range of integrated systems, applications and components, proprietary or
from third parties, for the capture, processing, transmission and subsequent presentation of information, basically focused on
the control and management of complex processes. Indra also offers a wide range of consulting services, including technology,
transaction and strategic consulting.

« Services: Services encompasses all the activities involved in the outsourcing of the management, maintenance and operation of

systems and applications for third parties, as well as the outsourcing of certain business processes where technology is a strategic
and differential element.

E:EE

www.mdracompany.com M - PP & n
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Key financial data

In millions of euros unless otherwise indicated 2011 2010 2009
SBIES teuttiti it ettt a e et ettt a et th et e ea st e et eeasaeaans 2,688 evennne 2,557 ....... 2,513
EBITDA «nneiiniiiniiiiiiiiiieittittinetinteineteseteseessceesssessessssessssssssssssssssssosssssnssnnsns 313 weeeeee 294 ....... 327
] N 268 cueuenen 252 .oeueel 285
NEE PIOFIt «euenernenrerneeriernetierntreeeatreesusessesaseseasasesssonsessssnsessssnssssssasessssnsessnsases 181 vevueens 189 .eveeen 196
Net €arnings Per Sare (BUMOS) «.vvuveureurenrenreniunrenrenrerirereeerereeeeereresensesensensenee TAT ceveeees 116 ceeenes 1.21
Gross dividend paid Per ShAre (BUMDS) +euveueurenrenrenrenrenrenrenrenrerenrerereeeireresesesensenes 0.68 ....uee. 0.66 ....... 0.61
L0 LR 111 3,525 ceeneeen 2,976 ....... 2,490
Net financial debt ...evuieiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s ae e 514 ....e.ee 275 .eee.. 135
Shareholders’ EqQUILY..eueeeeeetuteruitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeteaeieieieitieaiaieieteeeeenencncasans 1,067 ...e.e 1,014 ....... 977
DEDE / EQUILY (%6) «vvveeeennrrreeeaureeeseensseeeeansseeeeaanseseeennnseessensssseesannsesesesnnseessnnsnees 481 veeeune 271 eevene 13.8
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Review of the company’s operations
during 2011

In 2011 Indra posted sales of 2,688 million euros, up 5.1%
on the previous year, partly thanks to the acquisitions made in
Brazil and Italy. Excluding these acquisitions, the sales growth
would have been 2.7%, beating the target announced at the
beginning of the year.

EBIT increased 6.3% to 268 million euros due to the major
restructuring expenses incurred in 2010. Excluding these prior
year extraordinary expenses, recurring EBIT fell 6.1%.

Consolidated net profit reached 181 million euros in 2011, down
4.0% on the previous year.

These results were achieved in a very complex industry
environment, with strong downward pressure on prices and
customers holding back on investment projects, especially
solutions development. At the same time, there was also greater
preference for outsourcing of services and processes as a form
of cost saving for customers and stronger interest in services for
the maintenance of already installed applications.

Order intake grew 3.3% in 2011 to 2,976 million euros (46.6%
international) and the order book stood at 3,231 million euros
at the end of the year, up 11.4% on December 2010. This order
book gives a good indication of revenue for 2012. The ratio of
order book to sales is higher than in previous years.

Sales by segment

Total 2011: &
€2,688 m

@ Solutions 67.4%
® Services 32.6%

Information about Equity Investments

Sales by vertical
market

Total 2011:
€2,688 m

o Transport and Traffic 22.2%
Security and Defence 19.0%
e Energy and Industry 15.2%
o Telecoms and Media 14.8%
® Public Admin. and Healthcare 14.5%
o Financial Services 14.3%
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The Solutions segment accounts for the bulk of group revenue,
with sales of 1,811 million euros in 2011, slightly down on the
previous year (-0.9%). This stagnation of sales is attributable
mainly to the fall in revenue in the Security and Defence sector,
which has been offset by the growth in the vertical markets of
Transport and Traffic and Telecom and Media. The lower order
intake in Security and Defence also explains the flat performance
of order intake in 2011 (+0.2%). However, the ratio of order intake
to sales improved slightly, so that the order book continued to
grow, reaching 2,216 million euros at the end of the year (+0.4%).
It is important to note that the acquisitions of Galyleo and Politec
did not affect the results of this segment, as both companies
specialise in service provision. The contribution margin fell 4.8%
to 338 million euros in 2011.

This year, Indra continued to pursue its policy of differentiating its
Solutions offering by investing in all the vertical markets, notably in
Security and Defence, rail transport, intelligent electricity networks
and large systems for the banking and insurance industry.

Services performed well over the year, increasing its sales by
20.3% to 878 million euros. Order intake grew 9.1% to 1,082
million euros, which, given the level of sales, increased the order
book by 46.7% to 1,015 million euros at the end of 2011. The
contribution margin, meanwhile, was up 12.9% at 127 million
euros. These growth figures include the contribution of the
abovementioned acquisitions of Galyleo and Politec, but this

segment has also achieved significant organic growth: +12.0% in
sales, +4.0% in order intake and +30.0% in the order book at the
end of the year.

The trend among large customers towards supplier concentration,
already mentioned in previous years, facilitated the renewal and
signing of new multi-year service contracts in all the vertical
markets in which Indra operates.

Looking at individual vertical markets, Telecom and Media and
Energy and Industry, both of them important markets within the
Services segment, delivered a particularly strong performance.

In 2011 all the vertical markets increased their revenue, except
Security and Defence, which was affected by the budget
restrictions in Spain and the decline in activity in the Eurofighter
programme, offset by an extension of the life of the programme.
In any case, Indra expects the revenue from this important vertical
market (19.0% of 2011 sales) to stabilise in 2012.

By geography, growth was particularly significant in export
sales, which increased by 17.4% overall (+11.0% excluding
Galyleo and Politec), with the strongest performance in

Latin America and Other Countries (mainly Africa, Asia and
Australia), compared to a fall of 2.6% in Spain. Indra expects
international activities to continue to grow as a proportion of
the Group’s sales and order book.

Information about Equity Investments

Indra’s net debt increased significantly over the year as a result of
the growth of working capital and the heavy investments made,
including acquisitions. Net debt at the end of 2011 was 514
million euros (+86.8%), 1.6 times EBITDA for the year.
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Shareholder structure Shareholder
structure of Indra
In 2011 Alba acquired an additional 1.30% of the share capital at 31 December 2011

of Indra for 24.5 million euros, increasing its interest to
11.32%. At 31 December 2011 Alba was Indra’s second largest

shareholder. Alba is represented on Indra’s Board of Directors o® e0o,
by Juan March de la Lastra. @ ,°°°°e, 1 PY
°,° e o
.. .0 °
[
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® Banco Financiero y de Ahorro 20.1%
Alba 11.3%

o Liberbank 5.0%

e Casa Grande de Cartagena 5.0%

® Free-float 58.6%

Source: Indra.
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Indra share price performance

During 2011 the Indra share fell 23.1% to 9.84 euros per share,
underperforming the Ibex 35 (-13.1%) over the year. This fall is
attributable to the slowdown of the company’s earnings in 2011
and its exposure to consulting businesses (highly dependent on
the business cycle) and public clients (affected by the current
budget restrictions).

Information about Equity Investments

Indra share price performance
since 31 December 2010

Price per share Source: Bloomberg.
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Historical stock market data

201 2010 2009

Share price in euros per share (closing prices)

3 15.80 ........ 17.30 ....... 18.20
0 Y 9.74 eeennen 1218 ....... 13.25
LN 9.84 veereenn 12.79 ....... 16.46
Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (MillioN EUMOS) +evvevrenrenreniinrinieiiiiiiiiiiireeereeeeeneenees 1,615 ceveeees 2,098 ....... 2,702
Dividend yield (gross, on closing price fOr the YEar) ...e.veeveuveerenrerenrerererenrerenrerensesenses 6.9% cevennee 52% .uuuee 3.7%
P/E ratio (0n CloSing PriCe fOr the YEAr) .eeeveureerenrenrenrenrenrerenrerenreereseerensesesesesesenses 8.8X verrenes 11.0X ceuenn 13.6 x
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Ebro Foods

Company description

Ebro Foods is a multinational food company operating in the rice and pasta sectors. It has a sales or manufacturing presence in more
than 25 countries in Europe, North America, Asia and Africa through an extensive network of subsidiaries and brands, positioning
itself as the world leader in the rice sector and the world’s second largest pasta manufacturer.

Ebro Foods has a wide range of leading brands. Its main markets are United States and France, while Spain represents a small part of
its business (8.1% of sales in 2011).

The company has undergone a deep transformation in recent years, significantly expanding its activities in rice and pasta through
acquisitions (especially in the United States and France) and divesting formerly strategic businesses such as sugar (2008) and dairy
products (2010). Ebro Foods has been successful in integrating its acquisitions, consolidating leadership positions in these markets
and substantially improving its profitability.

The abovementioned divestments allowed the company to end 2010 with almost zero net debt and the strength to continue to
expand in the strategic rice and pasta sectors.

wwuw.ebrofoods.es M ad OO = n
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Part of this strategy is the acquisition in 2011 of the rice business  Key financial data
of Deoleo (formerly SOS) for 205 million euros, which includes

o . - . I ) In milli f I therwise indicated 2011 2010 2009
activities and brands in Spain, the United States, Saudi Arabia, o N O e 2002000
Portugal and the Netherlands. Additionally, as part of this SAlES wuuiiitiii i e a e s e s b e a e eaa e 1,804 .eennen 1,689 ....ue. 2,198
agreement, Ebro Foods subscribed part of a capital increase for EBITDA trieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeitteiaeeineeiaeeeaseeasesasesnseesscesssssssssscsssssnsssssssssssnsssnnces 273 veevneen 267 .eeen.. 308
cash Cua”ied out by this company at the end of 2010, IVESUNG  EgIT || || ...iveeeeectereceneescssseeseses s ssessesses s ssessessessasssssessessasssssesees 224 o 212 . 240
47 million euros to acquire 3 9.3% interest.

quire 3 9.3% NEE DIOMIt <+ veseeesasesesesesesesesesesasessesesesesessesesesesessesesssesesssessasssesesssas 152 vverene 389 ....... 177
Atthe end of 201‘,‘ Ebro Foods announceq the agre.ement to Net €arnings PEr SNAE (BUMDS) «evueueurunenrureniurentnrerenrueerueeeaeesereeensasesnsesnsesnsaesnsasens 0.99 ........ 2.54 ....... 1.15
buy the pasta business of Strom Products in the United States Gross dividend pald hare ( ) 089 0.70 0.9
and Canada for 50 million dollars. This agreement includes the ross dividend Paid Per SNAME (EUMDS) ceeeeeeesesesscscsscsesssscscsscscsssscsssscsssssscssssesssscsssscssssss 07 ceecenes AV AR .
brands NO. volks and W?Cky Mac, focused mal?ly on healthy L0 T 2,711 .....ee. 2,885 ....... 2,684
pastas. This acquisition is part of the company’s strategy of o
reinforcing its presence through acquisitions in key markets Net finanCial Dt .vuveniniiuiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiir it eiee ettt eteeaeetasaeesaeaenees 390 ..e.eee. 18 evenne 557
and segments. Shareholders’ EQUILY «vueveeeneueniueiniiiiieii i e e e e e e e 1,588 ........ 1,607 ....... 1,298
DEDE / EQUILY (76) < nvvvrrreeeeeseeeaannnserseeeeeesaeannnnseseessessannsssnsseesssseeannsssssssessessennnnns 24.6 vevennn. 11 e 429

LR R R R I R I R R R R I R R I R R R R R R R R R I R A N N R N I A A )

Note: Reported consolidated results. In 2009 the results include Puleva as a fully consolidated subsidiary and Azucarera Ebro as a discontinued operation.
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Review of the company’s operations
during 2011

Ebro Foods increased its sales by 6.8% in 2011 to 1,804
million euros, driven by the addition of the rice assets
acquired from SOS.

Consolidated EBITDA rose 2.1% to 273 million euros, while
consolidated EBIT was up 5.9% at 224 million. The slight
deterioration in margins is attributable mainly to high durum
wheat prices in the pasta business, delays in the Memphis
factory and the adverse effect of the exchange rate.

Net profit from continuing operations reached 152 million
euros, up 17.6% on 2010 as a result of the increase in operating
income and improved finance results, thanks to lower average
debt. Total net profit fell 61.0% compared to the previous year’s
figure of 389 million euros, which included the significant gains
on the sale of Puleva.

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) continued to
increase during the year to reach 22.2%, demonstrating efficient
management of the company’s results and assets.

Sales by activity

Total 2011:
€1,804 m

® Rice 50.2%
® Pasta 49.8%

Information about Equity Investments

Sales by geography
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® + Total 2011:
€1,804 m

e Other EU countries 51.1%
North America 35.4%

® Spain 8.1%

® Rest of the world 5.4%
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By business area, sales in the Rice division increased 13.5% to
921 million euros, due to the inclusion of the SOS businesses.
Excluding the SOS acquisition, the organic sales growth rate

was approximately 3.0%. EBITDA grew 10.3% (or nearly 6.0%
excluding SOS) to 136 million euros, while EBIT was up 14.8% at
114 million euros. It should be stressed that these good results
were achieved despite the adverse impact of the exchange rate
and the delays in the packaging and palletising equipment for the
new factory in Memphis. The return on capital employed of the
Rice division was 18.8% in 2011, nearly one percentage point
less than in 2009 and 2010.

The 2011 results of the Pasta division were affected by the sharp
rise in durum wheat prices, which forced the company to raise
retail prices, albeit by a smaller amount, with the consequent
impact on volumes and the need to boost investment in
promotions in order to combat the aggressive pricing policies of
competitors, especially in the United States.

In 2011 the sales of the pasta business increased 1.4% to 928
million euros, while EBITDA fell 10.0% to 144 million euros, due
mainly to the impossibility of passing on the raw material price
rises to end consumers and, to a lesser extent, to the negative
impact of the exchange rate. Results were also down compared
to the previous year because of the exceptionally high margins
obtained in that year and the restructuring expenses incurred

in Germany. Similarly to EBITDA, EBIT fell 11.0% to 119 million
euros, while ROCE decreased by more than four percentage
points to 26.1%.

Shareholder structure

During 2011 Alba increased its interest in Ebro Foods to 8.1%
through the acquisition of an additional 2.42% for 61.7 million
euros. At 31 December 2011 the investment in Ebro Foods
was the fifth largest in Alba’s portfolio by market value. Alba is
represented on the Board of Directors of Ebro Foods by José
Nieto de la Cierva.

Information about Equity Investments

Shareholder structure
of Ebro Foods at
31 December 2011
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e Instituto Hispanico del Arroz 15.7%
Alimentos y Aceites (SEPI) 10.2%

e C.E. DAMM 9.7%

o Alba 8.1%

® Casa Grande de Cartagena 3.4%

o Free-float 52.9%

Source: Corporate Governance Report for 2011.
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Ebro Foods share price performance Ebro Foods share price performance

since 31 December 2010
During 2011 the Ebro Foods share fell 9.3% to 14.35 euros
per share, compared to a fall of 13.1% in the Ibex 35, with a Price per share Source: Bloomberg.
cumulative fair value gain of more than 46% over the last three
years. The positive trend is due to the company’s strong earnings ~ 20.00
growth, the successful sale of the sugar and dairy businesses
and the company’s ongoing expansion in the rice and pasta
sectors, both through organic growth and through acquisitions, 16.00
backed by its excellent financial position and its experience in
acquiring and integrating businesses.
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Historical stock market data

201 2010 2009

Share price in euros per share (closing prices)

7 16.91 ........ 16.76 ....... 14.52
LOW ttttiintiintiitiitiitiitiitiinetiattiattinttinatenttinttinttentttnttentttntttntttntttntetntetnatnans 12.27 ........ 12.80 ....... 7.92
LN 14.35 weeneens 15.83 ....... 14.53
Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (MIllionN €UFOS) «.euveriureiniuienireiiinieriierreerereeaeensaes 2,208 ceeeneen 2,436 ....... 2,201
Dividend yield (gross, on closing price fOr the YEar) ...e.veeveuveerenrerenrerererenrerenrerensesenses 6.1% cevennee 4.4% ....... 6.6%
P/E ratio (0n CloSing PriCe fOr the YEAr) .eeeveureerenrenrenrenrenrerenrerenreereseerensesesesesesenses T44X vevennne 6.3X eeneen 12.4x
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Clinica Baviera

Company description

Created in 1996, Clinica Baviera is Spain’s leading provider of ophthalmological services for the correction of eye conditions
such as myopia, astigmatism, presbyopia and cataracts. At 31 December 2011 Clinica Baviera had 66 eye care clinics and
counselling centres, of which 44 were in Spain, 19 in Germany, Austria and the Netherlands (through the subsidiary Care
Vision), and three in Italy.

Additionally, it offers aesthetic medicine and surgery services in Spain through Clinica Londres. At year-end 2011 it had 14 centres
in Spain, at which it provides services including aesthetic medicine, plastic surgery and obesity treatment.

Between these two activities, the Group carried out more than 70,000 operations in 2011 and handled more than 120,000
medical visits.

www.clinicabaviera.com M ead OO & n
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Key financial data

In millions of euros unless otherwise indicated 2011 2010 2009
SBIES teuttiti it ettt a e et ettt a et th et e ea st e et eeasaeaans 7 90 ..eenee 83
EBITDA «nneiiniiiniiiiiiiiiieittittinetinteineteseteseessceesssessessssessssssssssssssssssosssssnssnnsns 14 ... 14 ... "
] N 8 tereenne 8 teens 4
NEE PIOFIt «euenernenrerneeriernetierntreeeatreesusessesaseseasasesssonsessssnsessssnssssssasessssnsessnsases 5 teereees 5 eeenee 2
Net €arnings Per Sare (BUMOS) «euvueurenrenrenienrunienrenrerererieerererereresesesesesensenee 0.33 cevenees 0.32 ..uuees 0.11
Gross dividend paid Per ShAre (BUMDS) +euveueurenrenrenrenrenrenrenrenrerenrerereeeireresesesensenes 0.26 ceveuees 0.19 ....... 0.00
L0 LR 111 58 weeenens 57 weeneen 59
Net financial debt ...evuieiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s ae e 5 eeeveens 6 ennnen "
Shareholders’ EQUILY «eueeeererurueuiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeentaeteieteieieetiieeeeeeeencncncasans 24 ... 22 eueeen 21
DEDE / EQUILY (%6) v vvveeeennnreeeeenneeeseenseeeeeensseeeeaansseeeeenseeesenssseessannsesesennnseessnnnnees 221 weeeene 27.3 ... 51.6
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Review of the company’s operations
during 2011

Continuing with its expansion plan in Ophthalmology, the Baviera
Group continued to add capacity in 2011 with the opening of
seven new eye care centres, five of them outside Spain, and

two transfers to improve its facilities and expand capacity.
Surgical capacity in ophthalmology, which is essential to meet
the expected growth in intraocular surgery for the treatment of
presbyopia and cataracts, was increased significantly.

Also, for the first time in several years, Clinica Londres opened a
new clinic in Spain, increasing surgical capacity in Bilbao, where
it was already present.

Sales by business unit

Total 2011:
€94 m

® Ophtalmology Spain 64.6%
Ophtalmology International 19.5%
® Aesthetics 15.9%

Information about Equity Investments

Sales by country

* Total 2011: °
< €94 m

® Spain 80.5%
® |nternational 19.5%




71 Annual Report 201 Corporacién Financiera Alba

Equity Investments

The Ophthalmology area, which accounts for the bulk of
the Group’s turnover, increased its sales by 5.1% in 2011
to 79 million euros, with increases both in Spain (+4.6%)
and in international activities (+6.8%), notably Germany.
This increase in revenue shows the company’s competitive
strength in a very complicated economic and consumer
environment, especially in Spain.

The EBITDA of Ophthalmology decreased 4.4% in 2011 to 15
million euros, with a fall of 7.4% in Spain and an improvement
of 20.2% in the international businesses. The decline in margins
in Spain is attributable to the change in product mix, towards

a greater emphasis on intraocular surgery, and the higher
marketing expenditure during the year. The increase in the
profitability of the international businesses is largely explained
by the absorption of fixed costs as new facilities are opened,
especially in Germany.

The Aesthetics area improved its results yet again in 2011 in a
very difficult market environment in Spain, maintaining sales
of approximately 15 million euros (+0.8%) but substantially
reducing its losses for the second consecutive year to reach a
negative EBITDA of barely 138,000 euros in the year.

At consolidated level, sales rose to 94 million euros in 2011,
up 4.4% on the previous year. In contrast, EBITDA decreased
0.1% over the year to 15 million euros for the reasons stated
previously in relation to Ophthalmology. Thanks to lower

depreciation and amortisation expense and an improved financial
result, net profit increased 3.2% to 5 million euros.

The Company invested nearly 7 million euros in 2011, 30.8%
more than the previous year. Of this total, 71.1% related to
the opening of new clinics and transfers, while the rest related
to the maintenance and replacement of existing equipment
and centres.

Despite the increase in investments and the dividend paid in the
year, the Company continued to reduce its net debt, which stood
at 5 million euros at the end of 2011.

Shareholder structure

In 2011 Alba maintained its 20.00% interest in the share capital
of Clinica Baviera unchanged and remains one of the company’s
largest shareholders. Alba is represented on Clinica Baviera’s
Board of Directors by Javier Fernandez Alonso.

Information about Equity Investments

Shar'eholder structure
of Clinica Baviera at 31
December 2011
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® Eduardo y Julio Baviera 19.6%
Alba 20,0%

e Zriser 10.0%

e Inv. Dario3 9.1%

® Southamerican Farming 5.0%

o Free-float 36.3%

Source: Corporate Governance Report for 2011.
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Clinica Baviera share price performance

The price of the Clinica Baviera share fell 9.7% in 2011 to 6.50
euros per share at the end of the year, performing better than
the Ibex 35, which fell 13.1%.

Information about Equity Investments

Clinica Baviera share price performance
since 31 December 2010

Price per share Source: Bloomberg.
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Historical stock market data

201 2010 2009

Share price in euros per share (closing prices)

3 8.62 tivenen 9.10 ....... 9.55
0 Y 6.29 veverens 587 ....... 6.50
LN 6.50 ceereene 720 ....... 8.00
Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (Million €UMOS)  eeurenreniiniiniiniiiiiriiiiiriireeeeeeeeeneenees 106 veeeenee M7 eeeenee 130
Dividend yield (gross, on closing price fOr the YEar) ...e.veeveuveerenrerenrerererenrerenrerensesenses 4.0% veverens 2.6% ceunne 0.0%
P/E ratio (0n CloSing PriCe fOr the YEAr) .eeeveureerenrenrenrenrenrerenrerenreereseerensesesesesesenses 19.7X cerveeen 224X ceuennn 72.7x
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Antevenio

Company description

Antevenio is one of the leading companies in Spain in the digital marketing sector, currently offering online advertising, affiliate
marketing, mobile marketing, e-mail marketing and e-commerce services. Despite the current economic crisis, the Internet is the
only segment of the advertising market that is expected to see strong growth over the next few years. Antevenio is the only Spanish
company listed on Alternext. At present it has offices in Madrid, Barcelona, Buenos Aires, Mexico City, Milan and Paris.

In recent years Antevenio has substantially increased its product platform, with its entry into the mobile advertising sector and
the acquisition of Shopall. It has also expanded geographically, with the opening of offices in France and the United Kingdom,
acquisitions in Italy and Latin America and, from Spain, the launch of its products in several European countries in which it is
not yet physically present. Antevenio is firmly committed with launching new products and services and expanding its activities
internationally; a strategy that is set to continue in the coming years.

Gross sales reached 24.2 million euros in 2011, representing purely organic growth of 13.6% compared to the previous year.
EBITDA and Net income grew 35.0% and 41.4% respectively, to 3.6 and 1.3 million euros each. The increase in results is due
mainly to the launch of new products and services and improved results in expansion areas that were a drag on performance in
previous years as they were still in the launch phase.

wwuw.antevenio.com M o« OP & n
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Key financial data Shareholder structure
In millions of euros 201 2010 2009 Of Anteoe“'o at
31 December 2011
Shareholders’ EQUILY «eueeeererurueuiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieieeeaeteieieieieieaeaieeeeeeeencncacasans 16.6 veerennn 16.3 ....... 16.0
SAlES tueiineiiteitiieteiee it eeeeeeeaeeaneeaneeanaeaneeanaeanaeanaeanaeanteanteanteantetnteanteantenntenn 24.2 vivennnn 21.3 ....... 171
EBITDA evtentreeuveeenreeseeesseeseeesseesseaasseesseessesssanssesssenssesnseenssesssesssesnseensaesnses 3.6 veeeren 2.7 weeene 2.7 e0%9,
N fi 13 0.9 19 ° ...oooo...
L 00 P P I R 9 eeeeens . PY K ....
°;
Qo
°
o °
..o. N
®e “ceee® o

Shareholder structure
o Alba 20.5%

At 31 December 2011 Alba was Antevenio’s largest shareholder, Aliada 20.2%
with 20.54% of the capital. Alba is represented on Antevenio’s o Joshua Novick 11.9%
Board of Directors by Javier Fernandez Alonso. o E-Ventures Capital 10.3%

o Free-float 37.1%

Source: Antevenio.
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Antevenio share price performance

The Antevenio share is listed on Alternext, a European
market headquartered in Paris and part of NYSE-Euronext,
specialising in small and mid-cap companies. The share price
rose 5.9% in 2011, ending the year at 5.56 euros per share,
outperforming the Alternext All-Shares benchmark index
(-7.5%) and the Ibex 35 (-13.1%).

Information about Equity Investments

Antevenio share price performance
since 31 December 2010

Price per share Source: Bloomberg.
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Historical stock market data

201 2010 2009

Share price in euros per share (closing prices)

3 6.20 ceeennen 6.34 ....... 6.60
0 Y 4.50 .eeeeens 4.26 ....... 4.36
LN 5.56 cecerees 525 ....... 6.50
Stock market capitalisation at 31/12 (Million €UMOS)  eeurenreniiniiniiniiiiiriiiiiriireeeeeeeeeneenees 23 ceeriens 22 ceueens 27
Dividend yield (gross, on closing price fOr the YEar) ...e.veeveuveerenrerenrerererenrerenrerensesenses 0.0% evennee 3.8% cuuenee 0.0%
P/E ratio (0n CloSing PriCe fOr the YEAr) .eeeveureerenrenrenrenrenrerenrerenreereseerensesesesesesenses 16.8X cevreees 27.6 X ceuenen 23.1x
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Mecalux

Mecalux is a world leader in storage systems. It designs, manufactures, sells and provides services related to metal shelving, automatic
warehouses and other storage solutions, using industry-leading technology.

Mecalux has a broad international presence, with sales in more than 70 countries. It has production facilities in Spain, Poland, the
United States, Mexico, Brazil and Argentina and an extensive sales and distribution network, which make it the market leader in
shelving in southern Europe, NAFTA and Mercosur

At 31 December 2011 Alba had an interest of 14.23% in the share capital of Mecalux, 5.23% held directly and 9.00% through
Deyé Capital SCR.

www.mecalux.es n
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Pepe Jeans

Pepe Jeans designs and distributes apparel and other fashion items, being Pepe Jeans London and Hackett the group’s flagship brands.
The company was founded in London in 1973.

In addition, Pepe Jeans is the exclusive agent and master franchisor for Tommy Hilfiger in Spain, Portugal and Andorra and has a
joint venture with Coach Inc. — a market leader in bags and leather articles in the United States - to distribute its products in Spain,
Portugal, the United Kingdom and Andorra.

Pepe Jeans makes the great majority of its sales through wholesale channels (mainly department stores, multibrand stores and
franchises) and its network of own stores and outlets, using third-party distributors to access international markets in which it is not

directly present. More than two-thirds of its sales are made outside Spain, mainly in other European countries.

At 31 December 2011 Alba’s interest in Pepe Jeans, through Dey3 Capital, was 12.28%.

www.pepejeans.com n
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Panasa

Founded in 1968, the Panasa (Panaderias Navarras) group is one of the main manufacturers of fresh and frozen bread, pastry goods
and cakes in Spain, with a unique positioning in its market.

Through Berlys, its main brand, it offers its products to more than 16,000 customers, including bakeries, hotels, restaurants, large
retailers and other food stores, thanks to its broad distribution network covering the whole of the Iberian Peninsula. It also has a
network of more than 180 own stores in Navarra and the Basque Country, through which it distributes its fresh and frozen products.

It has modern production facilities, having invested heavily in recent years.

On 28 February 2011 the growth capital vehicles managed by Arta Capital (Deyd Capital, Deya Capital 1l and Deyd Capital I11) acquired
an interest of 35.68% in Panasa.

At 31 December 2011 Alba’s interest in Panasa, through Deya Capital, was 26.76%.

wwuw.berlys.es n
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Ros Roca Environment

Ros Roca specialises in manufacturing capital goods and designing and developing engineering systems and processes applied to
the environment. Ros Roca is currently a world leader in each of these businesses and exports to more than 70 countries. Since
it was founded in 1953, Ros Roca’s philosophy has been based on absolute respect for the environment and the development of
environmental engineering solutions that will improve people’s quality of life.

Besides manufacturing and selling capital goods covering the entire waste collection and treatment cycle (truck-mounted compactor
collectors, road cleaning machinery and sewer cleaning equipment), in recent years Ros Roca has also, in its own R&D departments,
developed modern systems for the treatment of all types of waste, including waste selection, composting and transfer plants, and
the most advanced, technologies for bio-anaerobic digestion and slurry treatment plants for the environmentally clean production of
electricity and biogas. In addition, Ros Roca develops pneumatic waste collection systems.

Headquartered in Tarrega, Lérida, Ros Roca has clear international ambitions and has other major subsidiaries and production centres
in the United Kingdom, France, Germany, Brazil, Mexico and Malaysia.

At 31 December 2011 Alba’s interest in Ros Roca, through Deyad Capital, was 19.04%.

wwuw.rosrocaenvironment.com M b 9P m n
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Flex

Flex is one of largest companies in Europe in sleep systems, with a strong presence in Latin America. Founded in 1912, it
manufactures and markets mattresses, pillows, adjustable beds and other accessories.

Thanks to a powerful portfolio of brands, including Flex, Vi-Spring, Mash and Molaflex, among others, it is the largest manufacturer of
sleep systems in Spain, Portugal and the United Kingdom (luxury segment) and has an excellent positioning in Chile, Brazil and Cuba.
More than 75% of the Group’s activity takes place outside Spain. It has production plants in Spain, Portugal, the United Kingdom,
Brazil, Chile and Cuba.

In addition, the Group has a network of more than 130 stores under the Noctalia, Plumax and And So To Bed (Europe and the
Middle East) brands.

On 21 March 2011 the growth capital vehicles managed by Arta Capital (Deya Capital, Deya Capital Il and Deya Capital I11) reached an
agreement to acquire 3 26.33% interest in Flex. The others shareholders consist of various branches of the founding family.

At 31 December 2011 Alba’s interest in Flex, through Deyd Capital, was 19.75%.

wwuw.flex.es n
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Ocibar

Ocibar specialises in the development and operation of marinas on a concession basis and currently has several concessions in
operation on the Balearic Islands, notably Port Adriano in Calvia (Majorca) and Ibiza Magna.

In April 2007 Ocibar was granted the concession for the construction and operation of an expansion to the Port Adriano marina.
This extension includes 82 berths for yatchs between 20 and 60 metres in length and a commercial area covering more than 4,000
square metres, making Port Adriano one of the main ports for mega-yachts in the Mediterranean Sea. The expansion has been fully
operational since the second half of 2011, both the marine part and the commercial area.

At 31 December 2011 Alba’s interest in Ocibar, through Deya Capital, was 21.66%, making Alba the second largest shareholder.

wwuw.ocibar.com n
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At the end of 2011 Alba had more than 82,000 square metres
of leasable area and 1,100 parking spaces, mainly in office
buildings in Madrid and Barcelona.

The book value of the properties is updated annually based

on valuations carried out by an independent expert, who at 31
December 2011 valued the properties at 213.3 million euros,
down 4.1% compared to the previous year. Despite the decrease
in value during the year, the valuation amount exceeds the
carrying amount of the investment by 75.7 million euros.

The main office rental market ratios in 2011 and 2010, obtained
from market studies carried out by the main specialised
consulting firms, are as follows:

Real Estate Investments

Madrid Barcelona
NEW OffiCe MENTAIS vvvuereerniniieiuiiiiiniiiiiiiiiieiiieiiieieiettiietteaeeeasneieteesceeasacnececncnees 22.0% ceeveieinininnn +13.0%
AVET3EZE TENE wenueenneeintenneenneeiaeeiaseiasesasesasesasesssesnsesssesssesssssssesnsssssesssssssssnsssnssnnss “6.5% teiiiiiniinnnnn -8.2%
VacanCy rate at 31.12. 20T .eeuneinniiiieiieiieieeieeieeitteiaeeiaeeiaecensesasensesssnssnnsennsenncs A% cevieennnnnn 13.7%

© 5 69060 6000000 E0090 0060609090006 000 0600600000060 00060000060000006000060060 0000600060060 000600600006006006000060GT

Alba obtained better results than the industry average. The
vacancy rate at the end of 2011 was 9.3%.

The gross yield, calculated using the year-end valuation, was
up from 7.06% in 2010 to 7.25% in 2011.

Rental income amounted to 15.5 million euros, down 1.2%
on 2010. The direct costs of the property business increased
3.6% to 2.9 million euros.

During the year, investments totalling 0.6 million euros were
made in improvements to the structure and facilities of the
buildings, as required.
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Auditors’Report

AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the members of Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Corporacién Financiera
Alba, S.A. (the “Parent Company”) and subsidiaries (the “Group”), comprising

the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2011 and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash
flow statement and the related notes for the year then ended. As indicated in Note
2 of the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Parent Company are responsible for the authorisation of the financial state-
ments of the Group, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union and other provisions of the financial reporting
regulatory framework applicable to the Group. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole based on our
audit work performed in accordance with current auditing regulations in Spain,
which require examination, by means of selective tests, of the documentation
supporting the consolidated financial statements and evaluation of whether their
presentation, the accounting principles and criteria used and the estimates made
are in accordance with the applicable financial reporting regulatory framework.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements for 2011

give, in all material respects, a true and fair view of the consolidated assets and
liabilities and consolidated financial position of Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A.
and Subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 and of the consolidated results of their
operations and the consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
and other provisions of the applicable financial reporting regulatory framework.

The accompanying consolidated management report for 2011 contains such
explanations as the directors of Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A. have deemed
appropriate with regard to the Group’s situation, the development of its businesses
and other matters, but is not an integral part of the consolidated financial
statements. We have verified that the accounting information contained in the
consolidated management report is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements for 2011. Our work as auditors is confined to verifying that the
consolidated management report is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements; it does not include verifying any information other than that obtained
from the accounting records of Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A. and Subsidiaries.
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Consolidated Balance Assets
Sheets

At 31 December 2011 and 2010 !':El:o.u.s?!‘fi??f.e!“:qs...........-........................Nco.t?s.-................z.o!I...-............z.o!o..
INVEStMENt PrOPEILY vueeeineineiueiueierieeneiieeneeeinieneineeneaneenconcnnes 5 i, 213,320 veveeeneenennns 221,880
Property, plant and €qQUIPMENt «euvvuririiiiiiiieiiiiiieneiniencinciacencnnes 6 eriiiiniiienae. 11,330 teeenrenrnnnes 11,974
INANGIDIE 3SSELS tuvrnrierinririieiieiiiririiieieinioneierenseessssescessescnsse  seeesessessessens 68 terierierierens 99
INVEStMENtS iN 3SSOCIBES vvvuuerneiineiineiineiieeiineiieeiieeiineeeneenneenns T oeeeiiiiiiiiiane. 2,439,819 cevirrinnnnnnn 2,867,708
Available-for-sale financial 3SSES «uvevverrrnrenieniinreniinrenrieseaceesencansns 8 tiiiiiniiiinaes 206,907 wiveverenronnes 155,802
Other fiNANCIal 3SSES uvvvrerrerieerernrenernsonronssntonssasonsesscasassonsnns 9 i, 101,951 ceeieeniennnen 45,631
Deferred taX 3SSELS weeueeereaeeeeeareeeneoasensonsonsonsonsonsansonsansensssoans 19 iiiiiiiiininns 43,945 ivieiinnionnes 90,435

NON-CUFTENTt @SSELS ...cuverrreeeieeeiennneaceesceocossssesnsnsssscsccsssssasnsnns sessssassssscscss 3,017,340 ....ccevennnnn 3,393,529
Trade and other receivables «.veveeriiiiniiniiniiniiniieiiaeieiiarieeeacnnens 10 ceiieiienineneens 120,359 cevereercnnnnns 75,523
Financial assets held for trading «.voeeeeeneieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies cereieenenenenes 1,779 eevvevninannnns 25,403
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENtS t.evvviriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiieeeenees 12 evieiiiiinenens 325,197 teverrnncnnnns 203,371

CUPTENE 3SSELS tuuuuunnneeneeeeeeeeeeenennnassssceocossssesnnnssssssscsssssasnsnns  sessssassssscscss 447,329 ...eveennnnennn 304,297

TOtAl @SSELS ..ouvvinniiiniiiiiiniiieeineeinecinecenccnnscanscnnscnnscnnscnnscanse  eessecsseensennce 3,464,669 ....coeovnennnn 3,697,826
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities

e oo L.
I T o o | e L 58,300 .eevnrerennnne 59,330
RetaiNed €arNINES cvvevrieriaririieiiriieiireiieieiieeineensesssssescsssescasee  secesessesssssens 3,630,812 everenrennnnns 3,443,161
TIEBSUMY SHATES +eueeuenreurenreneenreneenrenseneensensensenssnssnsenssnsenssnns 13 eereeeeenenees (2,976) cevevenrennenss (20,757)
OtNEr TESEIVES « e vvveurneneneneneaencecaseesaeasrsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnssanses LK T (619,149) weererenenennns (503,755)
INEENIM JIVIJENG wevreneneneneenerenenenrnencnencnenenensncncncececnenseseanns K (204,672) weeeerenenennns (29,424)

Shareholders’ equity .......ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiiiies eerereeneeeaeaes 2,862,315 .cccveviinnnne 2,948,555
MiNOFity INTETESES vuveuereeiniiueiaiiieieiiiiieiieiiiieinteneeneineenenaceseneee  seceeescencencens 680 eeereniinnnnns 699

Total shareholders’ equity ........ccccvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee cereiecaeeeen. 2,862,995 .cceeeviinnnnns 2,949,254
Amounts owed to credit iNSHULIONS vuvevevnrenirneinreniierenreeseaseesencaesns 17 eeeeieiiieneenens 250,000 .eceererenronns 75,000
Other financial iabilites «veeeeeeereererreerernrenireinieneierenreeseacaeceacnns 9 i, 2,019 ceriinrinnnens 1,936
PrOVISIONS teuuvtieinntiiiineiiiiineieiinneeeiensesiensecceenscccennscosnnssccnnns I T 2,755 civieiinnicnnns 4,434
Deferred tax iabilities «oveueereeenreerurriereriieiarrieieenieeresaenesecnseces 19 eviiriiiininees 38,667 ivevaverernane 45,637

Non-current liabilities ......ccooeeveiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiineeeeeeeeeeanneeeennneee cessscecessececes 293,441 ccvveeveennnnns 127,007
Trade and other payables .....ceeveieieiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieienenenns 16 ceeviiiieennnns 13,627 erveenreennnnne 9,225
Amounts owed to credit iNSHULIONS veveveeereneenrinreneenreneenseacenceacenes 17 eeiiiiiiiinens 294,606 ceeieenionnions 612,340

Current lIabilities .....coooeveiiiiiiiineiiiiieeiiiereeeneeccecnnscesnnsecannnsee  cessssecessscenes 308,233 .ieeeeeiennnnns 621,565

Total equity and liabilities ..........cccoveviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies i 3,464,669 .....cceveenen. 3,697,826

YL VAR
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for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

In thousands of euros Notes 201 2010
Share of the profit/(I0Ss) Of 8SSOCIBtES evvverrernrurernreerneneenrneeeenseennns T eeeeenrnenenenns 247,865 evereenennens 375,148

LEASE INCOME weurueenneeinieinieinteineeieeieeineeinseienesnsennncsnscennconnes 22 eiiiiiiiieenae 15,476 veeveenvennnnns 15,670

Changes in the fair value of investment Properties «....oceeeeeeeeereeeneaeenennes L (9,121) vevreveniannnes (8,388)
Profit/(loss) on disposal of financial assets and other assets «...ceeveveneerenenss 7and 1 ceviiniininnenns 185,283 cerrecessennnns 6,294

IMPAIrMENT Of BSSELS «evevrurururereeerereernenenseensesssnsasasasasasasnsnsnss 6aNd9 ceveveiiiinennnn. 56,484 sivivirinininns (47)
SHAM COSS wuvunrunrnnrnnennrunenraruraeneraeneraeneraenesaenesnsenssasennss 238 cevviniiniinienns (9,572) vevevennennense (9,387)
Other OPErating EXPENSES «eeveeereenenenencnceeeerereeararassssesasasasasnsnsnss 22 eeeenrnenenes (7,539) eveecnnnnanens (7,736)
Depreciation and aMOTtISAON ...veeurureruieiureiiireienrareniusenesenensenes ceecensasensasens (998) creenranenrans (1,007)
Operating Profit/(I0SS) .. ccuveereiueiuiiniiiiieiiieieeerneenerneenerneenees eeseeneeneennens 471,878 ceeeeninnnens 370,547
FINANCE INCOME «evvireniiiininiininineieinieierneieierneieeeenciecasacecacncnees 23b ceveiiiniiannen 19,040 .evevevnennnnns 34,177
Finance costs and exchange differenCes v..vuveuvuveireiininiiniieiiiiiiiiiiies ceereveieneaeens (21,879) ceerrevnnennans (23,356)
Change in fair value of financial iINStrUMENTS «..eeeveiniieininiieiiiiieineneennnes 23.C ceeniieininiiens (6,195) vevrerensannnes

Net financial inCOME/(EXPENSE) ....vurrrrrniuiiniiiiiiiiierieiierieeierneenees ceeneencencencens (9,034) ...cceuenenne. 10,821

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing activities ..........cccceeuveuirnciies cevecenceneennnns 462,844 ..ceuvrennnnnn. 381,368
COrporate iNCOME taX EXPENSE +veveverenenencnererarerarassssnsesasasasasnsnsnns 19 teeereereereenes (55,114) veveurecenanens 39,617

Profit/(loss) from continuing aCtiVities ..........cccceeuviuiruiiniiniincrieies ceeecenceneenenn 407,730 evuvneinnnnnnn 420,985
Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year ..........cccceiiiiiiniiiiiniiniiiiiees ceeeeeneeneennens 407,730 .ceceninennnns 420,985
Profit/(loss) attributable to MINOMItY INETESLS vevvuveriurenenrureniureniriieienes ceeenvecensanens 1,556 cevieranensanes 1,615

Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the group ..............  coocceevenennnn. 406,174 ...cuvuenunnen. 419,370
Average number of shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares) .. veceeeeennneenns 58,363,359 .iverierenrnnns 59,271,325

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EUr0S/Share) ...cecevveveiuveiureiiinnes ceevenveceneanens 6.96 teruririnnenias 7.08
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

In thousands of euros Notes 201 2010
Consolidated profit/(loss) per income Statement ...........cccceeveuiiiiics cevecenreneennens 407,730 .evuvurennnnnn 420,985

Income and expenses recognised directly in equity

Avrising from valuation of financial INSITUMENTS .eeuveuviniiniiniiiiiiiiiiiiies ceveeienceaenees (237,439) evenrenrnnnens (153,681)
Arising from iNVEStMENts iN 8SSOCIES +vvuvururernrerereeeaeaseraeornnnnnes T eevvvnrnennes (237,439) eeererenenenens (153,681)
Other adJUSIMENTS «.cuverinieieniuiiiieiiiriiiiriieiiureiereieraeesacensase cesecencasencases (101) veuvenracennans (110)
Total income and expense recognised directly in €quUity .......ccccoveveies ciiiieiiincennnn. (237,540) cevuvnrennnnnnn (153,791)
Total comprehensive iNCOME ........cceiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiess ceveeecnscscnees 170,190 ..cccvvvenennn. 267,194
Attributable to the Parent .cvevveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiecienieess ceseeecescescaees 168,634 cevvereerenrnns 265,579
Attributable to MINOTIty INTErEStS vevverrererniieieieeiiierniieieeeeiiiereieceess cecnevecscncncns 1,556 ceeneeecacnnnnes 1,615
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Statement of Changes in
Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity

for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Share Retained Treasury Other Interim Shareholders’ Minority sharehol:::':l’

In thousands of euros capital earnings shares reserves dividend equity interests equity

Balance at 1January 2010 ........c.eeuviuiiniiniinienienieneenieneennenenes 60,760 ......... 3,172,511 ......... (31,401) ...... (384,973) ........ (30,050) ....... 2.786,847 .......... 705 ........ 2,787,552
Changes in consolidated equity of associates (NOtE 7) «.euveunenrinennennenns eeeenes (34,899) ........ eeeeens (118,782) «e..... " eeeeees (153,681) ......... " eeeenes (153,681)
OhEr «evuiiniiniiniiiiiiiiitir et e eaeeae e eaeanes Cveeenes (110) weveenes Cveenes ©veeeens ©eenees (110) ceeneenne Ceeeaes (110)
Profit fOr the YEar «eueeeveieieiiieiuiiniieiiiiiiuriieiierineeesareceecncenes eeeeees 419,370 ......... - eeeees © ereeeees © eveeees 419,370 ccueenene 1,615.00cuueee 420,985
Total income and expenses for the YEar .....eveveveverereneieneneenienenns - eeeenees 384,361 cvenenn. - veeens (118,782) ........ - eeeees 265,579 ceueennnn 1,615.0ueenen. 267,194
Interim dividend for the previous Year «....ceveeveeuieninieiiniiiininieneneans e (30,050) ........ eeeens ©veeenes 30,050 ....... N Cveeenes -
Dividends paid during the year (NOte 3) «.ceuveuiuniuniuninniueuninieunennenes Ceeeeae (29,645) ........ Ceeeens ST (29,424) ....... (59,069) ......... (1,621)..cueee (60,690)
Redemption of Capital «.uevveriuiiiiniiiiniuiiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeaens (1,430) ........ (54,016) ..uv..e. 55,446 ....... ST e CN Ceeeenes -
Purchase of own shares (NOte 13) vuueueuruninruieninieniieninrnieraeennnnens Ceereaees Ceeeeeees (44,802) ...... ©eeeees Ceeeeees (44,802) ......... Ceeeenes (44,802)
Balance at 31 December 2010 ........ccceuiiniiniiniiniiniinciescacaesanens 59,330 ......... 3443161 ......... (20,757) ...... (503,755) ........ (29,424) ....... 2,948,555.......... 699......... 2,949,254
Changes in consolidated equity of associates (NOte 7) w.euvevreuninnennennenns Ceeeeae (122,045) ........ Ceeeens (115,394) ........ Ceeeees (237,439) ......... Cveeenes (237,439)
[T © eeeeeees (101) ........ LTI ST S eeeees (101) eeenennnn EIETTTIN (101)
Profit fOr the Year ..eeeveeveieiiiiiuiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiniieeneenenees S eeeeeeees 406,174 ......... eeeeeee < eeeseens © eeeene 406,174 .......... 1,556......... 407,730
Total income and expenses for the Year w..ceeeeeeeeieiniieieieenineinineenns eeereees 284,028 ......... eeeeens (115,394) ........ © eveeees 168,634 .ccuuuene 1,556.c00uuee. 170,190
Interim dividend for the previous year (NOte 3) e.cuverinrenenreinraienianens Ceeeaees (29,424) ........ Ceeens ©eeenes 29,424 ....... N Ceeeenes -
Dividends paid during the year (NOte 3) «euueureenrureninreninraienraieneanens Cveeaees (29,113) ........ Ceeens ©veeaes (204,672) ....... (233,785) ... (1,575)........ (235,360)
Redemption Of CAPItAl «evverreeeeeeeerererrrernenenenenenencncncececeanannns (1,030) «eveeens (37,840) ........ 38,870 ....... ©eeeeeees © eeeens S PPN -
Purchase of own shares (NOte 13) vuueueuruiniuieninieninienireiinrueeneaeens e e (21,089) ...... ST ©eeeeees (21,089) ......... Cveeaes (21,089)
Balance at 31 December 2011 .......ccccieiuiniiiiiiniiiininiiiieiniieennnes 58,300 ......... 3,630,812 ......... (2,976) ...... (619,149)........ (204,672) ....... 2,862,315.......... 680 ........ 2,862,995
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Consolidated Cash Flow
Statements

for the years ended 31 december 2011 and 2010
(Note 28)

In thousands of euros

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

201 2010

Operating activities

Profit/(10ss) fOr the YEar ....cuveveeieieiieiiireiiiiniiiiiieiieiieireieeanens

Adjustments to profit/(loss)
Depreciation and amortisation ...

Changes in the fair value of investment properties .......oceeeeeevecarnens

Share of the profit/(I0s) Of 8SSOCIBES «.vveverereernrurenrueeernreaenraaenns

Profit/(l0ss) on assets «....ceueenns
Finance income .......cceceeeeeee
Finance Costs c..eevveenneinnennnnn.
Change in fair value of financial insti
Corporate income tax paid ........

TUMENES teveeeeererennnnnnieeeceneanans

Other cash flows from operating activities

Purchases of equity investments ..
Sales of equity investments .......

Purchases of investment properties

Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets .........

Purchases/sales of financial assets
Dividends received ....oeevvnennnns
Changes in working capital ..........
Payments on account of corporate in
Other ittms cueveeeverneieenenennnes

Net cash from operating activities

..........................................
COME X tevvevennnnnieneeeeeenannnnnnns

.................

406,174 cevueeereennnn 419,370
998 terureererennns 1,007
9,121 veeerrenoaeeens 8,388
(241,865) vevrvenrensenss (375,148)
(241,767) ceverneerennnns (6,051)
(19,040) ceverrnneeanns (34,177)
21,879 ceeernneeennnnns 23,356
6,195 ceererrnnnarenns
55,114 cevereererennes (39,617)
(137,317) cereevnneennens (126,991)
535,160 ceeerernneaaaees 18,309
(561) ceverrnneaneens (1,118)
(126) cevevvnnenennn (109)
21,280 cevevneereennnns (116,941)
170,760 cevenneereeennns 189,189
................ 7,029
(64,390) cererrnnenannn
652 vereueerernnnns (889)
522,267 .cuvueenenennn. (34,393)
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

>>

In thousands of euros Notes 201 2010

Investing activities
PUFCh3SES Of OWN SNBMES vvvvvurenrneeneneeenenrerencncesenencesencncsencnsnnes 13 eeeneeeceenenees (21,089) cereeececnnnnes (44,802)
Net cash from investing activities.........cccveviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies errereneeenenee, (21,089) .............. (44,802)

Financing activities

DY TQ [T e 3o T 1 R K, (233,785) vevneeranenrans (59,069)
NEtINErESt PAId «uveverrureniureireienraieiiieirenereeesasensueensnsenens  ceveasesenseccnss (2,839) vevrerenrannnns 10,886
Movements in bank bOMMOWINGS «.ucvveuiuiiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiise ceveavecenceeenes (142,734) cevenrenvunnans 49,376
Net cash from financing activities ..........cccocviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies civiiieieaeaenes (379,358) .eevenrenennnn 1,193
Increase/(decrease) iN NEt CaSh .......c.ceveeiienineniieieiieieieiceeee eereeenenencaenes 121,820 .cueuverennnnnns (78,002)
Cash and cash equivalents at 01/01 (NOt€ 12) veueurureniuieninreiireieirienens cevenvenensenenes 203,371 ceverenrunennans 281,373
Cash and cash equivalents 8t 31/12 (NOtE 12) veueururenrueenrurneerneenrasacees ceveneecessncenes 325,197 cerieceneennnns 203,371
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2011
1. Business activities

Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A. (Alba), headquartered in
Madrid, Spain, has significant holdings in various companies in
different industries, as detailed below. Its basic activities also
include property leasing and private equity investment.

Given the nature of its business activities, Alba has no
environmental liabilities, expenses, assets, provisions or
contingencies that could be significant in relation to its net
assets, financial situation or results. For that reason, these notes
to the consolidated financial statements contain no specific
disclosures on environmental matters.

2. Basis of Presentation of the
consolidated financial statements

2.1. Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of Alba for the year ended
31 December 2011 were prepared and authorised for issue by
the Board of directors at its meeting held on 26 March 2012 and
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union,
as required by Regulation (EC) 1606/2002 of the European
Parliament and Council, of 19 July, and subsequent amendments
thereto, so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated net
assets and financial position of Alba at 31 December 2011 and
of its consolidated results of operations, changes in net assets
and cash flows for the year then ended.

The accounting principles and valuation rules used are described
in Note 4 to these consolidated financial statements. No
obligatory accounting principle or valuation rule that might have
a material impact on these consolidated financial statements has
been omitted in their preparation.

For comparison, the figures in these consolidated financial
statements are presented together with the figures for the
previous year.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

The accounting policies used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
the same as those used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, except for
the following standards and interpretations, which are applicable
to financial years starting on or after 1 January 2011, inclusive:

+ |AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”.

« IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments”.

+ |FRIC 14 “Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement”.
+ Improvements to IFRS (May 2010).

The application of these amendments and interpretation has had
no significant impact on these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early-adopted any published standard,
interpretation or amendment that is not yet in force.

The Group is currently assessing the effect that the following
amendment, which has been published by the IASB and enacted
by the European Union but is not yet applicable, could have on
the Group’s accounting policies, financial position or results:

YL VER
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« Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”,
applicable to financial years starting on or after 1 July 2011.

At the date of publication of these consolidated financial
statements, the following standards and amendments had been
published by the IASB but were not mandatory and had not
been approved by the European Union:

+ Amendment to IAS 12 “Deferred tax — Recovery of
underlying assets”, applicable to financial years starting on or
after 1 January 2012.

« Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”, applicable to financial years starting
on or after 1 July 2012.

+ IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” and amendments to IFRS
9 and IFRS 7 “Mandatory effective date and transition
disclosures”, applicable to financial years starting on or after
1 January 2015.

-+ IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”, applicable to
financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

+ IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, applicable to financial years
starting on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of interest in other entities”, applicable
to financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”, applicable to financial
years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

Revised IAS 19 “Employee benefits”, applicable to financial
years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

Revised IAS 27 “Separate financial statements”, applicable to
financial years starting on or after 1 January 2013.

Revised IAS 28 “Investments in associates and joint
ventures”, applicable to financial years starting on or after 1
January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 32 “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”, applicable to financial years starting on or
after 1 January 2014.

Amendments to IFRS 7 “Disclosures - Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities”, applicable to financial years
starting on or after 1 January 2013.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

The Group is currently analysing the impact that application of
these standards, amendments and interpretations could have.
Based on the analyses carried out to date, the Group considers
that application of these standards and amendments in the
period of initial application will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of euros unless indicated otherwise.

In relation to the deferral of payment to suppliers in commercial
transactions, the Resolution of 29 December 2010 of the
Institute of Accounting and Auditing (ICAC) on the information
to be disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
in relation to deferrals of payment to suppliers in commercial
transactions was applicable for the first time in financial

year 2010. In accordance with the provisions of the Second
Transitional Provision of said Resolution, in the first year of
application of this Resolution the Company supplied exclusively
information regarding the amount of the outstanding balance
payable to suppliers that at the end of said year had been
deferred beyond the legal limit.

Financial year 2011 is therefore the first year in which Alba has
presented information about: i) the total amount of payments
made to suppliers during the year, stating separately those
that have exceeded the legal limits for deferral; ii) the weighted
average time by which payment has been deferred beyond the

YL VER
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legal limit; and iii) the amount of the outstanding balance payable
to suppliers which at year-end has been deferred beyond the
legal limit. Accordingly, the information presented in 2010, in
first-time application, is not comparable with the information
presented in relation to the present year.

2.2. Use of judgments and estimates in the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements

In preparing certain information included in these consolidated
financial statements, judgements and estimates are used
based on assumptions that affect the application of accounting
principles and rules and the carrying amounts of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and commitments. The most
significant estimates used in preparing these consolidated
financial statements concern:

Impairment losses and the useful lives of tangible assets
(Note 4.b).

The testing of consolidation goodwill for impairment
(Note 4.c).

The fair value of certain non-traded assets (see Note 4.d)

The estimates and assumptions used are reviewed regularly. If
estimates were to change as a result of such reviews or future
events, the effect of the change would be recorded in the
consolidated income statement for that period and successive
periods, in accordance with IAS 8.

2.3. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are companies that form a single decision-making
unit with the parent company, i.e. companies over which the
parent company has control, control being understood as the
power to govern a company’s financial and operating policies.
Alba understands control to exist when it holds a majority of the
voting rights in a company, has the power to appoint or remove

a majority of the directors, controls a majority of the voting rights

under agreements with other shareholders, or has appointed a
majority of the directors exclusively through its votes.

On acquisition of a subsidiary, the subsidiary’s assets and
liabilities are measured at their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as
goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. any discount
on acquisition) is credited to profit and loss in the period of
acquisition.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

The interest of minority shareholders in the Group’s net assets
and profit for the year is presented under “Minority interests”
in Total Equity in the consolidated balance sheet and “Profit
attributable to minority interests” in the consolidated income
statement, respectively.

In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
the Group companies have been consolidated by the full
consolidation method and all their assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and cash flows have been included in the consolidated
financial statements, after adjustments and eliminations relating
to intragroup transactions.
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The information for 31 December 2011 and 2010 is

shown below:
Shareholders’
Net carrying equity before
% ownership  amount before undistributed Profit/
Subsidiary Activity Years interest consolidation profit (loss)
Alba Participaciones, S.A. ...... Securities investment .... 2011 .......... 100.00 evvunnnnnn 117,633 eviennnnn 2,114,147 ...... 423,600
Castell6, 77, 5° planta 2010 .eveennnns 100.00 «.eeennnnnn 17,633 .eenneeen 2,135,998 ...... 208,148
28006-Madrid
Artda Capital, Sociedad Gestora de ...... Venture capital..... b 62.50 ceeuinnnns 1,156 cevenennnn 1,722 ...... 4,150
Entidades de Capital Riesgo, S.A. management 2010 ceueeneens 62.50 ceeuinninns 1,156 cevenennn 1,722 ...... 4,307
Pza. Marqués de Salamanca, 10 company
28006-Madrid
Balboa Participaciones, S.A.U. ... Securities investment .... 2011 .......... 100.00 ........... 8,929 .evuennnn. 16,057....... (7,128)
Castelld, 77, 5° planta 2010 ceveeneens 100.00 ........... 5,000 ..cueenee 4,946 ...... 1,115
28006-Madrid
Deya Capital, S.C.R. de Régimen....... Private equity .... 2011 .......... 100.00 «.eeennnnnn 184,255 .......... 190,281 ...... (4,212)
Simplificado, S.A. company 2010 .eveeennn. 100.00 ceveennnnn 133,321 evennnenn 137,530 ...... (4,235)

Pza. Marqués de Salamanca, 10
28006-Madrid

R R I R I I I I R O I I N I R I N R N I R I N I N R O I A I N A I A R A A I AP N I N I T S I AP )

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

In 2010 the company Balboa Participaciones, S.A.U., owned
entirely by Alba Participaciones, S.A., was incorporated.

Ernst & Young is the auditor of Alba Participaciones, S.A.,
Dey3 Capital, S.C.R. de Régimen Simplificado, S.A. and
Artd Capital, S.G.E.C.R., S.A.




1 00 Annual Report 2omn Corporacién Financiera Alba

Consolidated Financial
Statements

2.4. Associates

Associates are companies over which Alba has significant
influence, even if it holds less than 20% of the voting power.

In order to ascertain the existence of significant influence,

the parent company takes into account, among other factors,
representation on the Board of Directors, participation in policy

making and the duration of the shareholding.

The information for 2011 and 2010 is shown below:

Associate / Auditor

Registered address

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Acerinox, S.A. .....cciiiiiiinnnen.
KPMG Auditores

ACS, Actividades de ...............
Construccion y Servicios, S.A.
Deloitte

Antevenio, S.A. ......ccciiiinnnnnn.
BDO Audiberia

Clinica Baviera, S.A. ...............

Ernst & Young

Ebro Foods, S.A. .........cceeene.
Deloitte

Indra Sistemas, S.A. ...............
KPMG Auditores

Prosegur, .......ccceviiiiininnnnnn.
Compaiiia de Seguridad, S.A.
KPMG Auditores

Santiago de Compostela, 100
(Madrid)

Avda. de Pio XII, 102
(Madrid)

Marqués de Riscal, 11
(Madrid)

Paseo de la Castellana, 20
(Madrid)

Paseo de la Castellana, 20
(Madrid)

Avda. de Bruselas, 35
(Alcobendas - Madrid)

Pajaritos, 24
(Madrid)

7% ownership interest

Activity At 31-12-2011 At 31-12-2010

................ Manufacture and sale of ...cceveeeees 2424 ... 2424
stainless steel products

................ Construction .....ceeeeeeee. 1830 ..... 23.31
and services

................ Internet ......eeeeee.. 2054 ... 20.54
advertising

................ Ophthalmic and cosmetic ........cccee. 20.00 .....  20.00
medical services

................ Food ceevevninnnnns 812 ..... 5.70

................ New technologies ..............  11.32 .....  10.02

................ Security, cash ...ceeveeeeeee 10.01 ..... 10.01

transport and alarms

© 5 690 60 0P ELEI0P00E0EI00ODETOLO0CETL00O0ET00E0000C00000ET00E0OC00P0E00E0C000E00000006006000ONDGT
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During 2011, 2.42% of Ebro Foods, S.A. and 1.30% of Indra
Sistemas, S.A. were acquired. The interest in ACS, Actividades
de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. decreased as a result of the
sale of 5.01%.

During 2010, 1.85% of Clinica Baviera, S.A. and 5.70% of

Ebro Foods, S.A. were acquired. The interest in ACS, Actividades
de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. decreased as a result of the
sale of 0.17%.

3. Allocation of profit

The proposed allocation of profit for 2011, which the Board
of Directors will submit to the General Meeting for approval,
and the allocation of profit for 2010 approved by the General

Meeting are as follows:

LR R R R A I B R I I R R R I I R R I R I I I R I N R R R R R I R R A I A A N N R N N NN

Consolidated profit for the year

Profit to be allocated

Allocation

To retained €arNINGS «eveverererirenreneereneenreneeneencencnssnces
TO dIVIdENAS vevvvniniieininiieiniiiiiiniiiieiniieiieneneiecnenennens

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

201 2010
406,174 cieevevieciannnnns 419,370
230,778 aeevreracncnnnanns 185,802
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368,217 .eeveviecnacnannns 233,816
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The dividends paid by the parent company in 2011 and 2010
were as follows:

No. of shares
with dividend rights €¢/share €°000

L R R R I R R I I R I R I I R R R R N I R R R R I I A A A R A I A I R I A )

201

Interim dividend for 2011 ..uvuiieiniiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiineaeaenes 58,219,918 .evriiiniiiniinnnnns 0.500 teeviiniiinninnnnn. 29,110
Extraordinary dividend for 2011 ..eoeiinininininininininiiiiiiinieceennes 58,520,545 .iiiiiiniiiininininns 3.000 .eveininiinininnnns 175,562
Final dividend for 2010 vueuevueneieineneiirniieieieiiiieneiecnineienacnenns 58,225,979 iririiiininiiiininns 0.500 .evevnineininennnns 29,113
2010

Interim dividend for 2010 ....eieiuiniiiininiiiiniiiiiiiiniiiiineiiinenenes 58,847,458 ceiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns 0.500 ceviiniiinninnnnn. 29,424
Final dividend for 2009 ..cuviuiniieininiieiniiiiniiiiieenineinrieneeacnenes 59,290,790 ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiniinnnn 0.500 ceviiniiinninnnn. 29,645

L R R R I R R I I A I R I I R R R R R I R R N R I A R R A N A R N A A N R N )
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

The directors will recommend a final dividend of 0.50 euros per
share for shares in issue at the date of the dividend payment.

The Board of Directors has presented the liquidity statement
required under article 277 of the Corporations Law in the Notes
to the individual financial statements of the parent company.
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4. Valuation rules

The principal valuation rules used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

a) Investment property (Note 5)

Investment property, consisting of buildings for lease, is carried
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently, it is
carried at its fair value, as calculated by independent experts,
according to the following definition: “Fair value is the price at
which the property could be sold through a private contract
between a willing seller and an independent buyer at the
valuation date if the property were to be offered publicly on the
market, market conditions enabled the sale to be carried out in
an orderly fashion and a normal period of time were available
for the sale to be negotiated, given the nature of the property”.
Changes in fair value are included in the income statement

for the period in which they occur. Investment property is not
depreciated.

b) Property, plant and equipment (Note 6)

In application of IFRS 1, “First-time adoption of international
financial reporting standards”, owner-occupied property was
recorded at 1 January 2004 at its fair value, as calculated by
independent experts as defined in the previous paragraph, this
amount being treated henceforth as the acquisition cost. This
increase in value was credited to consolidated equity.

The rest of the property, plant and equipment is measured
at cost, not including interest or exchange differences. Any
expansion, modernisation or improvement costs that result
in an increase in productivity, capacity or efficiency or that
extend an asset’s useful life are capitalised as an increase
in the asset’s cost.

The straight-line depreciation method is used, distributing
the book value of the asset over its estimated useful life in
accordance with the following percentages:

Annual depreciation

percentage

Buildings and other constructions «.....ceveeeeeeeneieenenenenns 2t06
Machinery and installations ......cceveveiniiiiieiniiiinininenns 81024
Transport EQUIPMENT «uvevvinreerieeieinieneineeneinennennns 16
Furniture and fiXtUMES «.vuvvuveiieierinirniineeneineenencnenns 10
Computer NArAWAre «.veeeeeeeeeeieirenieneinieneenrensencnncens 25

95 6090606000000 060000606006009000060000600060000060GC0LOLES
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If the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered to be impaired and the carrying value is
reduced to the recoverable amount.

¢) Investments in associates and Goodwill (Note 7)

These items are accounted for using the equity method. Under
this method, the investments are carried at cost, which includes
Alba’s share of the associates’ net assets, plus any goodwill

that has not been allocated to specific items of the associate.
Goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing and is not
amortised.

Dividends received from associates are recognised by reducing
the cost of the investment. Alba’s share of the results of
associates is included, net of the tax effect, under “Share

of profit/(loss) of associates” in the accompanying income
statement.

Movements in the equity of associates are likewise recognised in
the equity of Alba.

The fair value of the equity interest has been estimated in

order to assess the need to adjust the carrying amount of the
investment. In accordance with IAS 36, fair value is the higher of
the asset’s quoted market price at year-end and its value in use.
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In 2011 the associated companies whose market price at year-
end is less than their book value are Acerinox, S.A., Clinica
Baviera, S.A. and Indra Sistemas, S.A. In these cases the fair
value has been calculated using the discounted cash flow
method, subsequently deducting the value of net debt and
minority interests.

c.1) Acerinox, S.A.
The projection period used is 2012 to 2014. The residual value
has been calculated based on the flow of the last projected year

with a growth rate (in perpetuity) of 2.5% per year

The projected cash flows have been discounted at a rate of
8.6%, based on the average weighted cost of capital.

The following hypotheses have been used to calculate the
discounted cash flows:

«  Capital structure: 75% capital and 25% debt
* Equity ratio: 9.8%

« Cost of debt after tax: 4.7%

 Levered beta: 1.22 has been used

« Estimated fair value: €11.99/share

c.2) Clinica Baviera, S.A.

The projection period used is 2012 to 2016. The residual value
has been calculated based on the flow of the last projected year
with a growth rate (in perpetuity) of 2.0% per year

The projected cash flows have been discounted at a rate of
8.3%, based on the average weighted cost of capital.

The following hypotheses have been used to calculate the
discounted cash flows:

« Capital structure: 90% capital and 10% debt

* Equity ratio: 8.7%

« Cost of debt after tax: 4.0%

« Levered beta: 1.00 has been used

« Estimated fair value: €12.29/share

c.3) Indra Sistemas, S.A.

The projection period used is 2012 to 2016. The residual value

has been calculated based on the flow of the last projected year
with a growth rate (in perpetuity) of 2.0% per year

Consolidated Financial Statements
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

The projected cash flows have been discounted at a rate of
8.1%, based on the average weighted cost of capital.

The following hypotheses have been used to calculate the
discounted cash flows:

+ Capital structure: 85% capital and 15% debt

* Equity ratio: 8.7%

 Cost of debt after tax: 4.7%

+ Levered beta: 1.00 has been used

« Estimated fair value: €16.70/share

In 2010 the only associated companies whose market price at
year-end was less than their book value were Clinica Baviera,
S.A. and Indra Sistemas, S.A. In these cases the fair value

has been calculated using the discounted cash flow method,
subsequently deducting the value of net debt and minority
interests.

c.1) Clinica Baviera, S.A.

The projection period used was 2011 to 2013. The residual value

has been calculated based on the flow of the last projected year
with a growth rate (in perpetuity) of 2.0% per year

YL VER
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The projected cash flows were discounted at a rate of 8.1%,
based on the average weighted cost of capital.

The following hypotheses were used to calculate the discounted
cash flows:

 Capital structure: 80% capital and 20% debt

= Equity ratio: 9.1%

+ Cost of debt after tax: 4.1%

+ Levered beta: 1.05 has been used

« Estimated fair value: €13.10/share

¢.2) Indra Sistemas, S.A.

The projection period used was 2011 to 2013. The residual value
has been calculated based on the flow of the last projected year

with a growth rate (in perpetuity) of 2.0% per year

The projected cash flows were discounted at a rate of 7.3%,
based on the average weighted cost of capital.

The following hypotheses were used to calculate the discounted
cash flows:

« Capital structure: 90% capital and 10% debt
» Equity ratio: 7.6%

« Cost of debt after tax: 4.7%

+ Levered beta: has been used 0.77

« Estimated fair value: €16.27/share

d) Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 8)

These include investments in companies in which Alba does not
have significant influence and which have been acquired by a
private equity company.

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised at fair value,
with changes in value being recorded in “Other reserves” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. When an investment
is sold, the accumulated gain or loss is transferred to the
consolidated income statement.

The fair value of investments for which there is no active market
and of unlisted companies is determined using comparable
multiples or the discounted cash flow method, whichever is most
appropriate in each case.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
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Where there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the appropriate valuation adjustment
is recorded. At least once a year all the Company’s investments
are valued individually, using generally accepted valuation
methods, to detect any signs of impairment; and where
impairment is detected, the appropriate valuation adjustment is
calculated and recorded.

e) Loans and receivables (Notes 9 and 10)

The Group values the financial assets included in this category
(Other financial assets and Trade and other receivables) initially
at fair value, which is the transaction price. Instruments maturing
within one year that do not have a contractual interest rate and
dividends receivable and payments due on equity instruments
that are expected to be received in the short term are stated at
their face value, given that the effect of not updating the cash
flows is non-material.

Subsequently, these financial assets are valued at amortised
cost and the accrued interest is recognised in profit or loss
using the effective interest method. At least once a year,
provided there is objective evidence that a loan or receivable
is impaired, the Company carries out impairment tests. Based
on the results of these tests, the Company records valuation
adjustments as appropriate.
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The impairment loss on these financial assets is the difference
between the book value and the present value of the future
expected cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

Valuation adjustments for impairment, and any reversal thereof,
are recognised as an expense or income, as applicable, in the
income statement. Where an impairment loss is reversed, the
revised carrying amount may not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been recognised at the date of reversal if no
impairment loss had been recorded.

f) Financial liabilities (Note 17)

Financial liabilities include mainly bank borrowings, which are
recognised initially at the value of the consideration received,
net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods they are
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate.

Alba uses financial derivative instruments to hedge interest rate
risk. These instruments are recognised initially at fair value on
the date on which the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at each reporting
date. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative. Any gain or loss resulting from changes in the fair value
of derivatives is recognised directly in the income statement.

g) Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

(Notes 11 and 16)

These are assets and liabilities acquired with the intention of
selling them in the short term, including derivatives that do not
qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of these
assets are taken to profit and loss. In the case of listed companies,
fair value is the market price at the balance sheet date.

h) Treasury shares (Note 13)

Treasury shares are recorded as a reduction of shareholders’
equity. No profit or loss is recognised for the purchase, sale,
issuance, redemption or cancellation of equity instruments
of Alba.

i) Provisions (Note 15)

Provisions are recognised where the Group has a present
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
pre-tax discount rate. Where discounting is used, the increase

in the provision arising from the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Consolidated Financial Statements
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j) Corporate income tax (Note 19)

The tax expense for the year is calculated as the sum of current
tax, which is the result of applying the appropriate tax rate to
taxable income for the year less allowances and deductions, and
any changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year.
It is recognised in the income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the corresponding tax is also recognised in equity, and except
in business combinations, where it is recorded as an increase or
decrease in goodwill.

k) Alternative pension plan systems

Alba has outsourced two alternative defined contribution
pension plan systems. The beneficiaries of these alternative
pension plans will be employees of Corporacién Financiera
Alba, S.A. or of a fully owned subsidiary who retire on reaching
retirement age.
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The main assumptions used in 2011 and 2010 in valuing these
commitments are as follows:

Mortality and survival tables ....cceeeveveininiinnen. PERM/F 2000 NP
The interest rate included in the policies .....c....... 4.00% - 6.00%
CPIZroWth eevineininiiiininiininiiieinineiannenennes 2.00%
Salary growth ..eeeiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiene, 2.50%
Rate of increase in social security bases .....ccoeeuee. 2.00%
REtirEMENt 3ZE tevveerrrennreinieinieinieineenneennenns 65

© 5 060060 6000900006000 06060060000600600000006000000G0BOLE

The results of the actuarial valuation are shown below.
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Pension obligations towards current emplOYees «eveveeereeniieeneneennnens
LT (T N
LT N

Fair value of plan asstes (POlICIES) «vvvurerrureenrnrenrurenrnrenenrenennanes

31/12/201 31/12/2010
................................................. 26,635 veiiieienne. 34,216
................................................. 18,615 veveeeeenne. 25918
................................................. 8,027 ceveevinnen. 8,298
................................................. 20,435 ceiiieinnnas 26,356

© 5 69060 60000 E0 V00 0E0CI090ODE00LO0CETL0000ET00E0000C00000E000E0OC000P0E000000006000000600600600000GT

The contributions to the two plans are recognised in the
accompanying income statement and a breakdown is given
in Note 23.a.

I) Equity-instrument-based payments (Note 25)

Alba classifies its share option scheme as a cash-settled
transaction. Until settlement the liability is valued at fair value,
calculated as the difference between the quoted market price
at year-end and the fair value of the option, any change in

value being recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The staff cost is determined based on the fair value of the
liability and is recognised as the service is provided over a
period of three years.

m) Recognition of income and expenses

Income and expenses are recognised when the goods and
services they represent are delivered or provided, independently
of the period in which the associated payment is made, and
always having regard to the substance of the transaction.
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Statements
5. Investment propert, The geographical distribution is as follows:
property geograp Fair value

This item consists of property held to earn rental income. At 31 201 2010
December 2011 and 2010 these properties were valued by C.B,  ©" *" %% "% ¥ % %4t 4t r s e et ettt et e e et st

. . . L . . L T T 173,000 «evernnnns 179,100
Richard Ellis, S.A., which specialises in appraising this kind of
investment. The valuation was carried out in accordance with the 13T N 34,500 cueveenene 36,400
Appraisa] and Valuation Standards and the property observation PalMA A8 MaIlOTCA eeeeeeeeteeeenenneeeeeeeeeeesosssaneeesesssesesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssasas 3,770 veeeennnes 4,400
checklist published by the Royal Institution of Chartered ] N 2,050 wuiunnens 1,980
Surveyors of Great Britain and is based on the discounted Cash  Balance at 31 DECemMBEr ............ccverueruerrerreeientetententestesseeseeseensensentessessessessesseeseensensensennan 213,320 .......... 221,880
flow method and the sales comparison method.

The movements in investment property are as follows:

5 609006060000 00060 0006006000000 000000000000D0DGELODLES

Balance at 1-1-10.....coiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiienieneeeneacnanes 229,150
LT 1,118
Change in fair VAlUE «.vuveerereninreeirnienrneeeanenennns (8,388)

Balance 3t 31-12-10 ....cevviineieeinneeeennneecanneccannanes 221,880
INCMEASES wevnennrinrrenernnenenneineenesneencencencancnnes 561
Change in fair Value «..eveuiuveninieiininiiinieninnenenne. 9,121)

Balance at 31-12-11 ...oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieneeeneacnnnes 213,320

The increases in 2011 relate mainly to improvements carried
out, while those in 2010 related to the acquisition of some
parking spaces.
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The most significant data regarding the leasable area
at 31 December are as follows:

2011 2010
Floor area above grnd IVl (SQUATE MEIES) «.vveeeruereenreernrneeernerraeesnseernsnernsnessasessnssesnsnesnsnessasans 82,267 veverennee 82,267
Leased floor area (SQUATE MEITES) w.veuvenrenrunrenrunrnnrunruranreruneneransnesasenssassnesassnssassnsassnssassnssasens 74,611 cveveenens 74,054
Leased area as % total flOOr 3ME8 uvvvueieieiniieinieieiuiiieiniieiiiniiiieiueitieeneteeasacecesaeieessacsecasncnecnsass 90.7% eeeeernees 90.0%

The expenses relating to unoccupied space are not significant
enough to be worth breaking down.

The income from leases, calculated to contractual maturity,
at 31 December 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
[N ONE VB tuuvnuenaiteeieeereineiaeeneeneenteneenceasenssnsenssssenessssssnssasssssssssssnssssenssnssnssnssnsnsnsane 13,017 wevernnnne 13,195
) e 37,628 wvuranenn 20,370
LT 50,645 .......... 33,565

© 0 600 6060000060060 000060060000600600000066000000 060900000060 06009000G6000 060060000600 00G60 00000600060 0600060000D0GCT

Adequate insurance cover is provided for potential risks
to these assets.
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6. Property, plant and equipment

The movements in property, plant and equipment were
as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Buildings Other PPE Total

Cost:

Balance 3t 1-1-T0 ...ceinneiiiineeeeeneeeeeaneeeeenneeeennnecccnnscccanasecannnee 19,300 ..oneviiinneeiinnnnnnn 2,941 ceeeeiiiinninnnnn. 22,241
INCTEASES weveeereeeeesensnnnneesoceoecassssssssssssssocsassssssssssssssscaasnnnns = tesssssssssceccsscscas 109 eveviiiiiiieiennnns 109
DiISPOSAIS +evenranenruieninreininreiaieiretirtierarerieeearaeraeesaans © reeesrecesiesesiesanes (K1) I (39)

Balance 3t 31-12-10 ...couviiiniiiiiieneeeeeencenconcensonconsonsonconcens 19,300 .cceeniiniiniiniannens 3,011 .oieiiniiniinennns 22,311
T YT © tesesesssssescssssecne 126 ceveviiiiceeonennnns 126
DiISPOSAIS +veeeeneeeeeeaeererarerorerornsesnsesnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsncscnssssssanss © eesesesesesesenrerene (245) ceiiiiiennnnnns (245)

71 ET VTR T K -2 N 19,300 ..coviiiinnnnnnnnnneas 2,892 .cciiiiiiiiiiiiiinns 22,192

Accumulated depreciation

Balance 3t 1-1-10 ....ciiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeneteneeenecenscnnsenascnnsonnans ((3:1:% ) I (2 1:1:) . (9,208)
INCTEASES +vevennenneneeesesesesesasnsnsnsncnsncncsenenenesencnenenenesesasannes (VAL s (176) veveneneneneenennnnn (974)
DISPOSAIS tuurntiurntneinruttieiniitinititieentitiatutitttetieeatatietasnenens C rerereeeereeneeeaes 39 i 39

Balance @t 31-12-T0 ..uvuvniininiierneneireneneenenensesencnssssncnsssencnsancans (X231 ) (2,492) .evvvnenennnnnnn. (10,143)
INCTEASES +vveneenenneeneeneeneaneeneasensensensensensensensonsensonsoncancnnennns (786) vuveenrnrrenenenenns (178) veveeeneneenenennnns (964)
10T 7 © eecececerescasecesnnes 245 ciiieiiiiinieeens 245

Balance 3t 31-12-11 ..oueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeneeneenrencansencanscnsoncncens (8,437) ceveeenennnnnns (2,425) eeininineninennnns (10,862)

Provision

Balance 3t 1-1-10 ...couiniiiininiininineieeneneeneneeeenencnsencncnsencnssencnns (147) eeeieiiieenenen,  eeeeeeeeneneenenen (147)
INCTESES +veneneenenrnsenenssenensesencnsasencnsesencnsesenensnsencncnsenensnnes (47) ceveeieieeiieenenens " ereeecneeeeeencnees (47)

Balance at 31-12-T0 ..oueuinininininineneneeeeeeeeeeeenenenenenenencnencncncncnns (L7 s eeeeeeeeeneeeenenan (194)
D10 7 L © ererecaciereeaenees 194

Balance 3t 31-12-11 ..ciiuniiniiiiiiiiniiieieneionetonetoesoesonnsocnsonnsonnses © reeeessesssesssensinas C eeeeeeeeceeseenans -

NEt PPE 3t 31-12-T0 vuuereeenereeeennccoesasaossassoocnnnccsssscossassosnnssons 11,455 ceeeiiiiiiiiieiinnnnnns 519 ciiiiiiiiiiiiiennnns 11,974

NEt PPE At 31-12-TT 1 e eeiiiiiiieiennnnneeeeeecescoscssnnnnnsassssscssssssnnnnnnnes 10,863 ceeennnnnnneeneeccnnnns 467 ceueneiiniicnononnnns 11,330

Adequate insurance cover is provided for potential risks to
property, plant and equipment.
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7. Investments in associates

The changes in this item in 2011 are as follows:

Changes in

Consolidated consolidated Consolidated Quoted

value Profit/(loss) Accrued Acquisitions/ equity of value market value

Company at o1/o1/u of investees dividends (Disposals) associates at 31/12/n at 31/ 12/
ACETINOX, SIA. tereiieiiieeiineenaeeaneennceanceancenncanns 721,718 cevenvennnnn. 17,873 ceveennennns (21,153) eveveenenennn (6,043) eveeniniinnnnns (4,505) verinennnnn 707,890 cecuvieniannnnn 598,940
ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. ........ 1,557,876 ceevreennnnns 176,075 ceeueeinennn. (118,078) vevevnennnnnns (345,474) wvveinininnnnn. (215,312) ceeenenennnns 1,055,087 cevenerennnnnnn 1,319,022
ANTEVENIO, SIA. ceiiiiiiiiiieiiietiiatiiatiiatiiatenatanas 3,083 ceviinnnnnns 289 iieiiinnnnns N SN . 3,372 ceiiiiiniinenn 4,804
CliNiCa BaVIera, S.A. «ueeereeenenenreecnceeencncsencncnnens 36,905 ceeuinennnnnn 1,086 cueeeencnnns (848) vevveenennnnn " eeeeenreeenenens 19 teeeneeneens 37,162 wevenenennnns 21,202
Ebro FOOdS, S.A. «eiieiiiieiineiennieneronesocnsonnsonnnons 119,975 cevnvennnnn T,181 ceeiennnnns [CIVEX) I 61,747 cevevininnnnnnns (5,804) wevinennnnnn 177,816 eveeeiinnnnnns 179,358
INdra Sistemas, S.A. c.eeiieiiieeeneeanrenneenneenncenneans 258,528 cuiennnnnn 18,608 ccuueennnnnn. (11,183) vevenennnnennn 24,465 civeiiiiiinnnns (1,606) weveeennnnnn 288,812 veveviennannnnn 182,842
Prosegur, Compaiiia de Seguridad, S.A. ....coeuveninenne. 169,623 cevvininnnen 16,753 cevueninnnns (6,465) cevvenvennnnne e (10,231) cevernnennen 169,680 wevvenvnnenenns 208,653
TOtal .ooeneiieiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeneeenaeenaeenaeanas 2,867,708 ............ 241,865............. (167,010) .............. (265,305) ................ (237,439) ............ 2,439,819 ....cccuneen. 2,514,821

© 0 600 600000060 C0P00E0C000C0 00000 CCI0O000CTI00O00C0 00000 E000E0060000E00O06000E0OC00P0O0C00C000000600000C0G60000C0000G60000006000G600600600000C600GCIROETIOITDLETDNTS




1 1 2 Annual Report 201 Corporacién Financiera Alba Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Consolidated Financial
Statements

The changes in this item in 2010 are as follows:

Changes in

Consolidated consolidated Consolidated Quoted

value Profit/(loss) Accrued Acquisitions/ equity of value market value

Company at 01/01/10 of investees dividends (Disposals) associates at 31/12/10 at 31/ 12/10
ACEMINOX, SLA. 4eiierrariorantesenascesssscossnssssnnscns 687,049 ceviiiinnnnnn 29,755 ccuiiiiinnnen (33,240) vevereenennnnn © eeeestcesessennes 38,154 civuiiennnns 721,718 cevevieninnnnns 793,248
ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. ........ 1,590,889 vieennnnnnn 306,792 cuiiiinnnnnn (136,810) evenenennnnn (9,995) euininininannnn (193,000) «eeenenennn 1,557,876 ceveneiinnnnnns 2,572,374
ANEVENIO, S.A. eiiiinnrreiinereeeenscccsnnscosnnssoannns 3116 cevviennnnnnn 142 ceiiiiinnnnn (175) veenereenennns C eeeeeeeecencecnes PN 3,083 tiiiiiiiinnnns 4,536
Clinica Baviera, S.A. c.veeeeiieeiiinieanreanconnsoensonsons 34,094 .ooennnnnnn. 1,044 covviiinnnnns (621) veveeeeenennns W (29) eeerenennnnn 36,905 ciiiiiiinninnn 23,485
Ebro FOOdS, S.A. iiieiiieeiieniecnioceroneronesonnsonnnons 0 cenriennnnnes 2,438 ceviiiinnnnnn (7,037) eeeveenennnnnn 124,574 cevvviiiinninnnns - eeeeeceennees 119,975 evieinnninnnns 138,951
INdra Sistemas, S.A. c.veiieiiieiiineeaereeneeansonnsonnnons 252,757 cevvieinnnnns 18,889 ceeenviennnns (10,854) weveneennnnnnn © eeeestccsestenees (2,258) wevenennnnnn 258,528 tiviiniiiinnns 210,253
Prosegur, Compaiiia de Seguridad, S.A. c.c.ceeeinennen. 155,766 cevvennennnnn 16,088 .ccuvennennn. (5,683) ceuveninrennnn © eeereeeraeeenees 3,452 cevnnnnnnnn 169,623 wevnvennnennnnn 260,153
Total .o eeeeeeeeeaeenaeanas 2,723,665 ............. 375,148............. (194,420) .............. 116,996 .......cccceun.en (153,681) ............ 2,867,708 .............. 4,003,000

© 0 600 6006000006060 000060060900060060000006C60900000060900 000060600000 G60 0006006009 00G600 0060 00G600C000GC0GC00G60 000600660000 0C0GC0C00G000C0G000GC0OC6000G00C600600000GCIRGEIDRROETIETDOIDLOETDNTG

The changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of associates
in 2011 are due mainly to adjustments to the valuation of
available-for-sale financial assets and hedging transactions

and to translation differences; in 2010 the changes were due
mainly to the purchase of own shares, adjustments to the
valuation of available-for-sale financial assets and exchange
differences (note 13).
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The profit or loss on disposal is recognised in “Profit/(loss) on
disposal of investments” in the accompanying consolidated
income statements, as shown below:

201 2010
Selling Profit/ Selling Profit/
% price (loss) % price (loss)

ACS, Actividades de
Construccion y Servicios, S.A. ........ 50 ceeennens 535,160 ........ 187,545 cvnnnnn 0.2 ceeenns 18,309 cevennnnne 8,325

Total coovnnniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies 535,160 ........ 187,545.......... ... 18,309 .......... 8,325
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The relevant information on the companies included in this
item is as follows:

Assets Liabilities
...................................................................... COnsoliduted
Current Non-current Current Non-current Turnover profit/(loss)

Acerinox, S.A.
N 1,819,784 ..... 2,251,438 ...... 1,201,712 ...... 988,318 ...... 4,672,244 ........ 73,726

2010 teveeniieiniiieiieeieeaeaas 2,004,793 ..... 2,235,567 ...... 1,324,428 ...... 992,194 ...... 4,500,467 ........ 122,739

ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A.

20717 teeeeeeeeeeeeeeannnnanaaaes 27,947,941 ..... 20,039,669 ...... 28,319,794 ...... 13,476,552 ...... 28,471,883 ........ 961,940

2070 weveiiieeeeeeensncncancnncnnns 18,189,522 ..... 15,995,005 ...... 18,971,136 ...... 10,771,005 ...... 14,328,505 ........ 1,312,557
Ebro Foods, S.A.

0 849,747 ..... 1,164,337 ...... 545,481 ...... 576,667 ...... 1,804,111 ........ 151,542

2070 wereeieeeeeecenensncancnennns 1,164,337 ..... 1,720,693 ...... 604,045 ...... 673,539 ...... 1,688,957 ........ 388,797

4 . 2,280,704 ..... 1,244,151 ...... 1,830,049 ...... 627,606 ...... 2,688,495 ........ 180,999
4 2,050,691 ..... 898,040 ...... 1,584,106 ...... 350,604 ...... 2,557,042 ........ 188,521

Prosegur, Compaiiia de Seguridad, S.A.
P, 1,091,823 ..... 1,099,741 ...... 829,724 ...... 690,939 ...... 2,808,531 ........ 167,430

2010 teveeniiiiniiieieereeaeaas 1,014,879 ..... 961,340 ...... 873,177 ...... 436,474 ...... 2,560,344 ........ 160,785

2017 ceeeeeiiiieerre s 16,048 ..... 41,807 ...... 16,889 ...... 17,140 ...... 93,593 ........ 5,430
2070 weveiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiieineiae, 16,398 ..... 40,444 ...... 17,16 ...... 17,322 ...... 89,683 ........ 5,220

R R I I I R I I I I I I R R I N R I R R R R R A R R A A A R A A R N )
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Notifications of changes in shareholdings:

Acquisitions, modifications and disposals of equity interests in
companies have been notified in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations.

- In 2011 the Company notified:

ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. that the
Company had sold an equity interest of .................. 5.01%

Ebro Foods, S.A. that the Company’s equity interest had
7 1] 1 1T Y 8.12%

-1n 2010 the Company notified:

Clinica Baviera, S.A. that the Company’s equity interest had
reaChed  .eviieiiiiiiiiiiiicii 20.00%

ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. that the
Company had sold an equity interest of .................. 0.17%

Ebro Foods, S.A. that the Company’s equity interest
had reached.......c..ovevveiiiiniiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiieeannes 5.70%

YL VER
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At 31 December 2010, through a securities loan as part of

the consideration for the Exchange Offer that ACS issued in
Germany in respect of all the Hochtief A.G. shares, Alba had
placed at ACS’s disposal 67,713,138 shares of ACS, so that
ACS could use them. In 2011 these shares were released, as
the securities loan agreement was cancelled. The remuneration
received for this commitment to make the securities available
was 15,231 thousand euros (note 24).

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

8. Available-for-sale financial assets

The composition of this item at 31 December 2011 and 2010 is
detailed below:

201 2010

. % . oummmp ................. Fmr % oume.-sh. p ................. F m .- .
oot Bt AP 4t e SOIII e SOPIPTIL o e ST v o 8
=T U 14.23 oennes 78,983 teiviiiininens 14.23 ......... 78,983
PEPE JEaNS, S.A. «irtiiiniiiiiiiiii i e e aes 12.28 .eenene 37,959 ciinininnnnnn 12.28 ......... 37,959
Grupo Empresarial Panasa, S.L. veeeeeininiinininininiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnes 26.76 .eeuennnn 32,630 ceviiiiiiines  iiieeen
Ros Roca ENvIronmeNt, S.L. coueeineeineeinieineeinieineeieeineeineeceecnees 19.04 ......... 31,013 cevvennennnen 19.04 ......... 31,013
Grupo Empresarial Flex, S.A. «iviieiieiieiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiieiiieiiiiecnieneene 19.75 ceeenenns 18,475 vevviiiivienes teieieens
OCIDAN, SUA. eiiitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieitiiectreieceeraeateteeaenaaes 21.66 ceeenennn 7,430 coiviiiininens 21.66 ceenenenn 7,430
C. E. EXtremadura, S.A. .eueieiuiniieiniieieiniieieineiececneiecncenecacncnns 255 cieenin A7 cvvvniininnnns 255 ciieenens 417
(1 206,907 .....coovveiee eeeeenens 155,802
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In 2011 the investments in Grupo Empresarial Panasa, S.L.

and Grupo Empresarial Flex, S.A. are stated at their acquisition
cost on the understanding that this is the best estimate of

their fair value, these being recent acquisitions. For the rest

of the investments an impairment test was conducted, using
the discounted cash flow method. In the case of Ros Roca
Environment, S.L., a discount rate of 9.1% per year was used
and the flows were calculated taking the weighting according to
the geographical origin of the estimated cash flows and present
market values into account. In the case of Ocibar, S.A., the same
assumptions were used as in the initial investment, updated in
some cases with the assumptions used in the model used by
the lending banks, using a discount rate of 12% per year and
including the flows until the value of the last concession, with
no terminal value. And in the case of Mecalux, S.A. and Pepe
Jeans, S.A., the same assumptions were used as in the initial
investment, updated. As a result of said analyses no impairment
was found to exist.

In 2010 the investments in Mecalux, S.A. and Pepe Jeans,

S.A. were stated at their acquisition cost on the understanding
that this was the best estimate of their fair value, being recent
acquisitions. Fair value was calculated, in the case of Ros Roca
Environment, S.L., using the multiples method, based on
current and historical measures of EV/EBITDA, and in the case
of Ocibar, S.A., using the discounted cash flow method, with

the same assumptions as were used in the initial investment,
updated in some cases by the assumptions used in the model
used by the lending banks, with a discount rate of 12% per year,
and including the flows until the value of the last concession,
without terminal value, which coincides with the acquisition cost.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

9. Other non-current financial assets and liabilities

The composition of these items at 31 December 2011 and
2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
Other non-current financial assets
L0ANS 10 thifd PArtIES vueeeenreneniieinieiiieeiiiiieiiitetiienteitiaeeieeareseeacsesssnssssssssscsssnsassssnsnsnns 100,214 ceeerneene 43,908
Guarantees reCeived froM CUSTOMETS +.ueeueeneenreneensencaneeasescososensonsonsonsansonsansensansssssssssssonssnsanse 1,737 cevevennns 1,723
BalaNCe 3t 31 DECEMDET tuueiuueiineeineeeneeaneerneeeneeanseossesnncssssosssssssssssssssssnsssssssnsssasssasssnsssnsonns 101,951 covecnnnes 45,631
Other non-current financial liabilities
Guarantees given t0 pUblic DOIES vuvuviueniiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirier e e 2,019 ceeeennene 1,936

LR R R R A A I I I R R N I R I I R R R R N R R R R R R R N N A R R I I I I I A A AP )

Loans to third parties relate to the fair value of the amount
owed by Grupo Bergé.
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In March 2010 the obligor signed a refinancing agreement with
a syndicate of institutions, one of which is Alba Participaciones,
S.A., with the following changes being made:

« Interest is payable quarterly based on 3-month Euribor, the
spread being 100 basis points for the first 5 years, 140 basis
points for the following 5 years and 180 basis points for the
remaining years. The initial rate was 1.70%.

 The schedule of payments starts from 2019 at a rate of 5
million euros per year. This loan is expected to be recovered
mainly through the Cash Sweep system, which consists of
distributing the surplus of the cash flow among the different
types of debt in a pre-established order.

In 2011 this debt was valued at 100 million euros based on
the present value, without cash sweep, using a discount rate of
7.60% (10-year EUR SWAP rate plus an implied risk premium).
The recovery of 56,290 thousand euros in value has been
recorded under “Impairment of assets” in the accompanying
consolidated income statement.

Consolidated Financial Statements
Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

10. Trade and other receivables

The composition of this item at 31 December 2011 and
2010 is detailed below:

2011 2010
Accrued and UNPaId dIVIJENDS «euueentiniinieniiniiniieiiaiietietieeieeereneoeententintonsestossesssssessossscnssnscnsns 63,036 ceeenrenns 63,358
Corporate income tax WIthReld .evueeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitieiieatiateataesnssassssnscnconsone 54,560 ceveurnnns 9,925
U Y [ 0 o 2,577 ceenennee 2,067
Prepaid EXPENSES euueneneiutntieiutniieinietieenteiatuteeteenteessuteessateessucesssssesssassscssnsnssssassscnsncnne 153 eeneneee 173
Trade rECEIVADIES tuveuuinuiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiatiteitiiteietiteeeeenteneesteneescestesessssssssssscsssnscncens 33 teeenens
Balance 3t 31 DECeMDEr ...couuuiiiiiieiiiineiieiieeeeeeneeeesnnseeesnnseecnsccosnnssossnssessnnsecssnsscsssnssossnasens 120,359 ..ceneeene 75,523

LR R R R A I N R R R I R R I R I I I R R R I A R N R I N N R A N I N R I I A I AP )
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11. Financial assets held for trading

These are listed shares. The effect that the sales and the
changes in fair value, based on year-end quoted prices, have had
on the accompanying income statements amounted to a loss

of 2,262 thousand euros in 2011 and a loss of 2,031 thousand
euros in 2010.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

12. Cash and cash equivalents
The composition of this item at 31 December 2011 and 2010
is detailed below:

2011 2010
L0 1 A T T 0 N 270,838 veeeenenns 7,242
Deposits and ShOTt-term INVESIMENTS «.vuueueiereineieiuiieieinieieiutieteeneieeerueieeesseiecasaesecesnesecssacsssasnenee 54,353 ceereennns 196,129
Balance at 31 DECeMDET ... .ueineiiniiiniiiniiiniiieieieteaneeaneeanceaneesneoansosneonnsosnsosnsonsonsosnsosnsonnsans 325,191 .......... 203,371

95 69060 60000 C0E000 0060 C090900060000600CE000000600006000006000000600060060000060006006000060060000600600600000GT

Short-term deposits and investments have a maturity of less than
3 months. The components of this item earn interest at a floating
rate based on the interbank rate.
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13. Equity

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s issued share capital was
represented by 59,330,000 fully paid bearer shares with a par
value of 1 euro each, all of which were publicly traded (Stock
Exchange Interconnection System, SIBE ). In June 2011, by
resolution of the General Meeting of 25 May 2011, 1,030,000
shares were cancelled. As a result, at the reporting date the
share capital was represented by 58,300,000 shares.

At the General Meeting held on 27 May 2009 the shareholders
of Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A. granted the Board of
Directors authority to increase share capital one or more

times up to a maximum of 50% of share capital, against cash
contributions, within a maximum period of five years. This
authority has not been exercised to date.

Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A. is 3 member of the Banca
March group. Banca March, S.A. is controlled by Juan, Carlos,
Gloria and Leonor March Delgado, who jointly control 100% of
Banca March S.A’s share capital, without any one of them doing
so individually as a result of either their shareholding or any
agreement among them.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

At 31 December, Banca March, S.A. and its shareholders
jointly controlled (Concerted Action) 70.976% of Corporacion
Financiera Alba, S.A. Other equity interests greater than 3%
reported to the CNMV at 31 December are as follows:

201 2010
BeStiNVEr, S.A., S.G.LLC. weiiitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiittiiiattiiiatttiieetetinstecsnsttsssnstscsnsacesssstscsnsscscnns 2.996% cevennnnnn 3.046%
The breakdown of “Other reserves” is as follows:

201 2010

Due to changes in the consolidated net assets of associates
TrEASUTY SNATES weeevueenrurenrueenrarnenruernsaesnssenesasnsssnesssnsssssssssssnssssnesssnssssnssssssnssssnesssnssnsnns (158,689) weeereees (165,396)
Translation differENCES «eueuerriniiuiniiiieiniiiiiieiiiieiiiiiiiiiieietiieieeneieearaeietacseecaraciesasscsecncncnsnes 8,471 weuerennes 33,444
Valuation of financial INSITUMENES «.uueueurenenrureniuienireireieraeeiureeareerateraeentaeesasacnsaeensasensans (338,607) vuvevenee (281,971)
Change in scope of consolidation and other ChaNEES +..euvueuiureriuieiiiuiiiaieiiriireierieiraeeraeeeaeenens (118,634) wuveeanee (78,142)
Due to changes in the fair value of available-for-sale 3SSEtS +uvuvuvererererereieiiiininiiniiinirnrnrnrnrnsacecececenens (11,690) weerenens (11,690)

L] P (619,149) ......... (503,755)

LI R I R A R R I B N N I I I R R I I R I R I I I I N R R I R R N I R I I I I I A A I AP )
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Movements in treasury shares in 2011 and 2010 were
as follows:

Average

No.of  Percentage of acquisition price
et eteeeeneeeeeeteteeieetreereneeaneeanea.,onares | Sharecapital L ......oEhare LS,
At 31 December 2009 .......c.ocevniiniiniiniiniieiiaiieiiaiiesiacnns 773,387 ......... 1.27% covevvennnnnn 40.60 .......... 31,401
T B YT N 1,257,521 ......... 2.62% ceviiiiinnnns 3563 cieinninnn 44,802
Cancelled (General Meeting 26-05-10) «.vuvurenenreenrneenraeenranans (1,430,000) ........ (2.61)% werereenennnnn 38.77 evevnnnns (55,446)
At 31 December 2010 .......cocoeuininininininiiiiiiiiieieieieeeenes 600,908 ......... 1.01% coevenenenenen 3454 .......... 20,757
AJQUISICIONES +vvverrrernrieenrneiereeneieearnenesecneiecasacsecacncnees 502,964 ......... 0.85% weveverninenns 4193 toeinnnns 21,089
Cancelled (General Meeting 25-05-11) w.cuvureninrenenrainranenranens (1,030,000) ........ (.78)% cevenvnnennnne 3774 eeuvnnens (38,870)
At 31 December 2011 ....ouviniiniiniiniiniinieniieienciesensancncnns 73,872 ......... 0.13% .eovvennnnnn 40.29 .......... 2,976

The purchases were made during the year in response to the
considerable discount of Alba’s trading price in relation to its
net asset value.
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14. Capital management policy

Alba manages its capital so as to provide its subsidiaries with
sufficient economic resources to carry out their activities. Apart
from managing the capital required to cover the risks incurred
in its activity in a rational and objective manner, Alba also seeks
to maximise the return to shareholders by maintaining an
appropriate balance of equity and debt.

Alba’s gearing ratio at year-end 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

BANK DOTTOWING +uvneintintiniiniintinieniiniintieteateetiateeenessentonsenronsontonsensossonssssessssassnssascnsonses 544,606 ..cc... 687,340
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS «.euiureniniuninininiiieiriiiateitteiretreeneaeentaseearaensaeensasensasessnsanes (325,191) «eueens (203,371)
Financial assets held fOr trading «.c.veueeiereniuieniuieiiiiiiiiiiretrierae et taeeeaeaesaeensasensasencns (1,779) «ev.. (25,403)
Total MEt debt ....onniiniiiiiiiiii it teieiteineeineeeneeeneeenseenscenscensesnsennseenscnseansesnsannsannsnn 217,636 ........ 458,566
Shareholders’ EQUILY «eeeeeeeniniuiniuiuiuiuiuiiiiieiiieiiieiieenieneneneteneaenesessrerssseseseseseneccncncacncncns 2,862,315 ........ 2,948,555
Shareholders’ equity + NEEAEDE .evvuiieiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 3,079,951 ceueenee 3,407,121
LT T T 7.07% «euevene 13.46%
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15. Provisions

The movements in provisions during 2011 and 2010 were
as follows:

201 2010

Balance 3t T JANUAIY ....couiuiininiiiiuiniiiitiiiiitiniititieitiuentietutttteaenttasasacsssssncessasacsssasncsssacns 4,434 ........ 6,828
Increases due to Updating Of INErESt FAtES vuvueuenrniniuiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieieeeeneneneacacmeasacasaaes 70 ceeeenns 104
APPIiCations dUE tO PAYMENLS «euuvurureninruniniuieniurentureienruientueeeureetueeeeneaseeuereeassecesernsssensnes (1,749) ....... (2,498)

Balance at 31 December ......ocouiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e aas 2,755 ........ 4,434

16. Trade and other payables

The composition of this item at 31 December 2011 and In 2011 “Other financial liabilities” includes two swaps to
2010 is detailed below: hedge the interest rate risk of a loan. These swaps are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit

201 2010 or loss (Note 23.c).

Other financial IabilitIes «.vueuveeeiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e aae 9,896 vuverenn 2,072 In relation to Law 15/2010 of 5 July, amending Law 3/2004

Accrued Wages aNd SAIAMES «eveuenireuiuininiuiiiueiiiiiiiiiieiiieieieieieetttataeaenessasasasasssssaesssssssssnsnns 1,362 vevneene 1,457 of 29 December, which establishes measures to combat

Trade PAYADIES +vevnneneneneninitititititettitttiet et tteteteaeaeaeaeaeeeeaeateeeeeeatnenenenenenenenenenenes 679 veuennnn 1,181 delinquency in commercial transactions, it is stated that at

Current tax iabiliIES (NOTE T9) weuverrreneneerenrererenenresenensesenensesensesesenensesensnsesensnsesensnsesensnsensnses 1,003 vevurenn 3,623 31 December 2011 and 2010 there are, and were, no

Accruals and defermed INCOME «.vvuuueruuniiuniiiuiiiiieii et ettt ettt et e et e et s eeaeeeeaneenneeenns 687 crvunnne 892 balances payable to suppliers deferred beyond the legal

Balance 3t 31 DECeMDEr .....uuieiineiiiinneeeeneeeeenaeeeerneeeeennececssscecsnnsecesnssccennsceesnnsesssnsscennnnens 13,627 ........ 9,225 period for payment.

YL VER
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In relation to the information to be included in the Notes to
financial statements pursuant to the Resolution of 29 December
2010 of the Institute of Accounting and Auditing (ICAC), the
amount of payments made by Spanish companies belonging to
the Group to national suppliers and the outstanding balances
payable to said suppliers that have been deferred beyond the
legal limit are as follows:

Payments and balances
PSPPI ooy M
Within the maximum 1883l PEriOd «.eueieeiieiieiieiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieitinientieteateeseasessissessessescssassnsonces 10,615 ........ 100.00%
R AR T
Total payments for the financial year ...........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinrr e 10,615 ........ 100.00%
Weighted average period of exceeded payments (daYs) «e.eeeeeeereeenrureniurenenrenereeeraeenrasesnsessnseesnsnnas Ceeeeeens
Delay exceeding the legal maximum period at the closing date ......cceveieiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiinenens Ceeeeeens

L R R I R R I I R R R I I R R I R R R R R I R A A A R R N A R R N )

In accordance with the Second Transitional Provision of the
ICAC Resolution of 29 December 2010, the comparative
information for 2010 corresponds to the information presented
in the financial statements for 2010 and so is not comparable,
in compliance with the gradual disclosure requirements
established by said Resolution.
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17. Bank borrowings Current:

Current bank borrowings fall due within one year. Broken down
Non-current: by maturity, they are as follows:
In June 2011 Alba entered into two linked contracts with Credit
Agricole, both maturing in June 2014, called the “Share basket At 31/12/20m At 31/12/2010
forward transaction” and the “Cash-settled share basket swap Balmce ............................ Bakmce
transaction”. Given that Alba has the legal right to net the two Bank Maturity drawn Maturity drawn
contracts and that it is Alba’s intention to perform the netting BancaMamh18/06/122017/06/11255
settlements over the term of the contracts, the presentation of 212 MAITN weveeeevensinsiinnssssniinnsssnnnnsssnnssnnnnsse 18/06/12 v 20 e W7/06/T1 e
the transaction is similar to that of receiving a floating-rate loan in BANCO COOPEIALIVO «evveuenrunenrurenrurenenrenensneenraeensasensnsencns 15/07/12 cevunennnn 10,456 veueenennnn 15/07/11 ceennnnn 17,968
the amount of 250,000,000 euros, maturing in2014 (see Note Banco SADAdEll c.vuviiinneiiiiinniiiinrieiineieiienceceinnscosnnscanns 04/07/1 2 eeeiennnn 84,239 ciiiiiinnnn 04/07/11 ......... 84,819
23.c). This transaction is secured by the pledge of 5,000,000 3TN U 27/06/12 ceuveeneen 74,997 wevennnnns 30/06/11 ......... 124,536
shares of ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A., BATCIAYS +.vvveennreeenreeensneeenseeesisseenseeesneeesseessnnesanns 06/07/12 weeene.. 24,953 ueenn. 06/07/11 evenn. 24,975
10,000,000 shares of Acerinox, S.A., 8,503,821 shares of L3 CAIXA +eeveeeeenrensensensenseeseententesetensessesseeneeneetentens 29/06/12 .. 24,927 ouvenne. 29/06/11 e 14,906
Indra Sistemas, S.A. and 4,969,840 shares of Ebro Foods, S.A. Unicaja 02/05/12 | 15/02/11 19,996
At 31 December 2011 it is estimated that the fair value of this UG sersesersesemcmsiicmiiniciiiciciiccncincccnecne - 02/05/12 e T s 15/02/11 e ,
non-current liability does not differ significantly from its carrying BBVA ettt et et ee s e e e e e aeaas ERTTTTRI EEETTTT TP 30/06/11 ......... 294,885
amount. The 75 million euro Banco Santander loan in force at 31 POPUIAM «evviiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciccicci e 17/06/12 couueee. 13 e eeeeeens
December 2010 has been reclassified to current borrowings, as SANLANAET +uvvvnirniiiniiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit e eeaeenaees 04/06/12 ceuveeneen 75,000 ...o.eneen. Ceeeeenees -
it matures in June 2012. Total ..ot SRR 294,606 ........... SRR 612,340
In 2010 the non-current bank borrowings consisted of a Limit on credit [ines granted .....oevevveieiniieiiiniiiiiiniieiiinenenns TR 360,500 .ceevennen. T eeeneeees 423,000

L R R R I N R R R I R R I I I I R N I I N R R R I R R A N R R R R A R A N R I I A I AP )

fixed-rate loan of 75 million euros maturing in June 2012.
At 31 December 2010 it was estimated that the fair value of
this non-current liability did not differ significantly from its The BBVA loan was a fixed-rate loan secured by the pledge of
carrying amount. 29,000,000 shares of Acerinox, S.A.

As a general rule, interest is payable quarterly, the benchmark
index being the Euribor plus a market spread.
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18. Risk management objectives and policies

The Board of Directors of Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A.
has formulated the following risk management and control policy
for the Parent Company and its subsidiaries:

1. Types of risks the Company faces

Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A. engages in two types of
business activity: (i) the holding of investments in the capital
of listed and unlisted companies, and (ji) investment in office
buildings for lease.

The most significant common risk of the investee companies is
the risk inherent in their own business and market, but also, if
they are listed, changes in share prices

The risks with respect to investment properties are: loss of
income if the buildings are unoccupied; changes in long-term
interest rates; damage; default by lessees; and changes in
market value.

Based on the abovementioned activities, the main risks affecting
the company can be grouped in the following categories:

1.1. Cash flow interest rate risk

The group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk mainly
through bank borrowings. Alba’s policy will be to have a mix
of short and long-term, fixed and floating-rate financing, as
appropriate to the financial situation at any given time.

1.2. Exchange rate risk
At present, Alba’s activity is not affected by any significant
exchange rate risk.

1.3. Market risk

Stock market risk affects the most important assets on the
Company’s balance sheet, namely the investments in listed
companies. These investments are, and are expected to continue
to be, mainly long-term and hedging would not be financially
viable. In some cases, the company also uses derivatives on
listed shares.

The investment properties are affected by changes in market
value, which the Company monitors through annual reports
prepared by independent experts.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
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1.4. Credit risk

Credit risk arises basically from the possibility that the lessors
of properties belonging to the Company will fail to meet their
obligations under the lease agreements. However, it is the
Group’s policy to do business exclusively with financially
strong entities.

In transactions with derivatives on listed shares, there is also
counterparty risk. Such transactions are therefore entered into
exclusively with highly solvent and reputable counterparties.

Credit risk also arises from the possibility that the credit
institutions at which the company holds deposits of cash as a
result of its liquidity management will fail to return the deposits.

1.5. Liquidity risk

The Company’s liquidity management is based on
short-term instruments and cash to easily cover projected
liquidity requirements.
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2. Risk mitigation measures

The most important asset on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet is the investment in investee companies. The
Company oversees its investees by monitoring both their
business activity and performance (for which purpose it is
represented on their Boards of Directors and sometimes

also on their Executive Committees, Audit Committees and
Nomination and Remuneration committees) and their share price
performance (in the case of those that are publicly traded).

To guard against the abovementioned risks affecting its
investment properties, the Company deals exclusively with highly
solvent tenants and always checks the customer’s ability to pay
before entering into any business relationship. It also establishes
the appropriate contractual provisions, requires guarantees from
tenants, adjusts rents to market rates in the case of long lets

and takes out insurance, updated annually, to cover damage

and third-party liability. Lastly, the Company continuously
monitors its lease receivables, so that the risk of arrears is never
significant, and carries out annual appraisals to track changes in
market value.

As regards the risk relating to the return of the term cash
deposits held in credit institutions, this type of deposit is made
exclusively in institutions that have obtained a certain minimum
rating that is considered sufficient.

3. IT and internal audit systems

The Company has organizational resources to monitor and
control risks and ensure legal compliance, notably a financial
department, a legal department and a tax department. Each
of these departments monitors risks and internal and external
regulatory compliance in its particular area.

The Company also has processes for identifying and controlling
its main operational, financial and legal risks. These processes
are duly documented in operating rules and instruction manuals.
The Company has an integrated IT system to enable it to prepare
timely and reliable financial information and the operational

data it needs in order to manage its businesses effectively.

The Company’s budgeting system allows it to set quantitative
objectives in advance within a strategic framework and analyse
the causes of any significant deviations between actual and
budgeted results.

In addition, the Board Regulations charge the Secretary with
a duty to ensure that the Company acts, in form and
substance, within the law and in accordance with its Articles
of Association and that its internal procedures and rules of
governance are respected.

Consolidated Financial Statements
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One of the Audit Committee’s tasks is to ensure that the
company has an effective system of internal supervision to
guarantee compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
to verify that the necessary procedures are in place to ensure
that managers and employees comply with internal regulations.
Audit Committee meetings are attended, when required, by
the company’s finance director, who is responsible for internal
control and who reports to the committee on this matter.

Lastly, the company has an Internal Audit Service as a tool for
the proper performance of the functions entrusted to the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee in relation to risk control
and management and the monitoring of internal information and
control systems. In this sense, Internal Audit contributes to the
improvement and, where applicable, the formal establishment
of internal procedures and, through specific audits, supervises
compliance with the procedures.
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19. Tax matters A reconciliation of taxable income to accounting profit is

given below: Allocated
Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A., togetherwithAlba e e

o L , To profit To

Participaciones, S.A., Balboa Participaciones, S.A.U. and Dey3 2011 or loss equity
Capital’ S.C.R', de Régimen Simplificado’ S'A', iS taxed as a o000 00 'l LU N R I IR I R I I BRI B I B R R B I B R B I B I B B I I B I I B B B I I I I L B L I I I R I I I I )
corporate group. Arté Capital, S.G.E.CR., S.A. is taxed on an Balance of INCOME N EXPENSES +euvurentnrunenrurenturenenreeeraeensaseseseeasaensaessasesssssssnsnsssassnsasans 407,730 ........ (237,439)
individual basis. COrpOrate INCOME tAX uveuueernerenereneeeneesseeeneeeseeesesesssesssssssesssssssssssssasesnsssssssssssssssssssasenasans 55,114

Consolidated profit/(10SS) DEfOre taXeSs .........euuiuniuiuininerneinerneenerneenerneenernsenerneenernsenesnssnennns 462,844 ........ (237,439)

Differences arising on consolidation (1) «..eeueevureniuieniureiiiieiiiuiinireireitreterarerareesaesasensaens 9,143 .eenenee 237,439

GrOSS 13X DASE ..uuiinniiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeineeaneeaneeanteanceansonneeansesnsesnsesnsennsesnsssnsssnseansanns 471,987 ........ 0

Permanent differenCeS weveeieeeiriuieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiiiitititttieeetetttteeeneneneneaeneneacacacacresoanes 505

GrOSS 13X DBSE ..uueviinniiiiineieeineeeeenneeeeanaeeeenncecennececsnnceessaseesnnneeesnnscesnnnscensnseesnnnsesnnnnee 472,492

TaX PAY3DIE 3t 3000 «eueurnrnininrniuiniiiiiiieitieiiieieeeneneneseseaesenenssesssssssssssessssesnsnencncncncnsnsnsans 141,748

Deductions (double taxation and reiNVESIMENT) +..vuueuneuniuniueueuiuiutiuiuteueueraeneraenerasenerasenesanens 86,654

T 11 e 55,094

Tax withheld on foreign diVIdENdS «.euveeeniieiuiniiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitreitieenteeasaeeeeenenecasaes 20

B F 3 (T T T e 55,114

I R LR R R R L R R R R I I R R R R R R R
(1) Includes mainly the Group’s share of the profit or loss of associates, the dividends received from associates, the difference between the consolidated accounting and tax
gain on disposals of financial assets, and any changes in the fair value of investment property.
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Allocated

To profit To
2010 or loss equity
Balance Of INCOME 3NA EXPENSES «evevrnrnrnrururnrureieieieieieettetttasasarasasasasssasasesesessssssssssnsnss 420,985 ....... (153,681)
COPPOTELE INCOME 18X wevvrurrnrnrnnenrueenruerraonsnsnerssneensnessasnesssnesssnsssssssssssnesssaesssassssssnssssnses (39,617)
Consolidated profit/(105s) DEfOre taXeS ........ceuiureeenrueeiureereeeerneeerueeerneeeenrneeoracnesaseesnsnesnsnns 381,368 ....... (153,681)
Differences arising from consolidation (1) +e.veeveuvenrenienieiiiiiiiiieiiiieirieiiirerirereeeeeeeeeneenses (196,273) ....... 153,681
GrOSS 1AX DASE ...ueiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieietenetenetenntenntenneenneenneenneonntesnsonsonntosnsosnsosnsennsonnsennsons 185,095 ....... 0
Permanent diffErEnNCES «veuernrentrntiniiniiniineietiateetiereeeieseeronsenronsontonsensonsonsonsessssassnssassnsonses 508
GrOSS 13X DBSE ..uuueeiiinneiiiineieeieeeeeraeeeesnneeeesnseeesnneceesnncecsnnseessnsseesssncesnnnccessnscesnnsscennnne 185,603
Tax PAYable 3t 3090 wevernrenrenrenieeinientintentintiatineiariscissescsssescnscnscncences 55,681
Deductions (double taxation and reinVeStMENt) vu.eeveeeeeeeeeeeneeerneeraeeeennnnnns 53,828
Q1 L 1,853
Corporate income tax returned following successful appeal of tax 3SSESSMENtS evvvererininenenenineneuiaeeeeenennnes (994)
Tax withheld on foreign diVIdENdS c..ueuveuieiieiniiieiiiiiiiiiiieiieiieetiiierieeieenteeeasasessesnsesasasesnss 34
Tax paid in advance, deferred tax and tax credits for tax losses and deductions (2) «...eeeeeeeeereeerneeeneeeennnnns (40,510)
LD G (Tl (T T N (39,617)

R R R R R I N R R R R R I
(1) Includes mainly the Group’s share of the profit or loss of associates, the dividends received from associates, the difference between the consolidated accounting and tax
gain on disposals of financial assets, and any changes in the fair value of investment property.

(2) The Group recognised the deferred tax assets generated in previous years as sufficient taxable income was generated, due to the sale of ACS shares before the
consolidated financial statements for 2010 were issued.
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The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
is as follows:

Additions/ Additions/
31/12/n (Derecognitions) 31/12/10  (Derecognitions) o1/o1/10

Deferred tax assets

Due to non deductible impairment .......ceceeieeeeneens 21,488 ceevunnne (16,888) ........ 38,376 ceeuvnnne 8,376 wevevnnnns 30,000
Tax credits from loss carryforwards

and deductions pending application ..........cceevuenenee 11,607 ......... (29,293) ........ 40,900 ....ee.e. 40,900 ..........

For retirement plan and non-deductible expenses ........ 5841 cevuenens (309) ........ 6,150 .....ueee 6,150 cueuennnn

From valuation adjustments against equity ....coeeunens 5009 ceeeeeees - 5009 coeeeeees - 5,009
Total deferred tax 3SSEtS .eeeevreinreieieenineenraenennes 43,945 ciivieies diieiae 90,435 ceivieees iiiieenen. 35,009

Deferred tax liabilities

Due to capital gains on iNvestments ....ceeeeeeeeneeneens 38,667 ......... (6,970) ceueeenn 45,637 ......... 14,916 ..c.e...e. 30,721
Total deferred tax liabilities «...covveveiieieiniieinininannns 38,667 ceeveeees ereieeens 45,637 ceeveeees eieieieens 30,721

R R I I I I I I R R R R I I R R R I N R R R R R R I A R A N A R O I I I S I AP )
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.
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Reinvested capital gains for which the minimum investment term
has not yet expired are as follows:

Profit subject to reinvestment Expiry date

(article 42 of the Law on Amount Year of of minimum

Corporate Income Tax) of sale reinvestment investment term
S 287,396 .......... 535,160 ........ 2011 veveeennnns 2016
2008 ueiineiieiiaeeieeaneeaeeanttanttanttanttanttanteanttantesntonnaans 686 ceeuinnnn 15,758 ........ 2008 ceeenneennne 2013
2007 teeiieiiieeiaeeiateeaeeaaeeaneeanteanteanteanteanteanttanteantennaans 88,985 cuviinnnns 122,329 ........ 2007 ceeneennnnn. 2012
2006 tueeineiieeineeiateeneeenteanteanteanteanteanteanteanteanteantenneans 19,280 .......... 27,390 ........ 2006 & 2007 ........... 2012

© 0 600 6060000606000 0000C000060C00000CC000000C09000000000090000C000060060000E000C0E60000006000GE60060006000OCIDLEET

Unused deductions and unused tax losses of the
consolidated tax group:

31/12/201 31/12/2010
Negative taxable Negative taxable
Year of expiry Deductions income Deductions income
/0 N © eeesecesees © evececeseenans < eeeseseees 11,484
2079 teuiiiininiiiiiiiiie i ettt ee ettt ae e e saeaenaaan © eeerecacees © evecececeenees - eeerereens 116,256
/7 TN 2,578 weveennnnn
/40720 N T1,607 cevevvivens 5 iiiiicieeee 7 eereeeae,
L e 11,607 ........... © ereeeeeeeeees 2,578 .......... 127,740

© 0 600 6060000606000 0606000060000 00CC000000E900000C0C009000C0000C060000E0000E000000000E000006000O0DGT




1 31 Annual Report 201 Corporacién Financiera Alba Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Consolidated Financial
Statements

The financial years from 2007 onward remain open to
inspection. It is estimated that any additional tax liabilities that
may arise as a result of such inspections will not be material.

The amount shown in Note 16 “Current tax liabilities” under the
“Trade and other payables” heading breaks down as follows:

FOr COrPOrate iNCOME TX +euueenneerneereeneereeerneeineeeneeeneeenseenseenseenscensesnscsnscsnscsnscsnscsnscsnsennnen 506 ........ 470
FOr PErsonal iNCOME t3X «eueeeenternineeeneneiernteeieeueneieeseuesecesseiesacseseeassessssssesssssscsssssnssssssnsnne 33T eeennee 300
0T N 15 veenens 103
L0 T N 2,664
For social security CONMDULIONS +euveuiineiniiuiieiiuiieiieiiiiieiiiiiiiiieiieieiientietestieeiasescsssescscscnscnces 51 veveeens 86
TOtAl oniiiiiiiiiiieeeeenneeeeaneeeeeneceeanasceannaseesnnscecnnnccesnnscossnsssssnnscesnnncessnnscsannssesnnnsecnns 1,003 ........ 3,623
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20. Guarantees issued to third parties and other
contingent assets and liabilities

A breakdown of this item at 31 December is given below:

2011 2010
Guarantees given for the sale of the stake in BaNCO UrqQUijo, S.A. cueireruieiieinieiiernirieenrteesaressecasscasaces 1,971 ceeeneee 3,827
T 1,971 ........ 3,827

Both in Xfera, now Yoigo, and in Broadnet, which were investees
of Alba in previous years, the 2001 public radio frequency
reservation fee, which Alba paid and which was recognised

in the income statement, has been appealed and is awaiting

a decision by the Supreme Court. If the decision is in the
Company’s favour, Alba would recover the corresponding
portion, which as of today remains undetermined.
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21. Workforce

The average number of employee each year, by category,
was as follows:

2011 2010
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Executive Directors and Senior Managers ... 6 teiiinninns © eeesecesenes [ 6 ceiiiniinnnes C reecesecesenes 6
Department heads ...ceeeeeeeniieeninennnns 7 oeeeveiannns T veeiiieneens S /A LT 8
Administrative staff and others ............ 22 ceiiinnienns 15 ceeeeeeenees K YA 2 I L 35
Total coveniininiiiiiiiiiiiiiciaae 35t 16 ceveennens 51 cevinininnnnns K 7. S 15t 49

© 0 600 6006000006060 000060060000600600000066000000 6090000006000 09000G6000 0600600000600 00G60 000600600060 060006000O0CDLGCT

The average number of employees at the end of each year,
by category, was as follows:

201 2010
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Executive Directors and Senior Managers .... 6 vevniinennnn R TTTPPPPPy 6 eveiininnennns 6 veveiininnnns RS TT TP TPy 6
Department heads ...c.ceveieiiiininininns 7 oeeeieiannnns T v - 7 eeeieiennnnn T oevereieenenens 8
Administrative staff and others ............ 22 ciiiinannns 18 vevieinnnn, 40 coiiinininnnns 20 ceeinennnnns 16 ceveeneninnnns 36
Total cooennnniiiiiiiii 35 e 19 e 54 ciininnnn. 33 e 7 e 50
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201 Property Securities Total
In thousands of euros lease investment Group

Direct segment income and expenses

22. Segment information

The following tables provide information about the income,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the operating segments Il;fzszl:;:rzieszg(sja?sther 15731 e 15,476 cevvvniininnnnnns s 283— ............... 1;;;1;2

for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. Share of profit/(I0Ss) Of 8SSOCIBES vvvverurnrenrnreernrneenrneeerneneesnaenns © eeeeeeereeaenenes 241,865 .eeeiininnnns 241,865
Dividends reCeIVEd «euveriiniiiiieiiiiieiiieiiiirinieneinieneensiscescnscnces © eeeeecieceacenes XK 533

There were no transactions between segments. Increase/(decrease) in faif VAIUE «vvevevvseeersneersneersneeesseersneersnenes (CRPX) I  reerreeenn, (9,121)
Other direct segment OPerating EXPENSES «eevererererernenenencncececncnanss (2,948) cevvernenrnnnnnnn © eeeeeeeraenens (2,948)
Segment profit/(10SS) .......oceuviuiiuiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeaenees 3,407 ..covvvnenannnn.. 427,681 ..cvuvnennnnn 431,088

Income and expenses not assigned to segments
IMPBIMMENT tueiniiniiniiiiiiiiaiiiiieiiieieiititeieinteteneeneeneencnnens © eereeecneeeneees ST T T TSTOPps 56,484
SAMf COSES enenrnrnrnrnenenenencneeeeseeenenernsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnnes © ereeeeeeeeaeneaes © reeeeeeaeaens (9,572)
Other Operating EXPENSES +uveeerereerererenrenteneentencensonsessessascanss © teecesecesecnsane ST T T T TR, (4,591)
Depreciation and aMOrtiSaioN ...uveeeuieieniuieniuieiureiiuinieneueeneacens © e © e (998)
NEet fiNaNCE INCOME wueuenenenenenrnrnrnrnrnrnensncncnensnsncncncncncesnanannes © reeeeneneneaes " reeeeeeenenens (9,567)
Profit/(loss) before taxes and minority interests ............cccccveuennennee  ereeerecneeeneens  eeeeeeenenees 462,844
COrporate iNCOME 13X wevvrnrrnenrureneureneureneneueenenseeueeiensaeencacenes © e N (55,114)
MINOFItY INTEMESTS «uvutenrnneneurenenreenraienraeerarenterenensaseesasensaens C e © eereeeeeeneaees (1,556)
Net profit/(10ss) for the year ...........cceeveuiiuiiuiiniiniiniinnenceanennes  reveerecareresens  eevereecneeenes 406,174
Assets and liabilities

SEEMENT ASSELS weerreerneeineeineeiaeeineeineeiaeeiaeciaecrnecssccsacesnccnnce 215,099 ciiiiiiiiiinnnnns 2,646,726 eeiieiinninnns 2,861,825
UN3SSIZNEA BSSELS wuvrurnrrurneerurneieinineierueereenieeasaenesecnecencass © eerereeneenees © ereeeeeeees 602,844
TOUAl @SSELS .eeeevnneeeennneeeerneeeeennececsnneeesneecesnnncecsnssccannncenns  ereeecerneceennes  eeeeneeeeenns 3,464,669
Segment lIabilities «ovveeveiuiniieiiieieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeaaes 2,019 civiiiinininnnns © eereeeceeenees 2,019
Unassigned liabilities «.veeeveeeieiieiiiiiiiniiiiinieniiniieiiineieeiarencnnes © eeeeereereeceaes © eeeeeceeceeenne 599,655
Total liabilities ......ccovveeeiiineiiiiereeinneeeenneeceeeneccesnnsceannsenns C eeeeeecsneceenes L, 601,674

LR R R R A A I R N R R R R R I I I I R I N R R R R I I N N R N N R I I A I AP )

YL VAR
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2010 Property Securities Total
In thousands of euros lease investment Grou,

Direct segment income and expenses

Lease income and Other iteMS ..cuveeeieieniieiiniieeierieeieiiecieenecnecnnes 15,670 eveiiniiniinnnns EETTT TR 15,670
Profit from diSpoSals «ueueeeeuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeaes © heeereereceenenes 6,294 iviiiiiininnns 6,294
Share of profit/(10Ss) Of 8SSOCIAES <vevevereeeeeeereeereeeeneaeararorararasasns " cevecesecsosonens 375,148 ereeinrnennnnn 375,148
Dividends reCeIVEd «eevvinriniiniiniiniinieniiniiniineieiieeieiiecneoiecnecnnes © eeecrecercercnees 842 iviiiiiniinnnn 842
Increase/(decrease) in fair VAlUE ....ueeeneneneneneneneneneeeeeeeenenenenennnns (8,388) ceveururnrrnenee 7 eeieieceeeeenns (8,388)
Other direct segment OPerating EXPENSES «veveverererernrererarerasasasasnsns (2,834) ceveeenininnnnnnn © eeeeeeeeeenees (2,834)
Segment profit/(10SS) ........ceuieiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieirieeeenes 4,448 ...c.vnunnnnnn... K172 1.7 386,732
Income and expenses not assigned to segments
IMPBIMMENT teuevirniniuiiiniiiiitiiiiiiiiieieeiieieeeieneeneaeeienseseses % cececessecencanes © eeereeenes (47)
SEAMf COSES veuvnenrnrnrnrnrnrnrnenenenencncncecnceesansnssseossnsnsnsnsnsasasnas " sesesesesesssssse 7 eeeececeseseses (9,387)
Other OPErating EXPENSES .eeveeeereernrueereeeeraseernsnernsncasncnasasanse 7 eeessesessecenses " ceveseesencenes (4,902)
Depreciation and 3MOTtiISAtON ...cuvuininiiniirurnrururerererenenenenenenes 7 seevecesesesesess 7 eereeasasasaes (1,007)
Net fiNaNCE INCOME tevivuiiniiniiniiniieiinriereareeseeseesnesnsonconsonsonses = sesessssssssnssns % seveseasessonss 9,979
Profit/(loss) before taxes and minority interests ..........c.ccoeeuvenvenenne  reeeeereneenees " ereeneeeenenen 381,368
COrporate iNCOME tAX vevereenrinieneinieneinenneineiaeeneneenseneenseneensense " ceeeescescssseses " seeesesscescene 39,617
MINOFItY INTEMESES +evvuenrurenireniruieinieirreereiesasensnsensnsasenss % cevesessacensases % teveesessesenss (1,615)
Net profit/(Ioss) for the Year ..........ccceeeveveiririrerirenrenennnnne  reeeeeereeneranes . eeeeeereeeenens 419,370
Assets and liabilities
SEEMENT ASSELS eeerreenneeineeiaeeiaeeiareiaeeiaceiaeesaccsscescesaccnnccnns 221,880 tiviiniiinnennns 3,048,913 cevvniinnnnn 3,270,793
UN3SSIZNEA 3SSELS tuvuurnrnernrneieeneniieiurneieeneeeesuenesesneneessacnnnss © eeeeeeereceenenes C ereeereeeeae, 427,033
TOtAl @SSELS ..eevrneeeennneeeerneeeeenneeecsnneecennsecesnnsccensnsecannnscanns  ereeeecenneeeenns  eeereeeeennes 3,697,826
Segment IAbIlitES «oueeeveiieieiniiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieenenee 1,936 ciiviiiiiiiiiees e, 1,936
Unassigned lIabilitIes cuveveereiiiiieiiiiiniieiiiiieiieiiiiiiiieenioneeneenees % seeeecsesescseses T eesesessescesss 746,636
Total liabilities .......cooeiiiiieiiiiiniiiinneieiineeeeeeneeceenasecannseenns C eeeeeeeceneeeenes  eeeereereenes 748,572

L R R I R R R R N R I I R R I R A R I A N A R A A A N I I I S I AP )
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Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Alba operates entirely in Spain and so is considered a single
geographical segment.

YL VAR
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23. Other income and expenses At 31 December 2011 and 2010 Alba had no significant
positions in financial instruments.

The following tables show the composition of the various items

included under this heading in 2011 and 2010. ¢) Change in the fair value of financial instruments
This item relates to the valuation at year-end 2011 of the two
interest rate swaps entered into by the Company (Note 4.f) in

a) Staff costs the amount of 6,195 thousand euros.
201 2010
w.'..;i.'I.T.....'......'.............'....'.........'.....'.....'.........'..7.;:;3.........';;;;' |ta|SOiﬂCIUdeStheSymmetriCChangeiﬂthefairvalue
‘ ag:as an’ s a.rlrs s tbt ..................................................................................... ,544 ........ ,523 at 31 December 2011 of the two contracts entered into with
MPIOYErs SOCI3l SECUTILY CONIIDUTIONS ceceeeesccsscsscsscsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss DU ceeessee . . .

P y_ i ty Credit Agricole (Note 17) in the amount of 58,609 thousand

Alternative pension Plan SYStEMS «..ueieieerietretietieriteneiereneoieentoneinteneessessesssssessessesssssescnssnssnsons 1,081 eeeeens 1,098 . . . . ) .
i euros, according to information provided by the financial
INSUFANCE PreMIUIMS tuetrnetinetenetineeeneteneeenseesacenstesscesscesseesscesscesscessscssccsscessscsssesssessscssscnns 225 .eeeeen 210 e
institution itself.

Other employee WEIfare COSES weuvurriuiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiineniieaeteneeeremeririeieieteseeeencncacncncns 89 veeerens 99
Balance 3t 31 DECOMDET .....uiniiiniiiiiieiiieiiieiieeieeeieeieeenaeenneenncenncenncenncennsennsonnsennsennsonns 9,572 ........ 9,387

© 5 600 6006000006060 000060060000600600000066000000 060900000060 06009000G6000 0600600000600 00G60 0060060 00G600C600G600OLOIDLEET

b) Finance income

201 2010
DIVIENAS «eveenaereerneeeeeeneeeesanseessnnseesanscecnsscossnssossnsscesansscssnnssossnssssssnsscssnsscossnsssasnnssns 533 veeenene 842
GaiN/(10SS) ON GETIVALIVES +eveurenenrereneneenenenrerenensesenensesensnsesencnsesessssesencnsesensnsesensnsesensnsensnens (1,915) veeenen 671
L S (=N 18,316 veuuennn 30,204
TP T T TN 2,106 ..eeeee.. 2,460
Balance 8t 31 DECeMDEr ...uueeeiineeieinneeeenneeeeenneeeerneeeeennacecasacecasnseecsnnscessnsccesnnssessnsscennnnene 19,040 ........ 34,177

R R I R R A I I I I R R R I N I I I I I R I R R N I I I A R R A N A N O I I I I Y S I AP )




1 3 7 Annual Report 201 Corporacién Financiera Alba Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
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In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.
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24. Related parties
In 2011 the following transactions were carried out:

Related
Description of the transaction Amount pa

© 5 6006006000060 060000060060000600600000066000000060900 0000600600000 G6000 060060000600 00G60 00600600060 060006000 060G

With significant shareholders of the company

FINANCE COSES weuneennieiniiiieiieiiieiiieiteiieeieeeeeiaeeinsecnncennennes 330 .eeenennns Banca March
Management and Collaboration CoNtracts «....eeeeeneneueueniuiiiiiininennnns 400 .......... Banca March
Financing agreements and 0aNS ....eveviiiiiiinininenineiiiiiiicieeeeenenes 20 cieenenens Banca March
Guarantees and avals ......eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,971 ceenenes Banca March
Y14 TG 165,443 .......... Concerted action Banca March Group

With other related parties

DIVIJENGS tvvvirininiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiieenenenenencncacacasasasacanes 167,010 .....venee ACS, Acerinox, Prosegur, Indra,
Ebro Foods y Clinica Baviera

Repayment of share premium ..e.eeeeneeiienenineneninenenciceceeeeeenes 6,043 ......... Acerinox
Collaboration 3greemMENtS vuveeeeueenrentenreneierinrereiaserciesescscescncences 300 ...eeeen. Fundacién Juan March
Operating 1835€ CONrACES vuvevreurenrentinienrierenreeeiareeenesescssscnconces 301 ceeeneens March Gestién de Fondos, S.G.LI.C., S.A.

March Gestion de Pensiones, S.G.F.P,, S.A. y CIMSA
Insurance premiums brokered «oueeeeeeeeieneieiiniieiierieiierieeneonecncenees 1,879 ceeienenn March Unipsa
INSUTANCE PremMIUMS weueveenineenrneieieeneieenrneierecneiecasacececneecasaces K. March Vida
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In 2010 the following transactions were carried out:

Related
Description of the transaction Amount party

L R I R I I I I R I I R A I R R R I I A I A S A A I AP S N I N A S I I

With significant shareholders of the company

FINANCE COSES vuvnrennrieneiiiniiiiniitiniineineineeneincenenecescnncnncncnns 962 ciiunnnn Banca March
Management and Collaboration CONracts «..eveeereerieeieeieeeeeeneeneeneens 826 cuiuennnn. Banca March
Current 3CCOUNE INTETESt +vuvvrernerneeneineeneieeeneeneiareresesnssnscnssnccnces 83 teiennnn Banca March
Financing agreements and [03NS «..cevveiieinieieinieieiniiieinieieceenenns 255 ieninens Banca March
GUArantees aNd AVAlS «.eveiuiniieiuiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeaeaas 1,971 ceeennnn Banca March
T[T T R 39,559 cieiniinns Concerted action Banca March Group

With other related parties

T T R 188,377 evuenennn ACS, Acerinox, Prosegur, Indra,
Ebro Foods, Clinica Baviera y Antevenio

Fee for commitment to lend SECUMtIES «evvverrneieiuiiieininiieiniieneiaenenns 15,251 cveenenens ACS
Repayment of share premium ....veeiieieiieneiineneneiiciiieinieineennnes 6,043 ......... Acerinox
Collaboration 3ZreemeNts «ueueueueuiueuiururuiueneaememeereeeieieieeeienenenenes 300 .eeenennn Fundacién Juan March
Operating 1835€ CONrACES vuvevreurenienrenientinrrnreeeiarerenesiscssnscnscnees 346 ceeeninn. March Gestién de Fondos, S.G.LI.C., S.A.

March Gestion de Pensiones, S.G.F.P.,, S.A. y CIMSA
Insurance premiums brokered «o.eeeeeeeeieniieiiniieiieiiiiiiiieciecieceennes 1,531 coeeneens March Unipsa
INSUTANCE PremIUMS weueeenieenrneieieeneieearaeiececseiecasacsecacscnecasnces 337 weeennn March Vida

R R I R R A I I I I R R R R I S I R I R R I N I R R R I A I I A N R N I I I I I Y S I AP )
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25. Share option scheme

On 25 May 2011 the General Meeting of shareholders of Alba
approved a share option scheme for executive directors and
senior managers of the Company. The scheme has a duration of
three years. The features of the scheme are as follows:

a) The Company has granted the beneficiaries options that will
give the right to acquire shares of Corporacién Financiera
Alba, S.A. after a period of three years from the scheme
approval date has elapsed.

b) The beneficiaries of this option scheme are the executive
directors and senior managers of Corporacion Financiera
Alba, S.A.

c) The maximum number of shares to be delivered under this
scheme will be 469,000.

d) The options are non-transferable except upon the death of
the beneficiary.

e) The exercise price of each option will be 40.03 euros/share.
At the beneficiary’s discretion, options may also be settled
wholly or partly by the Company paying the beneficiary the
difference between the weighted average trading price of
Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A. shares during the month
immediately preceding the date on which the three-year
period from the grant date expires and the option exercise
price. It is expected that the beneficiaries will opt to receive
cash, so at the end of each accounting period the Company
will estimate the corresponding financial liability, where
necessary.

f) The options were granted for nil consideration.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010 no liabilities were recorded in
respect of this scheme.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.




1 4 O Annual Report 201 Corporacién Financiera Alba

Consolidated Financial
Statements

26. Directors’ and senior managers’ remuneration

The Company and its subsidiaries have recorded the following
remuneration earned by directors and senior managers of
Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A.:

Directors’ remuneration Alternative

.............................. pe“sion plan

Salaries Group systems and

2011 No. of people and other Alba companies insurance

Proprietary direCtors w..eeveeeeeinenininenenineuencaeaennnes 5. S eeneeens 367 ceuinnnnn 78 eveinnnns 35
Independent non-executive directors «..eeeeeeeereeenenens 4 iieinnn. eeeeenees 143 ceeeeens - eeeeeens

EXECUtiVE dIreCtors vuvvuerereieiieiieiireneeeenecnecneens [T 1,690 ceeueennn 230 ceeeneens 131 ceeeenns 569

SeNior MAN3ZEMENE vuveverreierreneeneeeensrnesnsencences K I 962 cevuennnn  eeesesees 42 civinnnnn 96

D R I R I I I I I I R R R I N I N I I N R R R IO I T A I P SN A A I AP R I I I Y S I AP )

Directors’ remuneration Alternative

.............................. pension plun

Salaries Group systems and

2010 No of people and other Alba companies insurance

Proprietary dir€Ctors w..ceeeeeieieneeneneneneaeieaceninnnnns 4 iaeien. ERTTTIIITS 338 cieenanns 75 ceveinnnns 29
Independent non-executive direCtors «..ueeeeieenenenenes 5 iinnns LTI 198 eeenene eeeeeeeens

EXeCutive direCtors vuuveeeeeriieieiiieieiiieieeieceenecneens 4 ennn. 1,498 .....e..t 160 .eeeneee. 75 cieeennnns 647

Senior MAaN3ZEMENt «eveeererierieriieeeiereiaeenneenncenns K I 942 ceuennnt © receseees 24 cieinnnn. 40

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

Neither in 2011 nor in 2010 had any advances or loans been
extended to directors or senior managers.

YL VAR
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The remuneration earned in 2011 by each director
is as follows:

Remuneration Pension

........................... Alba Group Total plan Insurance
eereerreneenerneanaenaan. ed [ Variable || Sompanies | remumeration .. Sontriwtion ... Premiums
Brookes, Nicholas ....ceeeevevnieiennes - iiiiiiie 5 ieieee, 46.00 ......... 46.00 coevnviees - riieeenees
Carné Casas, RamOn.....cccevvueennnnnn. 195.62 ......... S eeeeeens 30.00 ......... 225.62 .......... EIRTTTTTTISRPN
Del Cafio Palop, José Ramon ........... 132.20 ......... 85.07 ceuunnnn 40.00 ......... 257.27 cevuininnn 14392 coeeenenen. 6.10
Ferndndez Barreiro, ISidro «.......c.ue... “ veserenes “ veserenes 90.50 «.eueeen 90.50 ceenenennn ERTIITITIT 16.09
March de la Lastra, Juan «...eeeeeeenen. 7158 cevevnnns ©eeeeeeees 40.00 .....en.e 1158 cevenennnn 103.75 cevvnnennens 6.56
March Delgado, Carlos «...ceeveneennn. ©eeeeenees ©eeeeenees 118.00 ......... 118.00 cuevennen. - eeereceenees 5.60
March Delgado, Juan «..ceeeenenennnn. ©eeeeenees ©eeeeenees 124.00 ......... 124.00 ..c.ueeee. - reereceenees 5.37
March Juan, Juan ...ceceeeceiiienenenens 45.46 ......... ERTTIII 40.00 ......... 85.46 .....c.... 20.24 coeiiinnnnns 2.46
Martinez-Conde Gutiérrez- Barquin, Santos ~ 235.00 ......... 245.03 ......... 115.00 ceeuenen 595.03 ..cuenenen 246.65 ccevennnen. 8.27
Nieto de la Cierva, JOS€ «.vevvrneennrnnens < eeeeeeees < eeeeeeees 4750 c.veen.e. 4750 cevnienens - eeeeeeenaes 8.33
Ruiz-Gdlvez Priego, Eugenio ........... < eceseees < eceseees 50.00 ......... 50.00 .......... © eeecsreenene
Serra Farré, Jos€ Maria «..coeeveennenen.  eeesesees  eeesesees 34.50 ..unnen 3450 cennnnn  ceescereenee
Serra Peris, José Manuel ......ccceeueees SRTTTITT SRTTTITT 12.50 ......... 12.50 .......... Ceeeeeeeeees
Vallbona Vadell, Pablo ......c.ccvueneen 373.68 ...u.n.e. 306.40 ......... 96.25 ...u.u.e. 77633 cevennnn. © eeeesenenens 31.09
VerdU Pons, Francisco «....eeeeeennnen. S eeeeeens S eeeeeens 65.50 ......... 65.50 .eennennn EIRTTTTTPTSRRN
Board Total .........ccocevvneinininnnns 1,053.54 ......... 636.49 ......... 949.75 ......... 2,639.78 .......... 514.56 ............ 89.86
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In compliance with Articles 229 and 230 of the Law on
Corporations, any situation where a director holds an interest
or 3 position in 3 company that engages in an analogous or
complementary type of activity to that which is the corporate
purpose of Alba are indicated below:

Ramon Carné Casas ~ ceeiiieicceicieicieieieienaee. Artd Capital, S.G.ECR, SA. ........ Venture capital mManagement «..oeeeeeeeeaeanens - eeecesensens Director
Ramon Carn€ Casas ~ ceeeiieiiiecieeeieeeineennee. Deyd Capital Il, S.C.R., de Régimen Comun, S.A. ........ Private equity «eceveenveinnennnnn. eeeeeeeneees Director
JuanMarchdelalastra e Artd Capital, S.G.E.C.R, SA. ........ Venture capital management .....ceeeeeinennens TN Director
JuanMarchdelalastra i Dey4 Capital, S.C.R. de Régimen Simplificado, S.A. ........ Private equity «eeeeveeneinennnens R TTTPURURN Director
Santos Martinez-Conde Guti€rrez-Barquin «...ceeeeveeneieenenennnnnnens Artd Capital, S.G.E.C.R, SA. ........ Venture capital management .....coeeeeeenennnns LTI Chairman
Santos Martinez-Conde GUEIErrez-Barquin v.ceeveveeereneieennrnnennnns Dey3 Capital, S.C.R. de Régimen Simplificado, S.A. ........ Private equity «eeeeeeereeenninnens  eeeeeeeiens Chairman
Santos Martinez-Conde GUIErrez-Barquin  «.oeveveeereneeernnrneennnans Alba Participaciones, S.A. ........ Securities investment «.o.eeeeeeeeennne. - eeeceseennens First Vice-Chairman

and CEO
José Ramon del Cafio Palop ~ ceiiiiiiiiierereeeeeeas Deyd Capital II, S.C.R., de Régimen Comun, S.A. ........ Private €quUity «eeeeeeeeneeeenenees eeeeeseeiniens Director and Secretary
José Ramdn del Cafio Palop ~ ciiiiiiiiiiiice e Artd Capital, S.G.E.C.R., SA. ........ Venture capital management ...c.oeeeeninennens TN Director and Secretary
José Ramén del Cafio Palop ~ eeiiiiiiiienceeeaee Deyd Capital, S.C.R. de Régimen Simplificado, S.A. ........ Private equUity «eeeeeeereeeeenenens TN Director and Secretary
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27. Auditors’ remuneration

Fees payable to Ernst & Young totalled 116 thousand euros, of
which 50 thousand were for internal auditing services and the
rest for the auditing of the 2011 individual and consolidated
annual accounts of Alba and subsidiaries. Fees payable in 2010
amounted to 67 thousands euros, relating entirely to the auditing
of the individual and consolidated financial statements for 2010
of Alba and other Group companies.

28. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance
with International Accounting Standard 7.

The statement is divided into three sections:

- Net cash flows from operating activities: this includes the
operational cash flows of all the businesses managed
by the Group.

- Net cash flows from investing activities: this includes the
flows used in the purchase of treasury shares.

- Net cash flows from financing activities: this includes the
inflows of cash from external sources of funding and the
outflows of cash for repayment of external funding, payment
of interest on borrowings and payment of dividends.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

29. Events after the balance sheet date

Corporacion Financiera Alba has reached an agreement

with Mercapital to increase its stake in Artd Capital, Sociedad
Gestora de Entidades de Capital Riesgo, S.A. from 62.5% to
75% with the aim of driving the development of Artd Capital as a
vehicle for its investments in unlisted companies. Subsequently,
some members of the management team of Arta Capital will also
take an equity interest, together acquiring 15% of Artd Capital
from Mercapital.

30. Explanation added for translation to english

These consolidated financial statements are presented on the
basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Spain may
not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in
other countries.
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1. Company business and financial position

The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2011
give a true and fair view of the Group’s assets and liabilities and
financial position and of the results of its operations, changes
in equity and cash flows for the year then ended and have been
authorised for issue by the directors of the Company.

The Alba Group’s activity during 2011 consisted of:

- Management of a set of controlling and significant
non-controlling interests in companies with activities
in a variety of industries.

- Development of and investment in companies.

- Lease and sale of buildings.

Management Report

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

2. Company outlook

Alba’s priority objective is to ensure that its investee companies
maximise their profitability by improving their competitiveness
and increasing their human, financial and technological potential.
The Company’s financial structure, size and flexibility will allow it
to seize future investment opportunities as they arise.

3. Purchases and sales of treasury shares

The movements in treasury shares shown in equity at 31
December 2011 are as follows:

Average
No.of Percentage of acquisition price
ettt teeeeeeeetterneeteeenateanaeeanen.,onares | Sharecapital | ....leMros/share) L....89%%,
AtT1JanUary 2010 eeenneeineeineeieeiieieeineeineeiaeeinseineenncennns 773,387 cevuvennnn. 1.27% ceveviiinnnnnn 40.60 .......... 31,401
LU Te T YT N 1,257,527 cevininnnn 2.62% civeiiiiinnnnn 3563 ceennnnnn 44,802
Cancelled (General Meeting 26-05-10) «evueerenenrarenrnrerarenenrancnns (1,430,000) .......... (2.61)% vevenenennnnnn 38.77 veenennnnn (55,446)
At 31 December 2010 .......couvuiiininiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinenenenens 600,908 ........... 1.01% coovvnnnnnnnn 3454 .......... 20,757
LT 3 T N 502,964 ...counnen. 0.85% weveenvninnnns 4193 ieeeinens 21,089
Cancelled (General Meeting 25-05-11) «veueururenrureninrenenreenranenss (1,030,000) .......... (1.74)% ceverinnanenns Ky (38,870)

At 31 December 2011 .....ccoiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 73,872 ........... 0.13% .oovvnnnnnnnnn 40.29 .......... 2,976
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4. Research and development

The nature of the Company’s businesses and the absence of

manufacturing activity make direct R&D investment unnecessary.

5. Significant post-balance sheet events

Corporacién Financiera Alba has reached an agreement with
Mercapital to increase its stake in Artd Capital, Sociedad Gestora
de Entidades de Capital Riesgo, S.A. from 62.5% to 75%

with the aim of driving the development of Artd Capital as a
vehicle for its investments in unlisted companies. Subsequently,
some members of the management team of Arta Capital will
also take an equity interest, together acquiring 15% of Artd
Capital from Mercapital.

6. Risk management and control policy

The Board of Directors of Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A.
has formulated the following risk management and control
policy for the Parent Company and its subsidiaries:

1. Types of risks the Company faces

Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A. engages in two types
of business activity: (i) the holding of investments in listed
and unlisted companies, and (ii) investment in office
buildings for lease.

The most significant common risk of the investee companies
is the risk inherent in their own business and market, but also,
if they are listed, changes in share prices

The risks with respect to investment properties are: loss of
income if the buildings are unoccupied; changes in long-term
interest rates; damage; default by lessees; and changes in
market value.

Based on the abovementioned activities, the main risks affecting
the company can be grouped in the following categories:

Management Report

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

1.1. Cash flow interest rate risk

The group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk mainly
through bank borrowings. Alba’s policy will be to have a mix
of short and long-term, fixed and floating-rate financing, as
appropriate to the financial situation at any given time.

1.2. Exchange rate risk
At present, Alba’s activity is not affected by any significant
exchange rate risk.

1.3. Market risk

Stock market risk affects the most important assets on the
Company'’s balance sheet, namely the investments in listed
companies. These investments are, and are expected to continue
to be, mainly long-term and hedging would not be financially
viable. In some cases, the company also uses derivatives on
listed shares.

The investment properties are affected by changes in market
value, which the Company monitors through annual reports
prepared by independent experts.
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1.4. Credit risk

Credit risk arises basically from the possibility that the lessors
of properties belonging to the Company will fail to meet their
obligations under the lease agreements. However, it is the
Group’s policy to do business exclusively with financially
strong entities.

In transactions with derivatives on listed shares, there is also
counterparty risk. Such transactions are therefore entered into
exclusively with highly solvent and reputable counterparties.

Credit risk also arises from the possibility that the credit
institutions at which the company holds deposits of cash as a

result of its liquidity management will fail to return the deposits.

1.5. Liquidity risk

The Company’s liquidity management is based on short-
term instruments and cash to easily cover projected liquidity
requirements.

2. Risk mitigation measures

The most important asset on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet is the investment in investee companies. The
Company oversees its investees by monitoring both their
business activity and performance (for which purpose it is
represented on their Boards of Directors and sometimes

also on their Executive Committees, Audit Committees and
Nomination and Remuneration committees) and their share price
performance (in the case of those that are publicly traded).

To guard against the abovementioned risks affecting its
investment properties, the Company deals exclusively with
highly solvent tenants and always checks the customer’s ability
to pay before entering into any business relationship. It also
establishes the appropriate contractual provisions, requires
guarantees from tenants, adjusts rents to market rates in the
case of long lets and takes out insurance, updated annually,

to cover damage and third-party liability. Lastly, the Company
continuously monitors its lease receivables, so that the risk of
arrears is never significant, and carries out annual appraisals to
track changes in market value.

As regards the risk relating to the return of the term cash
deposits held in credit institutions, this type of deposit is made
exclusively in institutions that have obtained a certain minimum
rating that is considered sufficient

Management Report

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

3. IT and internal audit systems

The Company has organizational resources to monitor and
control risks and ensure legal compliance, notably a financial
department, a legal department and a tax department. Each
of these departments monitors risks and internal and external
regulatory compliance in its particular area.

The Company also has processes for identifying and controlling
its main operational, financial and legal risks. These process are
duly documented in operating rules and instruction manuals.
The Company has an integrated IT system to enable it to prepare
timely and reliable financial information and the operational

data it needs in order to manage its businesses effectively.

The Company’s budgeting system allows it to set quantitative
objectives in advance within a strategic framework and analyse
the causes of any significant deviations between actual and
budgeted results.

In addition, the Board Regulations charge the Secretary
with a duty to ensure that the Company acts, in form and
substance, within the law and in accordance with its Articles
of Association and that its internal procedures and rules of
governance are respected.
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One of the Audit Committee’s tasks is to ensure that the
company has an effective system of internal supervision to
guarantee compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
to verify that the necessary procedures are in place to ensure
that managers and employees comply with internal regulations.
Audit Committee meetings are attended, when required, by
the company’s finance director, who is responsible for internal
control and who reports to the committee on this matter.

Lastly, the company has an Internal Audit Service as a tool for
the proper performance of the functions entrusted to the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee in relation to risk control
and management and the monitoring of internal information and
control systems. In this sense, Internal Audit contributes to the
improvement and, where applicable, the formal establishment
of internal procedures and, through specific audits, supervises
compliance with said procedures.

7. Annual Corporate Governance Report

In fullfilment of the stablished in the article 538 of the Corporate
Enterprises Act (Ley de Sociedades de Capital), the Annual
Corporate Gobernance Report of Corporacion Financiera Alba,
S.A., that forms a part of the content of this management Report,
it is shown in a separated section.

Management Report Management Report

Translation of reports and consolidated financial statements issued in spanish in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 30).
In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.
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I. Introduction

This report on the functions and activities of the Audit
Committee of Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A. has been
prepared in accordance with the recommendations on good
corporate governance of listed companies, in particular those
contained in the Unified Code on Corporate Governance
enacted by the National Securities Market Commission (CNMV)
on 22 May 2006.

The Audit Committee, initially named the Audit and Compliance
Committee, was created by the Board of Directors on 29 March
2000, following the recommendations of the “Olivencia Code”.

Subsequently, Law 44/2002 of 22 November on Financial
System Reform Measures made it mandatory for listed
companies to have an Audit Committee and established certain
requirements regarding the Committee’s membership, powers
and functioning.

In compliance with said Law, Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A.
amended its Articles of Association and Board of Directors
Regulations to specify the powers of the Committee and

its rules of operation.

As a consequence of the passing of Law 12/2010 of 30 June
amending the Law on Auditing, the Securities Market Law and
the Law on Public Limited Companies, which has broadened
the powers of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors
Regulations were amended to bring them into line with the new
legal provisions in relation to Audit Committees. In addition,
this amendment of the Board of Directors Regulations, which
was passed on 30 September 2010, provided an opportunity
to include in the Regulations the recommendations arising from
the CNMV document relating to “Internal control of financial
information in publicly traded companies” (June 2010).
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I1. Functions of the Audit Committee

In article 22 of the Board of Directors Regulations of
Corporacién Financiera Alba, S.A., in accordance with the new
wording of the Eighteenth Additional Provision of the Securities
Market Law (enacted, as mentioned previously, by Law 12/2010
of 30 June), the Audit Committee is assigned the following
functions, without prejudice to any others that the Board of
Directors may assign to it:

12 Report to the General Meeting on matters within its remit that
are raised in the Meeting.

2° Supervise the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control, internal audit (if any) and risk management systems,
and discuss with the auditors or audit firms any significant
weaknesses of the internal control system detected
during the audit.

32 Oversee the preparation and presentation of the statutory
financial information.

4° Make proposals to the Board of Directors, for submission
to the General Meeting, regarding the appointment of
the auditors, in accordance with the laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

YL VER
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5° Establish appropriate relations with the external auditors so
as to receive information on matters liable to jeopardise the
external auditors’ independence, so that it may be examined
by the Committee, and any other matters arising from the
auditing of the Company’s accounts, and make any other
disclosures required under applicable legislation and auditing
standards. In any case, the Committee must receive written
confirmation from the auditors of their independence from
the Company or directly or indirectly related parties, as well
as information on any additional services of any kind provided
to these entities by the auditors or persons or entities related
to them, in accordance with the provisions of Law 19/1988
of 12 July on Auditing.

©

6° Issue annually, prior to the issue of the auditors’ report, a
report expressing an opinion on the independence of the
auditors. This report must also pronounce on the provision of

the additional services referred to in the previous section.

11l. Membership

The Audit Committee is a Board committee and so is made up

of directors of the Company. Its members are appointed by the
Board of Directors and a majority of them must be non-executive
directors. At least one must be independent and have knowledge
and experience in the field of accounting or auditing, or both.
The Chairman must be chosen from among these non-executive
directors. According to the law and the Articles of Association,
the Chairman must be replaced every four years and is elegible
for re-election one year after leaving office.

The directors who sat on the Audit Committee during 2011
are as follows:

a) Until 28 February 2011: José Manuel Serra Peris as chairman
and Isidro Ferndndez Barreiro and Eugenio Ruiz-Gélvez
Priego as members, with José Ramén del Cafio Palop acting
as secretary. The Chairman and Eugenio Ruiz-Gélvez are
independent directors, while Isidro Ferndndez Barreiro is 3
proprietary director.
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b) From 28 February 2011 until 25 May 2011: Eugenio Ruiz-
Gélvez Priego as chairman and Isidro Ferndndez Barreiro and
Francisco Verdd Pons as members, with José Ramén del Cafio
Palop acting as secretary. The Chairman is an independent
non-executive director, while Isidro Ferndndez Barreiro and
Francisco Verdu Pons are proprietary directors.

¢) From 25 May 2011: Eugenio Ruiz-Galvez Priego as chairman
and Isidro Ferndndez Barreiro and José Nieto de la Cierva
as members, with José Ramén del Cafio Palop acting as
secretary. The Chairman is an independent non-executive
director, while Isidro Ferndndez Barreiro and José Nieto de la
Cierva are proprietary directors.
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IV. Functioning and activity

The internal functioning of the Committee is governed by

the provisions of article 47 of the Articles of Association and
articles 29 to 34 of the Board of Directors Regulations, which
regulate everything concerning Committee sessions, the

calling of meetings, quorums, adoption of resolutions, minutes,
relations with the Board and with the senior management of the
Company, and authority to request information about any aspect
of the Company and to seek the advice of outside professionals.

During 2011 the Audit Committee held eight meetings, in
which it worked within the functions mentioned above, in the
areas listed below, for which it had access to all the necessary

information and documentation:

Review of periodic financial information for submission
to the CNMV.

External audit of the annual accounts.
Risk identification and internal control system.

Legal and regulatory compliance.

a) Review of periodic financial information

In relation to periodic financial information, the Audit Committee
analysed, prior to submission, the quarterly and half-yearly
financial reports that are sent to the CNMV and that are
published, as well as the complementary information leaflets that
are published, in accordance with the requirements established
by Royal Decree 1362/2007 of 19 October and CNMV Circular
1/2008 of 30 January.

The Financial Director of the Company, who is responsible
for the preparation of the information, collaborates in the
abovementioned analysis in order to explain to the Committee
the accounting process followed in preparing said financial
information and the decisions and criteria adopted.

The Committee gave its approval to the abovementioned reports,
following acceptance of certain suggestions it had made.

One meeting was devoted to examining the annual accounts,
prior to authorisation by the Board of Directors.
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b) External audit of the annual accounts and

relations with the external auditors

As regards the external audit, it should be mentioned that the
auditors attended the meetings of the Audit Committee at which
the financial information at year-end 2010 and the annual
accounts for that year were examined. The external auditors
reported in detail on their audit work, the most important issues
arising from their work and the criteria they used. In particular,
the annual accounts received an unqualified audit report, without
any material risks having been detected in the Company and the
Company’s internal control having been considered adequate.
In performing their functions, the external auditors had the
collaboration of the Company’s managers. At the same time,
the planning of the audit work for 2011 was presented.

Within this area, it should also be noted that the current auditor
was appointed in 2004 and that the last renewal was agreed for
financial years 2011, 2012 and 2013.
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¢) Risk identification and internal control system

As regards the risk identification and internal control system,

it should be emphasised that the Finance Directorate is
responsible for internal control within the Company, which has
certain operational rules that establish the criteria for internal
control. These rules concern, among other matters: Accounting
and Reporting, Investments and Divestments, Short-term
Investments; Property and Receivables Management; Payables;
and Relations with the CNMV.

The Audit Committee has authority in this matter and assesses
whether the Company has the necessary organisation, personnel
and processes to identify and control its main operational,
financial and legal risks, and is empowered to investigate any
aspect of the risk identification and internal control system that
it considers appropriate. In this respect, it is worth noting that

in 2004 and 2008 the external auditors were asked to carry

out 3 thorough examination of the Company’s internal control
system. From these examinations it emerged that, in the external
auditors’ opinion, the Company had a satisfactory internal
control system, despite a number of recommendations for
improvement, which have been implemented.

In 2011, following the recommendations of the CNMV document
titled “Internal control of financial information in publicly traded
companies” (June 2010), the Audit Committee proposed, and
the Board of Directors agreed, that an Internal Audit service

be established as a tool for more effectively performing the

functions entrusted to the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee in relation to risk control and management and the
monitoring of internal information and control systems. A person
was appointed to take charge of this service and it was decided
that an audit firm would be engaged to perform the Internal Audit
functions. These functions have been performed by the firm
Ernst & Young.

In consequence of the above, steps were taken during 2011 to
implement the Internal Audit service. This has entailed preparing
a Statute for the service and drawing up a Company Risk Map
and a Plan of Activities for the year, under the supervision and
guidance of the Audit Committee.

In carrying out its Plan of Activities, Internal Audit has
established various internal procedures, updating and improving
existing procedures, and has carried out several internal audits,
in particular of the procedures that were considered most
important. The Audit Committee has monitored these activities
and the Board has been informed of them and of the result of
the internal audits.

In conclusion, it can be affirmed that during 2011 no material
incident was detected in relation to the Company’s risk
identification and internal control.
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d) Legal and regulatory compliance

In what follows, compliance with legal obligations and internal
regulations is given a more detailed treatment than previous
points because under article 26.c) of the Board of Directors
Regulations the Audit Committee is required to submit a report in
this respect.

First, it must be stated that the Company has the necessary
organisation to guarantee compliance with applicable law.
Specifically, it has a legal department, a tax department and a
finance department, each of which, in its area of competence,
works to ensure that current external and internal regulations
are respected. In addition, the Board Regulations charge the
Secretary with a duty to ensure that the Company acts, in form
and substance, within the law and in accordance with its Articles
of Association and that its internal procedures and rules of
governance are respected.

One of the Audit Committee’s tasks is to ensure that the
Company has an effective system of internal supervision to
guarantee compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
to verify that the necessary procedures are in place to ensure
that managers and employees comply with internal regulations.
Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Company’s
Finance Director, who is responsible for internal control and who
reports to the Committee on this matter.

YL VER
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As regards the existence of internal procedures, as mentioned
in the previous section the Company has in place certain
operational rules that establish internal control criteria, which
were improved this year as a result of the establishment of the
Internal Audit service.

At the same time, during 2011 the Rules of Conduct in relation
to the Securities Market were updated, and a Code of Ethics and
Conduct and the Crime Prevention and Anti-fraud Policy were
approved. These documents provide for control and monitoring
bodies; and the Code of Ethics and Conduct establishes a
confidential channel for reporting violations, broadening the
scope of the channel that existed previously so as to encompass
any action that is considered illegal or contrary to the provisions
of the Code.

In view of the above, the Committee considers that the
Company has the necessary organisation and an adequate
framework of rules to ensure compliance with applicable internal
and external regulations.

Within this area of action, the Audit Committee also examined
the draft Annual Corporate Governance Report, the draft of the
Report provided for in article 116 bis of the Securities Market
Law (both of which were subsequently approved by the Board
of Directors), and the Control Body Report provided for in the
Internal Code of Conduct on the actions taken in compliance
with said Code (all in relation to 2010).

Again within this same area of regulatory compliance, the
transactions with Directors, significant shareholders, their
representatives or persons related to them, or with investees
(“related party transactions”) were examined and a favourable
report was issued, as all the necessary conditions were met.

Lastly, the Committee monitored the functioning of
the Company’s website, which is fully compliant with
current regulations.

In view of all the above, the Committee considers that the
Company’s compliance with corporate governance regulations
is satisfactory, all currently applicable regulatory requirements
and recommendations being met.
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The Board of Directors proposes that the General Meeting
consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions:

1. To receive and approve the individual and consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2011.

2. To approve the work of the Board of Directors during
the year.

3. To approve the proposed allocation of profit and payment
of dividends.

4. Appointment, re-election and ratification of Directors.

To re-elect Carlos March Delgado and Juan March
de la Lastra as Directors of the Company.

To ratify the appointment of Ms Amparo Moraleda
Martinez as a Director of the Company.

5. To ratify the corporate website (www.corporacionalba.es)
as the Company’s online headquarters for the purposes of
Article 11 bis of the Law on Corporations.

. To approve the amendment of the following articles of the

Articles of Association: nos. 20, 22 and 31, relating to the
General Meeting; and no. 41, relating to notice of Board of
Directors meetings.

. To approve the amendment of the following articles of the

General Meeting Regulations: no. 7, “Right to information”;
no. 11, “Proxies”; no. 12, “Public solicitation of proxies”;
no. 14, “Voting right”; no. 18, “Notice of meetings”; no.
19, “Information available to shareholders”; and no. 30,
“Publication of resolutions”.

. To approve, in a consultative capacity, the Directors’

Remuneration Report for 2011.

. To authorise the purchase of own shares, subject to the limits

and requirements of the Law on Corporations, and the use
of shares purchased under this and previous authorisations
to implement Executive Director, senior management and
employee remuneration schemes entailing the allotment of
shares or stock options; and to authorise the Directors to
reduce share capital, as appropriate.
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10.To authorise the Board to implement the resolutions adopted
by the Meeting.

11.To approve the minutes of the General Meeting.
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